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DEAR SHAREHOLDER
Florida Banking has changed forever but we are right on plan They say that the strength of company becomes

clear in times of economic uncertainty and market distress In our view 2009 was most challenging year for Florida

banking 1st United Bank our customers and indeed the Nation Floridas banks sustained body blow in the two

years ended December 31 2009 that bit deeply into capital reserves and share value through massive loan loss provisions

signaling period of unrivaled risk to asset quality and the need for injections of capital to protect the institutions and

their shareholders

Coming into this period the Board of Directors and Management of 1st United embraced bold strategic vision for the

Company and the Bank In essence the Board determined that 1st United would not run the risk of being victim of

this damaging environment and chose to claw back shareholder value by going on the offense

This strategic vision included fundamental focus on cost management growth in our generous base of hard-won quality

clients retention of strong balance sheet leveraging our strengths to accomplish significant capital infusions including

the possibility of an Initial Public Offering IPO listing our stock on national exchange and creating growth in the

financial statements through combination of organic and acquisitive growth

Early in 2009 we leveraged our strong balance sheet profile to qualify under the U.S Treasurys CPP program and issued

$10 million of perpetual preferred securities to help protect the institution and its shareholders from the unknown diffi

culties of the on-going economic recession

In the fall of 2009 with the help of three Investment Banking firms who shared our vision we accomplished an IPO

raising $80.5 million in fresh equity capital 1st Uniteds stock is now traded on the international NASDAQ Global Market

system under the symbol FUBC

Fortified with exceptionally strong levels of capital 1st United used the proceeds of the IPO to pay off its dividend-bearing

preferred stocks and embarked on campaign of growth In December 2009 with the assistance of the FDIC 1st United

acquired the business of the failed Republic Federal Bank RFB in Miami Florida as the successful bidder in an FDIC

managed auction process

As result of the RFB acquisition 1st United today boasts four-branch system in Miami-Dade County Floridas largest

banking market and overall 1st United had at December 31 2009 $1015 billion in total assets We believe that the RFB
transaction was both an important strategic and financial acquisition

1st United Bancorp had net income of $4.7 million in 2009 or .30 per common share Despite the economic climate 1st

United demonstrated balance sheet growth earnings and focus on all things asset quality

Fiscal 2009 was not only year of improved balance sheet strength and market expansion it was also year of expense
and

facility optimization We have an on-going no nonsense focus on core cost controls and to that end we closed

several facilities and consolidated markets

As excited as we are about the years accomplishments we are equally energized about the improved competitive dynamics
and continued growth and profit opportunities for 2010 At the same time we are not of the belief that the current

economy here in Florida is done adversely influencing bank financial statements We subscribe to the popular view that

commercial real estate of all types will continue to show weakness Clearly we can see deteriorating commercial property

drivers in high unemployment restraints on new construction rising vacancies and falling rents Credit markets remain

dysfunctional There is collision between falling appraisals accounting rules and regulatory imperatives that will continue

to produce harsh consequences for banks 1st United has continued to embrace these realities with realistic loan classifi

cations and treatment and an increase in its credit and loan review workforce

Our unique position of strength was not achieved by unexpected forces but rather by carefully constructed strategic

vision by our Board and Management involving industry insight careful preparation hard work dedicated team and

culture that inherently believes in its capabilities Florida needs healthy banking sector and we at 1st United aspire to

be leader in our industry We thank all of you as shareholders for your continued confidence in us and invite you to

review the details of our financial results in the pages that follow

Warren Orlando

Chairman of the Board

Rudy Schupp

Chief Executive Officer
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John Marino

President and Chief Financial Officer
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

As of and for the years ended December 31

Dollars in thoasands except per share data 2009w 2008 2007

BALANCE SHEET DATA
Total assets 1015567 $617821 $375834

Total loans 680976 486247 285423

Securities available for sale 88843 35075 35546

Deposits 802808 436269 272235

Non-interest bearing deposits 194185 100785 59539

Shareholders equity 172294 98870 54498

INCOME STATEMENT DATA
Interest income 28539 30250 24699

Interest expense 7246 9584 9474

Net interest income 21293 20666 15225

Provision for loan losses 13240 1910 145

Net interest income after provision for loan losses 8053 18756 15080

Gain on acquisition 23292

Other non-interest income 2876 2037 1911

Non-interest expense 26168 22904 16989

Income tax expense benefit 2884 752 3391

Net income loss 4720 1359 3393

Preferred stock dividends earned 774 368

Net income loss available to common shareholders 3946 1727 3393

PER SHARE DATA

Basic earnings loss per share 0.30 0.25 0.72

Diluted earnings loss per share 0.30 0.25 0.71

Book value per common share 6.95 10.87 11.61

Tangible book value per common share 5.00 5.44 10.61

OTHER RATIOS

Return on average assets 0.60% 0.25% 0.97%

Return on average shareholders equity 3.19% 1.63% 6.64%

Net interest margin 3.69% 4.23% 4.72%

Equity/assets 16.97% 16.00% 14.50%

Non-performing assets/total assets 1.97% 1.72% 0.07%

Allowance for loan losses/total loans 1.95% 1.19% 0.73%

Leverage ratio 17.33% 8.15% 14.71%

Tier risk-based capital 23.54% 9.46% 14.71%

Total risk-based capital 25.76% 11.69% 15.37%

Includes Republic transaction

Includes Equitable merger and Citrus acquisition

Based on year end total assets rather than
average assets the leverage ratio of the Company is t2.72%
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PART

Item Business

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION

The SEC encourages companies to disclose forward-looking information so that investors can better understand companys
future prospects and make informed investment decisions This Annual Report on Form 10-K Annual Report contains

forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 These forward-

looking statements include among others statements about our beliefs plans objectives goals expectations estimates and

intentions that are subject to significant risks and uncertainties and are subject to change based on various factors many of

which are beyond our control The words may could should would believe anticipate estimate expect
intend plan target goal and similarexpressions are intended to identif forward-looking statements

All forward-looking statements by their nature are subject to risks and uncertainties Our actual future results may differ

materially from those set forth in the forward-looking statements Our ability to achieve our financial objectives could be

adversely affected by the factors discussed in detail in the section captioned Risk Factors as well as the following factors

legislative or regulatory changes

the strength of the United States economy in general and the strength of the local economies in which

we conduct operations

the accuracy of our financial statement estimates and assumptions including the estimate for our loan

loss provision

the effects of the health and soundness of other financial institutions including the FDICs need to

increase Deposit Insurance Fund assessments

the loss of key personnel

our ability to comply with the terms of the loss sharing agreements with the FDIC

our customers willingness to make timely payments on their loans

changes in the securities and real estate markets

changes in monetary and fiscal policies of the U.S Government

inflation interest rate market and monetary fluctuations

the frequency and magnitude of foreclosure of our loans

fluctuations in loan collateral values

the effects of our lack of diversified loan portfolio including the risks of geographic and industry

concentrations

our need and our ability to incur additional debt or equity financing

our ability to integrate the business and operations of companies and banks that we have acquired and

those we may acquire in the future

the failure to achieve expected gains revenue growth and/or expense savings from future acquisitions

the effects of harsh weather conditions including hurricanes

our ability to comply with the extensive laws regulations and directives to which we are subject

our customers perception of the safety of their deposits at 1st United Bank

the willingness of clients to accept third-party products and services rather than our products and

services and vice versa

increased competition and its effect on pricing

technological changes

the effects of security breaches and computer viruses that may affect our computer systems

changes in consumer spending and saving habits

growth and profitability of our noninterest income

changes in accounting principles policies practices or guidelines



anti-takeover provisions under federal and state law as well as our Articles of Incorporation and our

Bylaws

other risks described from time to time in our filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission

and

our ability to manage the risks involved in the foregoing

However other factors besides those listed above and in the section captioned Risk Factors or discussed elsewhere in this

Aimual Report also could adversely affect our results and you should not consider any such list of factors to be complete

set of all potential risks or uncertainties These forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance but

reflect the present expectations of future events by our management and are subject to number of factors and uncertainties

that could cause actual results to differ materially from those described in the forward-looking statements Any forward-

looking statements made by us speak only as of the date they are made We do not undertake to update any forward-looking

statement except as required by applicable law

About Us

General

1st United Bancorp Inc Bancorp is financial holding company headquartered in Boca Raton Florida 1St United Bank

Florida state chartered bank is our wholly-owned subsidiary Operations commenced on April 20 2000 under the names

Advantage Bankshares Inc and Advantage Bank with completely different management team and board of directors By

April 2003 Advantage Bankshares had experienced three years
of troubled operations and operating losses and was subject

to regulatory directives to correct its unsatisfactory audit results As part of its compliance with these directives Advantage

Bankshares entered into an agreement dated April 2003 with 1st United LLC company owned and controlled by our

current executive officers Messrs Orlando Schupp and Marino As part of that agreement change-in-control was effected

and the name of Advantage Bankshares was subsequently changed to st United Bancorp Inc with Advantage Bank

changing its name to 1St United Bank In addition the board of directors was reconstituted and the management team and

business plan were changed Thereafter from December 31 2003 to December 31 2009 we have experienced strong growth

through combination of internal growth de novo branching and acquisitions Specifically we have

increased total assets from $66.8 million to 1.016 billion

increased total loans from $39.6 million to $680.9 million

grew non-interest bearing deposits from $4.6 million to $194.2 million and

increased our banking center network from two to sixteen locations consisting of four banking centers in

Palm Beach County four banking centers in Broward County five banking centers in Miami-Dade County

and one banking center each in Sebastian Vero Beach and Barefoot Bay Florida

We operate under community banking philosophy that seeks to develop broad customer relationships based on service and

convenience while maintaining our commitment to conservative approach to lending and strong asset quality We offer our

customers primarily professionals high net-worth individuals and small and medium-sized businesses variety of

traditional loan and deposit products which we apply to their specific needs Making loans which result in long-standing

relationship with our borrowers will continue to be the cornerstone of our approach to business We believe that our emphasis

on personal service puts us at competitive advantage relative to the other banks in our market area and has been an

instrumental contributing factor to the growth that we have experienced to date We believe our success has been built on the

strength of our management team and board of directors our credit culture the attractive growth characteristics of the

markets in which we operate and our ability to expand our franchise by attracting seasoned bankers with long-standing

relationships in their communities We have one reportable segment

In this report the terms Company we us or our mean Bancorp and all of its consolidated subsidiaries

Recent Developments

Preferred Stock Repurchase

On November 18 2009 we repurchased from the United States Department of the Treasury the Treasury all of the

10000 outstanding shares of our Series Fixed Rate Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock Series Preferred Stock and

all of the 500 outstanding shares of our Series Fixed Rate Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock Series Preferred



Stock The Series Preferred Stock and Series Preferred Stock were issued to the Treasury on March 13 2009 pursuant

to the Capital Purchase Program established under the Troubled Asset Relief Program The aggregate purchase price paid by

us to the Treasury for the Series Preferred Stock and Series Preferred Stock was approximately 10.504 million

including approximately $4000 of accrued and unpaid dividends

On November 19 2009 we repurchased all of the 459503 outstanding shares of our Series Non-Cumulative Perpetual

Preferred Stock Series Preferred Stock The aggregate purchase price paid by us for the Series Preferred Stock was

approximately $4.643 million including approximately $48000 of accrued and unpaid dividends

Acquisition of Republic Federal Bank from FDIC as receiver

On December 11 2009 we announced that United Bank our banking subsidiary had entered into purchase and

assumption agreement the Republic Agreement with the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation FDIC as receiver for

Republic Federal Bank National Association Republic Miami Florida According to the terms of the Republic

Agreement United Bank assumed all deposits except certain brokered deposits and borrowings and acquired certain

assets of Republic Assets acquired included $238 million in loans based on Republics carrying value and $64.2 million in

cash and investments All of Republics repossessed or foreclosed real estate and substantially all non-performing loans were

retained by the FDIC Republic operated four banking centers in Miami-Dade County Florida and had approximately 100

employees

All of the loans acquired are covered by two loss share agreements the Loss Share Agreements bertveen the FDIC and 1St

United Bank which affords 1st United Bank significant loss protection Under the Loss Share Agreements the FDIC will

cover 80% of covered loan and foreclosed real estate losses up to $36 million and 95% of losses in excess of that amount

The Loss Share Agreements also cover third party collection costs and 90 days of accrued interest on covered loans The

term for loss sharing and loss recoveries on residential real estate loans is ten years while the term for loss sharing and loss

recoveries on non-residential real estate loans is five years with respect to losses and eight years with respect to loss

recoveries The reimbursable losses from the FDIC are based on the book value of the relevant loan as determined by the

FDIC at the date of the transaction New loans made after that date are not covered by the Loss Share Agreements

1st United Bank received $34.2 million net discount on the assets acquired The acquisition was accounted for under the

purchase method of accounting in accordance with FASB ASC 805 Business Combinations The purchased assets and

assumed liabilities were recorded at their respective acquisition date fair values and identifiable intangible assets were

recorded at fair value Fair values are preliminary and subject to refinement for up to one year after the closing date of the

acquisition as new information relative to closing date fair values becomes available We recorded an estimated receivable

from the FDIC in the amount of $32.9 million as of December 11 2009 which represents the fair value of the FDICs

portion of the losses that are expected to be incurred and reimbursed to us The Loss Sharing Agreements are subject to

certain servicing procedures as specified in the agreements

An acquisition gain totaling $23.3 million resulted from the acquisition and is included as component of noninterest income

on the statement of income

1st United Bank did not immediately acquire the furniture or equipment of Republic as part of the purchase and assumption

agreement However 1St United Bank has the option to purchase the furniture and equipment from the FDIC The term of

this option expires March 11 2010 lS United has until March 11 2010 to request the FDIC to repudiate all leases entered

into by the former Republic or the leases will be assumed As of the date of this Form 10-K we have not determined whether

we will request the FDIC to repudiate the leases Each of the four banking centers is leased

The rent commitments under these banking facilities leases prior to the potential repudiation are as follows in thousands

2010 657

2011 500

2012 448

2013 245

2014 245

Thereafter 766

2861



The statement of net assets acquired as of December 11 2009 and the resulting gain as adjusted are presented in the

following table dollars in thousands

Assets
________________ __________________ ___________________

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Securities

Federal Reserve Bank and Federal Home Loan Bank stock

Loans

Core deposit intangible

FDIC Loss Share Receivable

Other assets

Total Assets Acquired _______________________________________________

Liabilities
______________ _______________ _________________

Deposits

Repurchase Agreements

Advances from FHLB
Other

Total Liabilities Assumed
_______________________________________________

34221

Cash Received from the FDIC 158000 158000

Total Gain Recorded 23292

Explanation of Fair Value Adjustments

This estimated adjustment was necessary as of the acquisition date to write down Republics book value of loans to

the estimated fair value

This fair value adjustment represents the value of the core deposit base assumed in the acquisition based on study

performed by an independent consulting firm This amount was recorded by us as an identifiable intangible asset

and will be amortized as an expense over the average life of the core deposit base which is estimated to be years

This adjustment was the estimated fair value of the amount that we will receive from the FDIC under the Loss

Sharing Agreements as result of future loan losses

This was the estimated adjustment necessary to write down Republics book value of loan servicing rights to their

estimated fair value as of the acquisition date

This fair value adjustment was recorded because the weighted average interest rate of Republics time deposits

exceeded the cost of similar wholesale funding at the time of the acquisition This amount will be amortized to

reduce interest expense on declining basis over the average life of the deposit portfolio

This fair value adjustment was recorded because the interest rates of Republics fixed rate borrowings exceeded

current interest rates on similarborrowings This amount was realized shortly after the acquisition by prepaying the

borrowings at premium and thus there will be no future amortization related to this adjustment

Miscellaneous asset writedowns

As Recorded Fair Value As Recorded

By Republic Adjustments by United

25026 25026

33637 33637

5266 5266

237925 39363 198562

1248 1248

32900 32900

5095 1497 3223

375
306949 7087 299862

As Recorded Fair Value As Recorded

By Republic Adjustments by 1st United

349373 274 349647

3724 3724

75255 3568 78823

2376 2376

430728 3842 434570

Excess of Liabilities over Assets Acquired

Asset Discount

123779 10929 134708



Our operating results for the twelve month period ended December 31 2009 include the operating results of the acquired

assets and assumed liabilities since the acquisition date of December 11 2009 Due primarily to the significant amount of

fair value adjustments and the Loss Share Agreements now in place historical results of Republic are not believed to be

relevant to our results and thus we are not presenting pro forma information

The following is description of the methods used to determine the fair values of significant assets and liabilities presented

above

Cash and cash equivalents

The carrying amount of these assets is reasonable estimate of fair value based on the short-term nature of these assets

Securities

Fair value for securities were based on quoted market prices where available If quoted market prices were not available fair

value estimates were based on observable inputs including quoted market prices for similar instruments quoted market prices

that are not in an active market or other inputs that are observable in the market

The following table sets forth the fair value and weighted average yield of the investments portfolio acquired in the Republic

transaction as of December 11 2009

Dollars in thousands Weighted

Fair Average

Value Yield

U.S Treasury and Federal Agencies

Less than 12 months 0.0%

Over one year through five
years 0.0%

Over five through ten years 0.0%

Overtenyears 5615 4.15%

Total 5615 4.15%

Corporate Obligations

Over ten years 3031 4.59%

Total 3031 4.59%

Mortgage-Backed Securities

Less than 12 months 0.0%

Over one year through five years 44 4.04%

Over five through ten years 27 6.84%

Over ten years 14080 4.43%

Total 14151 4.44%

Collateralized Mortgage Obligations

Less than 12 months 0.0%

Over one year through five years 0.0%

Over five through ten years 478 1.40%

Over ten years 4906 3.03%

Total 5384 2.88%

Municipal Securities

Over five year through ten years 1988 5.82%

Over ten years 3468 5.87%

Total 5456 5.85%

Grand Total 33637 4.38%



Loans

Fair value for loans were based on discounted cash flow methodology that considered factors including the type of loan and

related collateral classification status fixed or variable interest rate term of loan and whether or not the loan was amortizing

and current discount rates Loans were grouped together according to similar characteristics and were treated in the aggregate

when applying various valuation techniques The discount rates used for loans were based on current market rates for new

originations of comparable loans and included adjustments for liquidity concerns The discount rate does not include factor

for credit losses as that has been included in the estimated cash flows third party provided the valuation of loans at

December 11 2009

The following are the fair value of loans acquired in the Republic transaction as of December 11 2009 dollars in thousands

Loan Types

Commercial Real Estate

Construction and Development Loans

Commercial and Industrial

Closed End First Lien 1-4 Family

Multi-family Loans

Consumer Loans

Total

Number of

Loans

41

203

340

24

620

Carrying

Value of

Acquired

Loans

37609

1108

39626

106441

13362

416

198562

of

Acquired

Loan

Portfolio

18.94%

0.56%

19.96%

53.61%

6.73%

0.21%

100.00%

The acquired loans at December 11 2009 included loans accounted for in accordance with FASB ASC 310-30 ASC 310-

30 As defined by ASC 10-30 and subject to certain exceptions contained in that statement ASC 10-30 loans are loans

with evidence of deterioration of credit quality for which it is probable that the borrower will not be able to make all

contractually required payments We acquired loans with an aggregate face value on December 11 2009 of $39.6 million

for which there was at acquisition evidence of deterioration in credit quality and which it was probable that the borrowers

would not be able to make all contractually required payments As result non-accretable discount of $16.5 million and an

accretable difference of $3.2 million were recorded for these loans resulting in net carrying amount of $19.9 million on

December 11 2009

Included in the above loans are approximately $20 million of loans to foreign companies that are either insured or guaranteed

between 90-100% by the United States Import Export Bank

The following table sets forth the loan interest rate sensitivity for loans acquired in the Republic transaction at December 11

2009 dollars in thousands

Fixed and

Variable

year

Maturity

32393

790

13430

Total

Commercial 39626
Residential 106441

Commercial real estate 50971

Commercial and land

development 1108

Consumer and other 416

Totalloans 198562

year

Adjustable

Rate

2696

48054

10003

to

years

Adjustable

Rate

34936

1667

to

years

Fixed Rate

4537
558

23798

1108

years

Fixed

Rate

22103

2073

years

Adjustable

Rate

145 186 85

46758 60939 30086 36603 24176



There was no foreclosed real estate acquired in the Republic transaction The fair value of non-accruing loans and loans

accruing 90 days or more past due acquired in the Republic transaction as of December 11 2009 was as follows

Dollars in thousands

Non-Accrual Loans

Residential 2627

Commercial Real Estate 1075

Commercial and Industrial 331

Total 4033

Accruing 90 days or more past due

Residential

Commercial Real Estate

Commercial and Industrial

Total

Total non-accruing loans 4033

Accruing 90 days or more past due

Foreclosed real estate

Total non-performing assets 4033

Ratios

Total non-accruing loans to total acquired loans 2.03

Total acquired loans 198562

There were no loans accruing that were 60-89 days past due acquired at December 11 2009

Core deposit intangible

This intangible asset represents the value of the relationships that Republic had with its deposit customers The fair value of

this intangible asset was estimated based on discounted cash flow methodology that gave appropriate consideration to

expected customer attrition rates cost of the deposit base reserve requirements and the net maintenance cost attributable to

customer deposits third party provided the valuation for the core deposit intangible at December 11 2009

FDIC loss share receivable

This loss sharing asset is measured separately from the related covered asset as it is not contractually embedded in the assets

and is not transferable with the assets should 1st United Bank choose to dispose of them Fair value was estimated using

projected cash flows related to the Loss Sharing Agreements based on the expected reimbursements for losses and the

applicable loss sharing percentages These expected reimbursements do not include reimbursable amounts related to future

covered expenditures These cash flows were discounted to reflect the uncertainty of the timing and receipt of the loss sharing

reimbursement from the FDIC third party provided the valuation of the FDIC loss share indemnification asset at

December 11 2009

Deposits

The fair value used for the demand and savings deposits that comprise the transaction accounts acquired by definition equal

the amount payable on demand at the acquisition date The fair values for time deposits are estimated using discounted

cash flow calculation that applies interest rates currently being offered to the interest rates embedded on such time deposits

third party provided the valuation of the deposits at December 11 2009



Deposit liabilities assumed are comprised of the following at December 11 2009

Acquired

Value

in thousands

Noninterest bearing 90787

NOW 40692

Money Market 29666

Savings 21455

Time deposits less than $100000 39508

Time deposits greater than $100000 127265

Acquired balance of deposits 349373

Fair value adjustment 274

Total 349647

Included in the above deposits are approximately $232.6 million in deposits to foreign nationals banking in the United States

At December 11 2009 the maturities schedule of certificates of deposit was as follows

Under Over

Maturing in $100000 $100000

in thousands

Upto3 months 22197 71224

to months 7275 20427

6tol2months 8101 29538

Over 12 months 1935 6076

Total 39508 127265

Advances from Federal Home Loan Bank

The fair value of Federal Home Loan Bank FHLB advances were based on pricing supplied by the FHLB These advances

were repaid prior to December 31 2009

Investment Activity

Our consolidated securities portfolio is managed to minimize interest rate risk maintain sufficient liquidity and maximize

retum The portfolio includes several callable agency debentures mortgage-backed securities adjustable rate mortgage pass

throughs collateralized mortgage obligations and one small corporate security Our financial planning anticipates income

streams generated by the securities portfolio based on normal maturity and reinvestment

The following table sets forth the carrying amount of our investments portfolio all of which was classified as available-for

sale as of December 31 2009 2008 and 2007

Dollars in thousands December 31
2009 2008 2007

Fair value of investment in

U.S Treasury and Federal agencies $12417 $18800 31347

Mortgage-backed securities 74438 16155 3949

Corporate obligations
120 250

Municipal securities 1988
________

88843 35075 35546



The following table sets forth the combined fair value and weighted average yield of our investments portfolio as of

December 31 2009

Dollars in thousands Weighted

Fair Average

Value Yield

U.S Treasury and Federal Agencies

Less than 12 months 0.00%

Over one year through five years 0.00%

Over five through ten years 6832 4.29%

Over ten
years 5585 4.15%

Total 12417 4.23%

Mortgage-Backed Securities

Less than 12 months 0.0%

Over one year through five years 129 4.14%

Over five through ten years 5937 3.80%

Over ten years 68372 4.69%

Total 74438 4.62%

Municipal Securities

Less than 12 months 0.00%

Over five year through ten years 1988 5.82%

Over ten years _________ 0.00%

Total 1988 5.82%

Total Fair Value 88843 4.59%

Total Amortized Cost 88770 4.93%

As of December 31 2009 we held no tax-exempt obligations and we held no instruments from issuers other than the U.S

government where the amortized cost or market value represented more than ten percent of shareholders equity

Lending Activity

We have adopted the strategy of presenting robust and diverse series of lending channels and suite of loan and loan-

related products normally associated with larger banks While this strategy demands an investment in experienced personnel

and enabling systems it distinguishes us from competing community bank lending institutions We intend to continue to

provide for the financing needs of the community we serve by offering variety of loans including

commercial loans which will include collateralized loans for working capital including inventory and

receivables business expansion including real estate construction acquisitions and improvements and

purchase of equipment and machinery

small business loans including SBA lending

Exim Bank insured or guaranteed loans

residential real estate loans to enable borrowers to purchase refinance construct upon or improve real

property and home equity loans and

consumer loans including collateralized and uncollateralized loans for financing automobiles boats home

improvements and personal investments

We follow lending policy that permits prudent risks to assist consumers and businesses in our market area We have no

subprime loans We sell loan participations to other banks Loan-related interest rates will vary depending on our cost of

funds the loan maturity and the degree of risk We are expected to meet the credit needs of customers while allowing

prudent liquidity through our investment portfolio We expect this positive community-oriented lending philosophy to

translate into sustainable volume of quality loans into the foreseeable future
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We also help enhance loan quality by staffing with experienced well-trained lending officers capable of soliciting loan

business Our lending officers as well as our credit officers and loan committees also recognize and appreciate the

importance of exercising care and good judgment in underwriting loans which supports our safety and profitability goals

At December 31 2009 2008 2007 2006 and 2005 the composition of our loan portfolio was as follows

Commercial

Residential real estate

Commercial real estate

Construction and Land

Development

Allowance for loan losses 13282 5799

Net deferred fees costs
__________

Net loans

3650 1%

100% 254863 100%

7958 4%

$190754 100%

The following charts illustrate the number of loans in our loan portfolio as of December 31 2009 and December 31 2008

Dollars in thousands December 31
20072009 2008 2006 2005

%of %of %of %of %of
Amount Total Amount Total Amount Total Amount Total Amount Total

117349 17% 90968 19% 57574 20% 50361 20% 39833 21%

205749 30% 100571 20% 51663 18% 40930 16% 35136 18%

290014 43% 203734 42% 114424 40% 87098 34% 46830 25%

55689 8% 83161 17% 56603 20% 72824 29% 60997 32%

Consumer and others

Total loans

12039 2% 7865 2% 5125 2%

680840 100% 486299

136

667694

100% 285389

2070

34

283353

52

480448

2149

47

252667

1893

15

$188876

Loan Portfolio as of December 31 2009

Dollars in thousands

Balance of Loan of Total

Loan Types Total Loans Outstanding Portfolio Assets

Commercial Real Estate and Farm Loans 257 269440 39.57% 26.53%

Construction and Development Loans 44 55689 8.18% 5.48%

Commercial and Industrial 552 117349 17.24% 11.56%

Closed End First Lien 1-4 Family 437 154765 22.73% 15.24%

Home Equity Line of Credit 251 50127 7.36% 4.94%

Multi-family Loans 39 20574 3.02% 2.03%

ConsumerLoans 188 11902 1.75% 1.17%

Closed-End Junior Lien 1-4 Family 16 857 0.13% 0.08%

Other 137 0.02% 0.01%

Total 1784 680840 100.00% 67.04%

11



Loan Portfolio as of December 31 2008

Dollars in thousands

Loan Types

Commercial Real Estate

Construction and Development Loans

Commercial and Industrial

Closed End First Lien 1-4 Family

Home Equity Line of Credit

Multi-family Loans

Consumer Loans

Closed-End Junior Lien 1-4 Family

Other

Total

Total Loans

203

59

411

104

233

13

195

21

1239

Balance

Outstanding

194389

83161

90968

54275

44565

9345

7792

1731

73

486299

of Loan

Portfolio

39.97%

17.10%

18 .7 1%

11.16%

9.16%

1.92%

1.60%

0.35%

0.03%

100.00%

of Total

Assets

31.46%

13.46%

14.72%

8.78%

7.21%

1.51%

1.26%

0.28%

0.0 1%

78.69%

Of the loan portfolio as of December 31 2009 620 loans with carrying value of $198.6 million 29% are subject to the

Loss Sharing Agreements In addition at December 31 2009 included in Commercial and Industrial loans are approximately

$20 million in Export Import EXIM loans which have either insurance or guarantee of between 90% and 100% from the

Export Import Bank of the United States

portion of the loans originated by us since December 31 2000 has been guaranteed by the Small Business Administration

For the most part we have sold the guaranteed portion of the loans in the secondary market and retained the unguaranteed

portions in our loan portfolio The balance of the unguaranteed portions of such loans which are included in commercial

loans and commercial real estate loans above was $4.9 million and $7.2 million at December 31 2009 and December 31

2008 respectively

At December 31 2009 our loan interest rate sensitivity was as follows

As shown in the table above majority of our loan portfolio has either adjustable rates or shorter maturity terms

Real Estate Loans

Real Estate Loans Commercial

Through our Business Banking division and SBA division our commercial real estate loan portfolio includes loans secured

by office buildings warehouses retail stores and other properties which are primarily located in or near our markets

Commercial real estate loans are generally originated in amounts up to 80% of the appraised value of the property securing

the loan In determining whether to originate or purchase multi-family or commercial real estate loans we consider such

factors as the financial condition of the borrower and the debt service coverage provided by the business enterprise related

borrowing entities and guarantors

Dollars in thousands Maturity and/or Re-pricing Period

to

to years years years

year year years Adjustable Fixed Adjustable

Total Fixed Adjustable Fixed Rate Rate Rate Rate

Commercial 117349 39880 47293 10346 6111 13004 715

Residential real estate ... 205749 25810 107358 1190 46279 25112
Commercial real estate.. 290014 45021 85867 102590 37742 18794

Commercial and land

development 55689 39528 11822 4339
Consumer and other 12039 9485 1359 1027 168

Total loans 680840 159724 253699 119492 90300 56910 715
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Appraisals on properties securing commercial real estate loans originated by us are performed by an independent appraiser at

the time the loan is made and are reviewed internally by our Credit and Risk Management division In addition our

underwriting procedures generally require verification of the borrowers credit history income and financial condition

banking relationships references and income projections for the property We generally obtain personal guarantees for our

commercial real estate loans

Real Estate Loans Residential

We originate mix of fixed rate and adjustable rate residential mortgages Lending officers contact local builders realtors

government officials community leaders and other groups to determine the residential credit needs of the communities we

serve

We primarily offer adjustable rate mortgages which are commonly referred to as ARMs and maintain these ARMs in our

portfolio or sell the ARMs in the secondary market The ability to retain ARMs in the portfolio will also from time to time

allow us the opportunity to originate loans to borrowers who may not meet the underwriting criteria of strict secondary

market standards but are still reasonable credit risks These types of loans are generally referred to as Alt-A loans We also

originate fixed rate loans from within our primary service area The majority of fixed rate loans are sold in the secondary

mortgage market

Our ARMs generally have interest rates that adjust annually at margin over the weekly average yield on U.S Treasury

securities published by the Federal Reserve adjusted to constant maturity of one year The maximum interest rate

adjustment of our ARMs are generally 2% annually and 6% over the life of the loan above or below the initial rate on the

loan

We embrace written non-discriminatory underwriting standards for use in the underwriting and review of every
loan

considered for origination or purchase Our board of directors reviews and approves
these underwriting standards annually

Our underwriting standards for residential mortgage loans generally conform to standards established by Fannie Mae and

Freddie Mac Our underwriters and secondary market buyers obtain or review each loan application to determine the

borrowers ability to repay and confirm significant information through the use of credit reports financial statements

employment and other verifications

When originating real estate mortgage loan we obtain new appraisal of the property from an independent third party to

determine the adequacy of the collateral and the appraisal will be reviewed by one of the underwriters Borrowers are

required to obtain casualty insurance and if applicable flood insurance in amounts at least equal to the outstanding loan

balance or the maximum amount allowed by law

We require that survey be conducted and title insurance be obtained insuring the priority of our mortgage lien

Underwriters review all loans to ensure that guidelines are met or that waivers are obtained in limited situations where

offsetting factors exist

Construction Residential and Commercial Real Estate Loans

The construction loan portfolio includes both residential real estate and commercial real estate projects Generally

construction loans have terms which match permanent financing offered by us During the construction phase the borrower

may pay interest only which is typically funded with an interest reserve

Through our Business Banking and Residential Lending division we originate real estate construction loans to individuals

for the construction of their residences as well as to builders and real estate developers for construction of one-to-four family

residences Generally these loans are offered on the same basis as other residential real estate loans Our construction loans

typically have terms up to 18 months and generally the maximum loan-to-value ratio is 80% The loan-to-cost maximum

ratio has been up to 90%

We have construction loans on commercial real estate projects secured by industrial properties office buildings or other

property The majority of the projects are largely pre-sold pre-leased or owner-occupied Following the construction phase

loans will either be converted to permanent financing paid off or paid down with sales proceeds

Land Loans

Our portfolio includes
exposure

to land development both residential and commercial Typically Borrowers have or had

preliminary plans for development and were waiting for final plans to be completed to submit for construction financing Due

to current adverse market conditions original development plans for some financed projects may now be altered or on hold
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Construction

Residential

Residential Spec

Commercial

Commercial Spec

Land Development

Residential

Residential Spec

Commercial

Commercial Spec

Total

The following chart illustrates the composition of our construction and land development loan portfolio as December 31

2009 2008 and 2007

Dollars in thousands December 31
2009

Balance

9938 17.8%

1108 2.0%

3259 5.8%

1890 3.4%

24922 44.8%

14572 26.2%

55689 100.0%

2008

Balance

3586 4.3%

16939 20.4%

20349 24.5%

3185 3.8%

2076 2.5%

17561 21.1%

2175 2.6%

17290 20.8%

83161 100.0%

2007

Balance

2522 4.5%

14076 24.9%

9727 17.2%

4502 8.0%

1860 3.3%

5900 10.4%

5740 10.1%

12276 21.6%

56603 100.0%

Approximately $1.1 million or 2% of the construction and land development loan portfolio at December 31 2009 is part of

the Loss Share Agreements

Consumer Loans

We originate consumer loans bearing both fixed and prime-based variable interest rates We originate our loans directly

through our banking centers business bankers and residential lenders

We focus our consumer lending on the origination of direct second mortgage loans and home equity loans secured by

junior lien on residential real property and home improvement loans These loans are typically based on maximum 80%
to 90% loan-to-value ratio Second mortgage and home improvement loans generally will originate on either line of credit

or fixed term basis ranging from to 15 years We also extend personal loans which may be secured by various forms of

collateral both real and personal or to minimal extent on an unsecured basis

Commercial Loans

Through our Business Banking division we focus on the commercial loan market comprised of small- to medium-sized

businesses with combined borrowing needs up to $20.0 million These businesses include professional associations

physicians law firms and accountants medical services retail trade construction transportation wholesale trade

manufacturing and tourism-related service industries

Our commercial loans are primarily derived from our market area and underwritten on the basis of the borrowers ability to

service such debt from recurring income As general practice we will take as collateral security interest in any available

real estate equipment or other assets although such loans may also be made on an uncollateralized but guaranteed basis

Short-term assets primarily secure collateralized working capital loans whereas long-term assets primarily collateralize term

loans

In certain situations we use various loan programs sponsored by the SBA Properly utilized SBA loans can help to reduce

our loan portfolio risk and can generate non-interest income

As part of the acquisition of Republic we obtained an EXIM lending operation Our EXIM lending operation makes loans to

companies that export U.S goods and services to international markets and makes loans to foreign companies to facilitate the

purchase of U.S goods Loans made under this program are insured or guaranteed between 90% and 100% by the Export

Import Bank of the United States At December 31 2009 we had approximately $20 million in Exim loans

Loan Administration and UnderwritinR

Through our Credit and Risk Management division we use our loan origination underwriting procedures to assess both the

borrowers ability to make principal and interest payments and the value of the collateral securing the loan Our Credit and

Risk Management division is responsible for battery of management and board risk management monitoring and for

reporting to various management and board committees Given our emphasis on business
purpose lending our loans may be

viewed as involving higher degree of credit risk than is the case with banks that might focus on long-term residential
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mortgage loans where greater emphasis is placed on collateral values To manage this risk we have adopted written loan

policies and procedures and our loan portfolio is administered under defined
process

That process includes guidelines for

loan underwriting standards and risk assessment procedures for loan approvals loan grading ongoing identification and

management of credit deterioration and portfolio reviews to assess loss exposure
and to test compliance with our credit

policies and procedures

Our Board of Directors has approved set levels of lending authority to the Management Loan Committee as well as limited

authority for certain officers based on the loan amount the proposed use of proceeds and the secured or unsecured status of

loan All use of delegated loan authorities are preceded by determination of the worthiness of the loan request by the Credit

and Risk Management division Typically the Management Loan Committee reviews loan requests and if particular

request exceeds the loan authority limits delegated to this committee these requests if approved are presented to 1St United

Banks Board Loan Committee for final approval

Before and after loan closing our loan operations personnel review all loans for adequacy of documentation and compliance

with regulatory requirements Our loan review personnel analyze loans over certain size thresholds problem loans and loans

with certain loan quality ratings to ensure that appropriate credit risk ratings are assigned and ultimately to assist in

determining the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses

Loan Quality

Management seeks to maintain high quality of loans through sound underwriting and lending practices As of December 31

2009 and 2008 approximately 81.0% and 79.7% respectively of the total loan portfolio was collateralized by commercial

and residential real estate mortgages

Unlike residential mortgage loans which generally are made on the basis of the borrowers ability to repay from employment

and other income and which are collateralized by real property whose value tends to be more readily ascertainable non-real

estate secured commercial loans typically are underwritten on the basis of the borrowers ability to make repayment from the

cash flow of its business and generally are collateralized by variety of business assets such as accounts receivable

equipment and inventory As result the availability of funds for the repayment of commercial loans may be substantially

dependent on the success of the business itself which is subject to adverse conditions in the economy Commercial loans are

generally repaid from operational earnings collection of rent or conversion of assets Commercial loans also entail certain

additional risks since they usually involve large loan balances to single borrowers or related group
of borrowers resulting

in more concentrated loan portfolio Further the collateral underlying the loans may depreciate over time cannot be

appraised with as much precision as residential real estate and may fluctuate in value based on the success of the business

Loan concentrations are defined as amounts loaned to number of borrowers engaged in similar activities which would

cause them to be similarly impacted by economic or other conditions We on routine basis monitor these concentrations in

order to consider adjustments in our lending practices to reflect economic conditions loan-to-deposit ratios and industry

trends As of December 31 2009 and 2008 no concentration of loans within any portfolio category to any group of

borrowers engaged in similar activities or in similar business other than noted below exceeded 10.0% of total loans

except that as of such dates loans collateralized with mortgages on real estate represented 80% and 79.7% respectively of

the loan portfolio and were to borrowers in varying activities and businesses We develop and maintain profitable business

relationships with custom residential homebuilders primarily in Palm Beach Miami-Dade and Broward Counties and to

lesser extent in surrounding markets Business banking provides loan facilities to qualified custom homebuilders to support

the construction of speculative and pre-sold custom one-to-four family residences as well as lot acquisition loans guidance

lines of credit and for commercial real estate For purposes
of safety and soundness we have established self imposed limit

of up to 20.0% of the loan portfolio in speculative one-to-four family residences to such qualified homebuilders and limit of

up to 15.0% in speculative commercial real estate loans At December 31 2009 we had exposure of 4.6% and 6.1%

respectively of total loans related to residential and commercial loans in the program as compared to 9.8% and 8.4%

respectively at December 31 2008 of total loans related to the residential and commercial loans in the program

Generally interest on loans accrues and is credited to income based upon the principal balance outstanding It is

managements policy to discontinue the accrual of interest income and classify loan as non-accrual when principal or

interest is past due 90 days or more unless in the determination of management the principal and interest on the loan are

well collateralized and in the process of collection Consumer installment loans are generally charged-off after 90 days of

delinquency unless adequately collateralized and in the process of collection Loans are not retumed to accrual status until

principal and interest payments are brought current and future payments appear reasonably certain Interest accrued and

unpaid at the time loan is placed on non-accrual status is charged against interest income
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Real estate acquired by us as result of foreclosure or by deed in lieu of foreclosure is classified as other real estate owned

OREO OREO properties are recorded at the lower of cost or fair value less estimated selling costs and the estimated

loss if any is charged to the allowance for credit losses at the time it is transferred to OREO Further write-downs in OREO

are recorded at the time management believes additional deterioration in value has occurred and are charged to non-interest

expense We had $635000 of OREO property as of December 31 2009 of which $270000 was sold subsequent to

December 31 2009 at an $11000 gain There were no ORBO properties at December 31 2008

We have identified certain assets as risk elements These assets include non-accruing loans foreclosed real estate loans that

are contractually past due 90 days or more as to principal or interest payments and still accruing and troubled debt

restructurings All non-accruing loans and loans accruing 90 days or more are considered impaired and included in our

substandard classification These assets present more than the normal risk that we will be unable to eventually collect or

realize their full carrying value Our risk elements at December 31 2009 2008 2007 2006 and 2005 are as follows

Dollars in thousands

Assets Not

Subject to

Loss Share

Agreements

December 31 2009

Assets

Subject to

Loss Share

Agreements Total

December 31

2008 2007 2006 2005

Non-Accrual Loans

Residential 469

Home Equity Lines

Commercial Real Estate 8566

Construction and Land

Development 5258

Commercial and Industrial 717

Other__________

Total 15010

Accruing 90 days past due

Residential

Home Equity Lines

Commercial Real Estate

Construction and Land

Development

Commercial and Industrial 54

Other__________

Total 54

Trouble debt restructured loans 1990

Total non-performing assets and

restructured loans 17689

Ratios

Total non-accruing loans to total

loans

Total non-performing assets to

total assets

Total non-performing assets and

troubled debt restructured

loans to total assets

54

4287 21976

3094 3563

324

1075 9641 6792

5258

118 835 1433

4287 19297 8549

192

192

839

839

27

1085

1112

2059 87

541

54

_________
2059 87 541

Total non-accruing loans 15010

Accruing 90 days past due 54

Foreclosed real estate 635

Total non-performing assets 15699

4287

4287

19297

54

635

19986

1990

8549

2059

10608

192

87

279

1112

1112

839

541

1380

2.20% .63% 2.83%

1.55% .42% 1.97%

1.74% .42% 2.16%

10608 279 1112 1380

1.76% 0.10% 0.44% 0.72%

1.72% 0.07% 0.33% 0.56%

1.72% 0.07% 0.33% 0.56%
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Non-Accrual Loans Not Subject to Loss Share Agreements

Residential

Commercial real estate

Construction and land development..

Commercial and industrial

Delinquent Loans

Specific Allocation

of Allowance for

Loan Losses

1741

417

253

2411

Since December 31 2008 approximately $9.2 million in assets classified as non-performing assets at that time were paid off

or brought current Approximately $2.1 million were charged off and approximately $16.3 million were added excluding

assets acquired in the Republic transaction to non-accrual during the year Subsequent to December 31 2009 we had

$875000 in non-accrual loans under contract with no additional loss anticipated and $270000 in foreclosed real estate was

sold at an $11000 gain The $4.3 million in non performing assets acquired in the Republic transaction are all covered under

the Loss Share Agreements and we do not expect any additional future losses on these assets Significant loans included in

non-accrual loans not covered by Loss Share Agreements at December 31 2009 include $2.9 million secured by

commercial land in Broward County Florida appraised at November 2009 at $3.8 million $2.2 million secured by new

commercial office/warehouse property in Broward County Florida appraised January 2010 at $2.5 million $2 million

participation loan secured by land in Orlando Florida pro rata portion appraised November 2009 at $1.8 million $1.8

million secured by commercial building in Broward County Florida appraised at June 2009 at $1.5 million $1.7 million

secured by an office building in Boca Raton Florida appraised January 2010 at $1.8 million and an $810000 loan on an

office building on which contract has been executed and which is anticipated to close in the first quarter of 2010 The

remaining 14 non-accrual loans are each under $750000 We have specific reserves included in the allowance for loan losses

of $2.3 million for potential loan losses to non-accrual loans that are not covered by Loss Share Agreements We continue to

aggressively work to resolve each of these loans

Included in the accruing 60 89 category are loans with carrying value of $3.9 million and in the non-accrual and 90 day

and over category are 35 loans with carrying value of $4.0 million which are subject to the Loss Share Agreements

Dollars in thousands

Residential

Home Equity Lines

Commercial Real Estate

Construction and Land

Commercial and Industrial

Other

Total

Non-Accrual and

90 day accruing

and Over

Number Amount

24 3563

5384 14 9641

2150 5258

1047 16 889

14 8822 57 19351

Contractual

Balance of Non-

Accrual Loans

469

10691

5258

Partial

Charge-offs

through

December 31
2009

2125

Balance

December 31
2009

469

8566

5258

907 190 717

17325 2315 15010

As of December 31 2009

Accruing 60-89

Number Amount

241

Total

Number Amount

27 3804

21 15025

7408

19 1936

71 28173

17



Non-Accrual and

Accruing 60-89 90 day and Over Total

Number Amount Number Amount Number Amount

As of December 31 2008

Residential 248 2059 2307

EquityLines 286 324 610

Commercial Real Estate 37 6792 6829
Construction and Land 2000 2000

Commercial and Industrial 120 1433 1553

Other 220 220

Total 2911 14 10608 23 13519

Impaired Loans

December 31
2009

Amount of allowance for loan losses allocated 2611 1522

All non-accrual loans and troubled debt restructurings are included in impaired loans

We had no troubled debt restructurings as of December 31 2008 2007 2006 or 2005 At December 31 2009 we had

approximately $2.0 million of loans classified as troubled debt restructurings that are performing in accordance with the

restructured terms

During the years ended December 31 2009 2008 2007 2006 and 2005 interest income not recognized on non-accrual

loans but would have been recognized if these loans were current was approximately $436 $338 $65 $75 and $20

respectively dollars in thousands

Allowance for Loan Losses

At December 31 2009 the allowance for loan losses was $13.3 million or 1.95% of total loans At December 31 2009 no

portion of the allowance for loan losses related to the approximately $198.6 million of loans covered under the Loss Share

Agreements At December 31 2008 the allowance for loan losses was $5.8 million or 1.19% of total loans In originating

loans we recognize that credit losses will be experienced and the risk of loss will vary with among other things general

economic conditions the type of loan being made the creditworthiness of the borrower over the term of the loan and in the

case of collateralized loan the quality of the collateral for such loan The allowance for loan losses represents our

estimate of the allowance necessary to provide for probable incurred losses in the loan portfolio In making this

determination we analyze the ultimate collectability of the loans in our portfolio feedback provided by internal loan staff

the independent loan review function and information provided by examinations performed by regulatory agencies

On quarterly basis management reviews the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses Commercial credits are graded by

risk management and the loan review function validates the assigned credit risk grades In the event that loan is

downgraded it is included in the allowance analysis at the lower grade To establish the appropriate level of the allowance

we review and classify sample of loans including all impaired and nonperforming loans as to potential loss exposure

Our analysis of the allowance for loan losses consists of three components specific credit allocation established for

expected losses resulting from analysis developed through specific credit allocations on individual loans for which the

recorded investment in the loan exceeds the fair value ii general portfolio allocation based on historical loan loss

experience for each loan category and iii qualitative reserves based on general economic conditions as well as specific

economic factors in the markets in which we operate

The specific credit allocation component of the allowance for loan losses is based on regular analysis of loans where the

internal credit rating is at or below the substandard classification and the loan is determined to be impaired as determined by

management The amount of impairment if any is determined based on either the present value of expected future cash

flows discounted at the loans effective interest rate the market price of the loan or if the loan is collateral dependent the

Loans with no allocated allowance for loan losses

Loans with allocation for loan losses

Total Impaired

5900

11100

17000

December 31

2008

6740

7113

13853
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fair value of the underlying collateral less cost of sale loan may also be classified as substandard and not be classified as

impaired by management The allowance for these loans is calculated based on historical charge-offs for the substandard

loan categories combined with specifically evaluating the underlying credit and collateral of each loan loan may be

classified as substandard by management if for example the primary source of repayment is insufficient the financial

condition of the borrower and/or guarantors has deteriorated or there are chronic delinquencies

Substandard loans December 31 2009

Loans Not Subject Loans Subject

Dollars in thousands to Loss Share to Loss Share December 31

Agreements Agreements Total 2008

SubstandardImpaired 17000 17000 8549

Substandard Not Impaired 38296 21656 59952 20404

Total Loans Classified as Substandard
.. 55296 21656 76952 28953

All non-accrual loans troubled debt restructurings and acquired loans which we assessed at the time of acquisition to be

improbable of collecting all contractual required payments are included in substandard loans

The total of substandard loans which include all impaired loans non-accrual loans troubled debt restructurings and loans

acquired in the Republic transaction Equitable Merger and Citrus Acquisition for which we assessed at the time of

acquisition to be improbable of collecting all contractually required payments totaled $77.0 million at December 31 2009

and $29.0 million at December 31 2008 Included in the $77.0 million in substandard are $19.8 million net of non

accretable discount of $16.5 million and accretable discount of $3.2 million acquired in the Republic transaction which we

assessed at the time of acquisition to be improbable of collecting all contractually required payments of which $4.3 million

are non-accrual all of which are covered by the Loss Share Agreements and management does not expect any additional

losses In addition at December 31 2009 we identified approximately $17.0 million or 2.5% of total loans in loans we

have classified as impaired which are included in our substandard classification This compares to $13.9 million or 2.9% of

total loans at December 31 2008 At December 31 2009 and December 31 2008 the specific credit allocation included in

the allowance for loan losses for loans impaired was approximately $2.6 million and $1.5 million respectively

Approximately $6.2 million of loans acquired in the Equitable Merger and Citrus Acquisition which we assessed at the time

of acquisition to be improbable of collecting all contractually required payments are included in the substandard

classification at December 31 2009 as compared to $15.1 million at December 31 2008 Of these loans $4.7 million at

December 31 2009 and $0 at December 31 2008 are included in non-accrual loans and were considered impaired at

December 31 2009

We determine the general portfolio allocation component of the allowance for loan losses statistically using loss analysis

that examines historical loan loss experience adjusted for current environmental factors We perform the loss analysis

quarterly and update loss factors regularly based on actual experience The general portfolio allocation element of the

allowance for loan losses also includes consideration of the amounts necessary for concentrations and changes in portfolio

mix and volume

We also have loans classified as Special Mention We classify loans as Special Mention if there are declining trends in the

borrowers business questions regarding condition or value of the collateral and other weaknesses At December 31 2009

we had $24.0 million 4.8% of outstanding loans in the Special Mention category which compares to $13.3 million 2.7% of

outstanding loans at December 31 2008 If there is further deterioration on these loans they may be classified substandard

in the future and depending on the fair value of the loan specific credit allocation may be needed resulting in increased

provisions for loan losses

We base the allowance for loan losses on estimates and ultimate realized losses may vary from current estimates We review

these estimates quarterly and as adjustments either positive or negative become necessary we make corresponding

increase or decrease in the provision for loan losses The methodology used to determine the adequacy of the allowance for

loan losses is consistent with prior years and there were no reallocations

Management remains watchful of credit quality issues Should the economic climate deteriorate from current levels

borrowers may experience difficulty repaying loans and the level of non-performing loans charge-offs and delinquencies

could rise and require further increases in loan loss provisions
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During the years ended December 31 2009 2008 2007 2006 and 2005 the activity in our allowance for loan losses was as

follows

2009 2008

5799 2070

13240 1910

2731

915

_______
5799

2005

1328

194

Net charge-offs recoveries /average total loans 1.14% 0.21% 0.08% 0.03% 0.27%

The following table reflects the allowance allocation per loan category and percent of loans in each category to total loans for

The following tables reflect charge-offs and recoveries per loan category

Net charge-offs for the year ended December 31 2009 were approximately $5.8 million compared to $913000 for the year

ended December 31 2008 Approximately $2.1 million of the charge-offs were the result of sale or pending sale of the

loan or collateral approximately $1.7 million of the charge-offs were result of estimated partial losses on non-accrual loans

as of December 31 2009 based on the net realizable value of the collateral and the remainder generally included 100%

charge-offs of commercial loans with minimum collateral home equity loans and consumer loans

Deposits

We maintain and enhance full range of deposit accounts to meet the needs of the residents and businesses in our primary

service area Products include an array of checking account programs for individuals and small businesses including money
market accounts certificates of deposit IRA accounts and sweep investment capabilities We seek to make our services

convenient to the community by offering 24-hour ATM access at some of our facilities access to other ATM networks

available at other local financial institutions and retail establishments telephone banking services to include account inquiry

and balance transfers and courier service to certain customers who meet minimum qualifications We also take advantage of

the use of technology by allowing our customers banking access via the Internet and various advanced systems for cash

management for our business customers The rapid decline in the price of technology is now allowing smaller banks the

ability to offer many of the sophisticated products previously only available to customers of large banks It is our strategy to

have mix of core deposits which favors non-interest bearing deposits in the range of 15% to 25% of total deposits with

time deposits comprising 50% or less of total core deposits This strategy to be successful requires high levels of

relationship banking supported by strong distribution and product strategies In addition at December 31 2009 we had

Dollars in thousands

Balance at beginning of period

Provision charged to expense

Effect of acquisition

Charge-offs

Recoveries

Balance at end of period

Year ended December 31
2007 2006

2149 1893

145 181

5788
31

13282

502
278

2070

73
148

2149

15
386

1893

the periods indicated

Dollars in thousands

Commercial loans

Real estate loans

Consumer loans

Other

Total

Amount

3415

8973

232

December 31
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

Amount Amount Amount

17% 1870 19% 636 20% 1101

81% 3807 79% 1165 77% 1012

2% 16 2% 48 3% 36

662 106 221

$13282 100% 5799 100% 2070 100% 2149 100

20

79

Amount

1044

737

55

21%

75%

4%

57

1893

Dollars in thousands

Real estate

Commercial

Consumer and others

Total

December 31

2009 2008 2007 2006

Charge- Charge- Charge- Charge
Offs Recoveries offs Recoveries Offs Recoveries offs Recoveries

4199 671 263 18

1549 27 244 502 15 62 119 15 61

40 11 11

5788 31 915 502 278 73 148 15 386

2005

Charge
offs Recoveries

325
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approximately $230 million in deposits to foreign nationals banking in the United States which were assumed as part of the

Republic transaction

As of December 31 20092008 and 2007 the distribution by type of our deposit accounts was as follows

December 31

2009 2008 2007

Avg Average Avg Average Avg
Rate Balance Rate Balance Rate

__________________ 93451 66101

47851 0.95% 35722 1.80%

92959 1.94% 64984 3.74%

9585 0.72% 3010 0.33%

__________________ 157601 3.72% 79520 5.25%

__________________ 307996 2.66% 183236 3.96%

___________________
401447 2.04% 249337 2.91%

As of December 31 2009 certificates of deposit of $100000 or more mature as follows

Dollars in thousands

Up to months

to months

6to 12 months

Over 12 months

Weighted

Amount Average Rate

72598

37328

76589

1.93%

1.8 1%

1.93%

26151 2.49%

212666 1.98%

Maturity terms service fees and withdrawal penalties are established by us on periodic basis The determination of rates

and terms is predicated on funds acquisition and liquidity requirements rates paid by competitors growth goals and federal

regulations

Borrowings

The following tables reflect borrowing activity for the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007

Dollars in thousands

Repurchase agreements

Fed Funds purchased

FHLB advances

Other borrowings

Total

Weighted YTD
Actual Avg Rate Avg

22343 0.23/ 13563

768

5000 28751

5091 5181

32434 48263

Avg

Rate

Paid Actual

0.23% 18129

0.91%

1.30%

6.32%

56013

5250

79392

December 31 2008

Weighted YTD

Avg Rate Avg

0.29% 19038

1023

37654

3899

61614

Avg

Rate

Paid

0.92%

2.74%

2.50%

6.49%

Repurchase agreements

Fed Funds purchased

FHLB advances

17836

1809

4.63% 27107

46752

Avg
Rate

Paid

3.78%

5.75%

5.30%

Dollars in thousands

Average

Balance

Noninterest bearing accounts 108716

Interest bearing accounts

NOW accounts

Money market accounts

Savings accounts

Certificates of deposit

Total interest bearing deposits

Average total deposits

63150 0.24%

105755 1.00%

14842 0.65%

183550 2.84%

367297 1.77%

476013 1.37%

December 31 2009

4.60/

6.59/

1.08%

6.49%

December 31 2007

Weighted YTD
Actual Avg Rate

27509 2.39%

20000

Total 47509
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Maximum balance at any given month end during the periods of analysis is reflected in the following tables

December 31
Dollars in thousands 2009 2008 2007

Maximum Balance at Maximum Balance at Maximum Balance

any month-end any month-end at any month-end

Repurchase agreements 22343 Dec-09 23438 Jan-08 27537 Jan-07

Fed Funds purchased 6032 Aug-09 6301 Aug-08 7819 May-07
FHLB advances 40000 Mar-09 56013 Dec-08 30500 Feb-07
Other borrowings 5500 Jan-09 5500 Jul-08

Competition

Commercial banking in Florida including our market is highly competitive due in large part to Floridas profile of

population growth and wealth Our market contains not only community banks but also significant numbers of the countrys

largest commercial and wealth management/trust banks

Interest rates both on loans and deposits and prices of fee-based services are significant competitive factors among financial

institutions generally Other important competitive factors include office location office hours the quality of customer

service community reputation continuity of personnel and services and in the case of larger commercial customers relative

lending limits and the ability to offer sophisticated cash management and other commercial banking services Many of our

larger competitors have greater resources broader geographic markets more extensive branch networks and higher lending
limits than we do They also can offer more products and services and can better afford and make more effective use of media

advertising support services and electronic technology than we can

Our largest competitors in the market include Bank of America SunTrust Bank Wells Fargo BBT PNC Citigroup and

Regions Financial and these institutions
capture the majority of the deposits According to data provided by the FDIC as of

June 30 2009 the latest date for which data was publicly available our market share on pro forma basis was less than 2%
in each county where we operate We believe that community banks can compete successfully by providing personalized

service and making timely local decisions and thus draw business away from larger institutions in the market We also

believe that further consolidation in the banking industry is likely to create additional opportunities for community banks to

capture deposits from affected customers who may become dissatisfied as their financial institutions change ownership In

addition we believe that the continued growth of our banking markets affords us an opportunity to capture new deposits from

new residents

Seasonalitv

We do not believe our base of business to be seasonal in nature

Marketin and Distribution

In order to market our deposit products we use local print advertising and provide sales incentives for our employees and

offer special events to generate customer traffic

Our Board of Directors and management team realize the importance of forging partnerships within the community as

method of expanding our customer base and serving the needs of our community In this regard we are an active participant
in various community activities and organizations Participation in such events and organizations allows management to

determine what additional products and services are needed in our community as well as assisting in our efforts to determine

credit needs in accordance with the Community Reinvestment Act

Website Access to Our Reports

Our Internet website is www stunitedbankfl.com Our annual reports on Form 10-K quarterly reports on Form 10-Q
current reports on Form 8-K including any amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to section 13a or 15d
and reports filed pursuant to Sections 16 13d and 13g of the Exchange Act are available free of charge through our

website as soon as reasonably practicable after they are electronically filed with or furnished to the Securities and Exchange
Commission The information on our website is not incorporated by reference into this report
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Regulatory Considerations

We must comply with state and federal banking laws and regulations that control virtually all aspects of our operations

These laws and regulations generally aim to protect our depositors not necessarily our shareholders or our creditors Any

changes in applicable laws or regulations may materially affect our business and prospects Proposed legislative or regulatory

changes may also affect our operations The following description summarizes some of the laws and regulations to which we

are subject References to applicable statutes and regulations are brief summaries do not purport to be complete and are

qualified in their entirety by reference to such statutes and regulations

Regulatory Reform

On June 17 2009 the U.S Treasury Department released white paper entitled Financial Regulatory ReformA New

Foundation Rebuilding Financial Regulation and Supervision which outlined the current administrations plan to make

extensive and wide ranging reforms to the U.S financial regulatory system The plan contains proposals to among other

things create new financial regulatory agency called the Consumer Financial Protection Agency ii enhance

supervision and regulation of securitization markets iii dispose of the interstate branching framework of the Riegle-Neal

Interstate Banking and Branching Efficiency Act of 1994 the Interstate Banking Act by giving national and state-

chartered banks the unrestricted ability to branch across state lines iv establish strengthened capital and prudential

standards for banks and bank holding companies increase supervision and regulation of large financial firms and vi

create an Office of National Insurance within the U.S Treasury Department

On December 10 2009 the U.S House of Representatives approved The Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection

Act which included some of the U.S Treasury Departments proposed reforms The House bill provides for among other

things the creation of the Consumer Financial Protection Agency ii reforming mortgage lending and predatory lending

practices iii increased supervision and regulation of large financial firms iv the creation of federal insurance office and

executive compensation reform

We are unsure of what regulatory reforms if any will be adopted Thus this Regulatory Considerations section discusses

what we believe to be the most significant laws we currently face without regard to the impact of these significant but not yet

adopted reforms

The Company

Bancorp is registered with the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System the Federal Reserve as financial

holding company under the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act and is registered with the Federal Reserve as bank holding company

under the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956 As result we are subject to supervisory regulation and examination by the

Federal Reserve The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act the Bank Holding Company Act and other federal laws subject financial

holding companies to particular restrictions on the types of activities in which they may engage and to range of supervisory

requirements and activities including regulatory enforcement actions for violations of laws and regulations

Permitted Activities

The Grarnm-Leach-Bliley Act modernized the U.S banking system by allowing bank holding companies that qualify as

financial holding companies to engage in broad range
of financial and related activities ii allowing insurers and other

financial service companies to acquire banks iii removing restrictions that applied to bank holding company ownership of

securities firms and mutual fund advisory companies and iv establishing the overall regulatory scheme applicable to bank

holding companies that also engage in insurance and securities operations The general effect of the law was to establish

comprehensive framework to permit affiliations among commercial banks insurance companies securities firms and other

financial service providers Activities that are financial in nature are broadly defined to include not only banking insurance

and securities activities but also merchant banking and additional activities that the Federal Reserve in consultation with the

Secretary of the Treasury determines to be financial in nature incidental to such financial activities or complementary

activities that do not pose
substantial risk to the safety and soundness of depository institutions or the financial system

generally

In contrast to financial holding companies bank holding companies are limited to managing or controlling banks furnishing

services to or performing services for its subsidiaries and engaging in other activities that the Federal Reserve determines by

regulation or order to be so closely related to banking or managing or controlling banks as to be proper incident thereto

Except for the activities relating to financial holding companies permissible under the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act these
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restrictions will apply to us In determining whether particular activity is permissible the Federal Reserve must consider

whether the performance of such an activity reasonably can be expected to produce benefits to the public that outweigh

possible adverse effects Possible benefits include greater convenience increased competition and gains in efficiency

Possible adverse effects include undue concentration of resources decreased or unfair competition conflicts of interest and

unsound banking practices Despite prior approval the Federal Reserve may order bank holding company or its subsidiaries

to terminate any activity or to terminate ownership or control of any subsidiary when the Federal Reserve has reasonable

cause to believe that serious risk to the financial safety soundness or stability of any bank subsidiary of that bank holding

company may result from such an activity

Changes in Control

Subject to certain exceptions the Bank Holding Company Act and the Change in Bank Control Act together with the

applicable regulations require Federal Reserve approval or depending on the circumstances no notice of disapproval prior

to any person or company acquiring control of bank or bank holding company conclusive presumption of control

exists if an individual or company acquires the power directly or indirectly to direct the management or policies of an

insured depository institution or to vote 25% or more of any class of voting securities of any insured depository institution

rebuttable presumption of control exists if person or company acquires 10% or more but less than 25% of any class of

voting securities of an insured depository institution and either the institution has registered securities under Section 12 of the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934 or as we will refer to as the Exchange Act or no other person will own greater percentage

of that class of voting securities immediately after the acquisition Our common stock is registered under Section 12 of the

Exchange Act

The Federal Reserve Board maintains policy statement on minority equity investments in banks and bank holding

companies that permits investors to acquire up to 33 percent of the total equity of target bank or bank holding company

subject to certain conditions including but not limited to that the investing firm does not acquire 15 percent or more of any

class of voting securities and designate at least one director without triggering the various regulatory requirements

associated with control

As bank holding company we are required to obtain prior approval from the Federal Reserve before acquiring all or

substantially all of the assets of bank or bank holding company ii acquiring direct or indirect ownership or control of

more than 5% of the outstanding voting stock of any bank or bank holding company unless we own majority of such

banks voting shares or iii merging or consolidating with any other bank or bank holding company In determining

whether to approve proposed bank acquisition federal bank regulators will consider among other factors the effect of the

acquisition on competition the public benefits expected to be received from the acquisition the projected capital ratios and

levels on post-acquisition basis and the acquiring institutions record of addressing the credit needs of the communities it

serves including the needs of low and moderate income neighborhoods consistent with the safe and sound operation of the

bank under the Community Reinvestment Act of 1977

Under Florida law person or entity proposing to directly or indirectly acquire control of Florida bank must also obtain

permission from the Florida Office of Financial Regulation Florida statutes define control as either indirectly or

directly owning controlling or having power to vote 25% or more of the voting securities of bank controlling the

election of majority of directors of bank owning controlling or having power to vote 10% or more of the voting

securities as well as directly or indirectly exercising controlling influence over management or policies of bank or as

determined by the Florida Office of Financial Regulation These requirements will affect us because 1st United Bank is

chartered under Florida law and changes in control of us are indirect changes in control of 1St United Bank

Tying

Bank holding companies and their affiliates are prohibited from tying the provision of certain services such as extending

credit to other services or products offered by the holding company or its affiliates such as deposit products

Capital Dividends Source of Strength

The Federal Reserve imposes certain capital requirements on bank holding companies under the Bank Holding Company

Act including minimum leverage ratio and minimum ratio of qualifying capital to risk-weighted assets These

requirements are described below under Capital Regulations Subject to its capital requirements and certain other

restrictions we are able to borrow money to make capital contribution to 1st United Bank and such loans may be repaid

from dividends paid from 1st United Bank to us
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The ability of 1St United Bank to pay dividends however will be subject to regulatory restrictions that are described below

under Dividends We are also able to raise capital for contributions to 1st United Bank by issuing securities without having

to receive regulatory approval subject to compliance with federal and state securities laws

In accordance with Federal Reserve policy we are expected to act as source of financial strength to 1st United Bank and to

commit resources to support 1st United Bank in circumstances in which we might not otherwise do so In furtherance of this

policy the Federal Reserve may require financial holding company to terminate any activity or relinquish control of

nonbank subsidiary other than nonbank subsidiary of bank upon the Federal Reserves determination that such activity

or control constitutes serious risk to the financial soundness or stability of any subsidiary depository institution of the bank

holding company Further federal bank regulatory authorities have additional discretion to require financial holding

company to divest itself of any bank or nonbank subsidiary if the agency determines that divestiture may aid the depository

institutions financial condition

1St United Bank

lS United Bank is banking institution that is chartered by and headquartered in the State of Florida and it is subject to

supervision and regulation by the Florida Office of Financial Regulation The Florida Office of Financial Regulation

supervises and regulates all areas of 1st United Banks operations including without limitation the making of loans the

issuance of securities the conduct of 1st United Banks corporate affairs the satisfaction of capital adequacy requirements

the payment of dividends and the establishment or closing of banking centers 1st United Bank is also member bank of the

Federal Reserve System which makes 1st United Banks operations subject to broad federal regulation and oversight by the

Federal Reserve In addition 1st United Banks deposit accounts are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation

FDIC to the maximum extent permitted by law and the FDIC has certain enforcement powers over st United Bank

As state chartered banking institution in the State of Florida 1st United Bank is empowered by statute subject to the

limitations contained in those statutes to take and pay interest on savings and time deposits to accept demand deposits to

make loans on residential and other real estate to make consumer and commercial loans to invest with certain limitations in

equity securities and in debt obligations of banks and corporations and to provide various other banking services for the

benefit of 1st United Banks customers Various consumer laws and regulations also affect the operations of 1st United Bank

including state usury laws laws relating to fiduciaries consumer credit and equal credit opportunity laws and fair credit

reporting In addition the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation Improvement Act of 1991 FDICIA prohibits insured

state chartered institutions from conducting activities as principal that are not permitted for national banks bank however

may engage in an otherwise prohibited activity if it meets its minimum capital requirements and the FDIC determines that the

activity does not present significant risk to the Deposit Insurance Fund

Reserves

The Federal Reserve requires all depository institutions to maintain reserves against some transaction accounts primarily

NOW and Super NOW checking accounts The balances maintained to meet the reserve requirements imposed by the

Federal Reserve may be used to satisfy liquidity requirements An institution may borrow from the Federal Reserve Bank

discount window as secondary source of funds provided that the institution meets the Federal Reserve Banks credit

standards

Dividends

1St United Bank is subject to legal limitations on the frequency and amount of dividends that can be paid to us The Federal

Reserve may restrict the ability of 1st United Bank to pay dividends if such payments would constitute an unsafe or unsound

banking practice These regulations and restrictions may limit our ability to obtain funds from 1st United Bank for our cash

needs including funds for acquisitions and the payment of dividends interest and operating expenses

In addition Florida law also places restrictions on the declaration of dividends from state chartered banks to their holding

companies Pursuant to the Florida Financial Institutions Code the board of directors of state chartered banks after charging

off bad debts depreciation and other worthless assets if any and making provisions for reasonably anticipated future losses

on loans and other assets may quarterly semi-annually or annually declare dividend of up to the aggregate net profits of

that period combined with the banks retained net profits for the preceding two years and with the approval of the Florida

Office of Financial Regulation and Federal Reserve declare dividend from retained net profits which accrued prior to the

preceding two years Before declaring such dividends 20% of the net profits for the preceding period as is covered by the

dividend must be transferred to the surplus fund of the bank until this fund becomes equal to the amount of the banks

common stock then issued and outstanding state chartered bank may not declare any dividend if its net income loss
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from the current year combined with the retained net income loss for the preceding two years aggregates loss or ii the

payment of such dividend would cause the capital account of the bank to fall below the minimum amount required by law

regulation order or any written agreement with the Florida Office of Financial Regulation or federal regulatory agency

Insurance ofAccounts and Other Assessments

We pay our deposit insurance assessments to the Deposit Insurance Fund which is determined through risk-based

assessment system

Our deposit accounts are currently insured by the Deposit Insurance Fund generally up to maximum of $100000 per

separately insured depositor except for certain retirement plan accounts which are insured up to $250000 however the

Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 2008 temporarily raised the basic limit on federal deposit insurance coverage from

$100000 to $250000 per depositor The basic deposit insurance limit will return to $100000 after December 31 2013

In addition on November 26 2008 the FDIC issued final rule under its Transaction Account Guarantee Program

TAGP pursuant to which the FDIC fully guarantees all non-interest bearing transaction deposit accounts including all

personal and business checking deposit accounts that do not earn interest lawyer trust accounts where interest does not

accrue to the account owner JOLlA and NOW accounts with interest rates no higher than 0.50% Thus under TAGP all

money in these accounts is fully insured by the FDIC regardless of dollar amount This second increase to coverage was

originally in effect through December 31 2009 but was extended until June 30 2010 unless we elected to opt out of

participating in the expanded coverage which we did not do The cost to us for participating in this expanded deposit

insurance coverage program is 10-basis point surcharge to our current insurance assessment rate with respect to the portions

of the TAGP covered deposit accounts not otherwise covered by the existing deposit insurance limit of $250000

Under the current assessment system the FDIC assigns an institution to one of four risk categories with the first category

having two sub-categories based on the institutions most recent supervisory and capital evaluations designed to measure

risk Total base assessment rates currently range from 0.07% of deposits for an institution in the highest sub-category of the

highest category to 0.775% of deposits for an institution in the lowest category On May 22 2009 the FDIC imposed

special assessment of five basis points on each FDIC-insured depository institutions assets minus its Tier capital as of

June 30 2009 This special assessment was collected on September 30 2009 and resulted in an additional charge to us of

$295000 Finally on November 12 2009 the FDJC adopted new rule requiring insured institutions to prepay on December

30 2009 estimated quarterly risk-based assessments for the fourth quarter of 2009 and for all of 2010 2011 and 2012 We
prepaid an assessment of $3.3 million which incorporated uniform 3.00 basis point increase effective January 2011

In addition all FDIC insured institutions are required to pay assessments to the FDIC at an annual rate of approximately one

basis point of insured deposits to fund interest payments on bonds issued by the Financing Corporation an agency of the

federal government established to recapitalize the predecessor to the Savings Association Insurance Fund These assessments

will continue until the Financing Corporation bonds mature in 2017 through 2019

Transactions With Affiliates

Pursuant to Sections 23A and 23B of the Federal Reserve Act and Regulation the authority of 1st United Bank to engage
in transactions with related parties or affiliates or to make loans to insiders is limited Loan transactions with an affiliate

generally must be collateralized and certain transactions between 1st United Bank and its affiliates including the sale of

assets the payment of money or the provision of services must be on terms and conditions that are substantially the same or

at least as favorable to 1st United Bank as those prevailing for comparable nonaffiliated transactions In addition 1st United

Bank generally may not purchase securities issued or underwritten by affiliates

Loans to executive officers directors or to any person who directly or indirectly or acting through or in concert with one or

more persons owns controls or has the power to vote more than 10% of any class of voting securities of bank which we
refer to as 10% Shareholders or to any political or campaign committee the funds or services of which will benefit those

executive officers directors or 10% Shareholders or which is controlled by those executive officers directors or 10%

Shareholders are subject to Sections 22g and 22h of the Federal Reserve Act and their corresponding regulations

Regulation and Section 13k of the Exchange Act relating to the prohibition on personal loans to executives which

exempts financial institutions in compliance with the insider lending restrictions of Section 22h of the Federal Reserve Act
Among other things these loans must be made on terms substantially the same as those prevailing on transactions made to

unaffiliated individuals and certain extensions of credit to those persons must first be approved in advance by disinterested

majority of the entire board of directors Section 22h of the Federal Reserve Act prohibits loans to any of those individuals

where the aggregate amount exceeds an amount equal to 15% of an institutions unimpaired capital and surplus plus an
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additional 10% of unimpaired capital and surplus in the case of loans that are fully secured by readily marketable collateral

or when the aggregate amount on all of the extensions of credit outstanding to all of these persons would exceed 1St United

Banks unimpaired capital and unimpaired surplus Section 22g identifies limited circumstances in which 1st United Bank

is permitted to extend credit to executive officers

Comm unit Reinvestment Act

The Community Reinvestment Act and its corresponding regulations are intended to encourage banks to help meet the credit

needs of their service area including low and moderate income neighborhoods consistent with the safe and sound operations

of the banks These regulations provide for regulatory assessment of banks record in meeting the credit needs of its service

area Federal banking agencies are required to make public rating of banks performance under the Community

Reinvestment Act The Federal Reserve considers banks Community Reinvestment Act rating when the bank submits an

application to establish banking centers merge or acquire the assets and assume the liabilities of another bank In the case of

financial holding company the Community Reinvestment Act performance record of all banks involved in the merger or

acquisition are reviewed in connection with the filing of an application to acquire ownership or control of shares or assets of

bank or to merge with any other financial holding company An unsatisfactory record can substantially delay or block the

transaction United Bank received satisfactory rating on its most recent Community Reinvestment Act assessment

Capital Reulations

The Federal Reserve has adopted risk-based capital adequacy guidelines for financial holding companies and their subsidiary

state-chattered banks that are members of the Federal Reserve System The risk-based capital guidelines are designed to

make regulatory capital requirements more sensitive to differences in risk profiles among banks and financial holding

companies to account for off-balance sheet exposure to minimize disincentives for holding liquid assets and to achieve

greater consistency in evaluating the capital adequacy of major banks throughout the world Under these guidelines assets

and off-balance sheet items are assigned to broad risk categories each with designated weights The resulting capital ratios

represent capital as percentage of total risk-weighted assets and off-balance sheet items

The current guidelines require all financial holding companies and federally regulated banks to maintain minimum risk-

based total capital ratio equal to 8% of which at least 4% must be Tier Capital Tier Capital which includes common

shareholders equity noncumulative perpetual preferred stock and limited amount of cumulative perpetual preferred stock

and trust preferred securities less certain goodwill items and other intangible assets is required to equal at least 4% of risk-

weighted assets The remainder Tier II Capital may consist of an allowance for loan losses of up to 1.25% of risk-

weighted assets ii excess of qualifying perpetual preferred stock iii hybrid capital instruments iv perpetual debt

mandatory convertible securities and vi subordinated debt and intermediate-term preferred stock up to 50% of Tier

Capital Total capital is the sum of Tier and Tier II Capital less reciprocal holdings of other banking organizations capital

instruments investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries and any other deductions as determined by the appropriate regulator

determined on case by case basis or as matter of policy after formal rule making

In computing total risk-weighted assets bank and financial holding company assets are given risk-weights of 0% 20% 50%

and 100% In addition certain off-balance sheet items are given similar credit conversion factors to convert them to asset

equivalent amounts to which an appropriate risk-weight will apply Most loans will be assigned to the 100% risk category

except for performing first mortgage loans fully secured by 1- to 4-family and certain multi-family residential property

which carry 50% risk rating Most investment securities including primarily general obligation claims on states or other

political subdivisions of the United States will be assigned to the 20% category except for municipal or state revenue bonds

which have 50% risk-weight and direct obligations of the U.S Treasury or obligations backed by the full faith and credit of

the U.S Government which have 0% risk-weight In covering off-balance sheet items direct credit substitutes including

general guarantees and standby letters of credit backing financial obligations are given 100% conversion factor

Transaction-related contingencies such as bid bonds standby letters of credit backing non-financial obligations and undrawn

commitments including commercial credit lines with an initial maturity of more than one year have 50% conversion

factor Short-term commercial letters of credit are converted at 20% and certain short-term unconditionally cancelable

commitments have 0% factor

The federal bank regulatory authorities have also adopted regulations that supplement the risk-based guidelines These

regulations generally require banks and financial holding companies to maintain minimum level of Tier Capital to total

assets less goodwill of 4% the leverage ratio The Federal Reserve permits bank to maintain minimum 3% leverage

ratio if the bank achieves rating under the CAMELS rating system in its most recent examination as long as the bank is

not experiencing or anticipating significant growth The CAMELS rating is non-public system used by bank regulators to
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rate the strength and weaknesses of financial institutions The CAMELS rating is comprised of six categories capital

adequacy asset quality management earnings liquidity and sensitivity to market risk

Banking organizations experiencing or anticipating significant growth as well as those organizations which do not satisfy the

criteria described above will be required to maintain minimum leverage ratio ranging generally from 4% to 5% The bank

regulators also continue to consider tangible Tier leverage ratio in evaluating proposals for expansion or new activities

The tangible Tier leverage ratio is the ratio of banking organizations Tier Capital less deductions for intangibles

otherwise includable in Tier Capital to total tangible assets

Federal law and regulations establish capital-based regulatory scheme designed to promote early intervention for troubled

banks and require the FDIC to choose the least expensive resolution of bank failures The capital-based regulatory framework

contains five categories of compliance with regulatory capital requirements including well capitalized adequately

capitalized undercapitalized significantly undercapitalized and critically undercapitalized To qualify as well-

capitalized institution bank must have leverage ratio of no less than 5% Tier Capital ratio of no less than 6% and

total risk-based capital ratio of no less than 10% and the bank must not be under any order or directive from the appropriate

regulatory agency to meet and maintain specific capital level Generally financial institution must be well capitalized

before the Federal Reserve will approve an application by financial holding company to acquire or merge with bank or

bank holding company

Under the regulations the applicable agency can treat an institution as if it were in the next lower category if the agency

determines after notice and an opportunity for hearing that the institution is in an unsafe or unsound condition or is

engaging in an unsafe or unsound practice The degree of regulatory scrutiny of financial institution will increase and the

permissible activities of the institution will decrease as it moves downward through the capital categories Institutions that

fall into one of the three undercapitalized categories may be required to submit capital restoration plan ii raise

additional capital iii restrict their growth deposit interest rates and other activities iv improve their management
eliminate management fees or vi divest themselves of all or part of their operations Financial holding companies

controlling financial institutions can be called upon to boost the institutions capital and to partially guarantee the institutions

performance under their capital restoration plans

It should be noted that the minimum ratios referred to above are merely guidelines and the bank regulators possess
the

discretionary authority to require higher capital ratios

We currently exceed the requirements contained in the applicable regulations policies and directives pertaining to capital

adequacy to be classified as well capitalized and are unaware of any material violation or alleged violation of these

regulations policies or directives Rapid growth poor loan portfolio performance or poor earnings performance or

combination of these factors could change our capital position in relatively short period of time making additional capital

infusions necessary

Interstate Bankin and Branchin

The Bank Holding Company Act was amended by the Interstate Banking Act The Interstate Banking Act provides that

adequately capitalized and managed financial and bank holding companies are permitted to acquire banks in any state

State laws prohibiting interstate banking or discriminating against out-of-state banks are preempted States are not permitted

to enact laws opting out of this provision however states are allowed to adopt minimum age restriction requiring that

target banks located within the state be in existence for period of years up to maximum of five years before bank may
be subject to the Interstate Banking Act The Interstate Banking Act establishes deposit caps which prohibit acquisitions that

result in the acquiring company controlling 30% or more of the deposits of insured banks and thrift institutions held in the

state in which the target maintains branch or 10% or more of the deposits nationwide States have the authority to waive the

30% deposit cap State-level deposit caps are not preempted as long as they do not discriminate against out-of-state

companies and the federal deposit caps apply only to initial entry acquisitions

The Interstate Banking Act also provides that adequately capitalized and managed banks are able to engage in interstate

branching by merging with banks in different states Unlike the interstate banking provision discussed above states were

permitted to opt out of the application of the interstate merger provision by enacting specific legislation

Florida responded to the enactment of the Interstate Banking Act by enacting the Florida Interstate Branching Act the

Florida Branching Act The purpose of the Florida Branching Act was to permit interstate branching through merger
transactions under the Interstate Banking Act Under the Florida Branching Act with the prior approval of the Florida Office

of Financial Regulation Florida bank may establish maintain and operate one or more branches in state other than the
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State of Florida pursuant to merger transaction in which the Florida bank is the resulting bank In addition the Florida

Branching Act provides that one or more Florida banks may enter into merger transaction with one or more out-of-state

banks and an out-of-state bank resulting from this transaction may maintain and operate the branches of the Florida bank that

participated in this merger An out-of-state bank however is not permitted to acquire Florida bank in merger transaction

unless the Florida bank has been in existence and continuously operated for more than three years

Anti-money Laundering

The Uniting and Strengthening America by Providing Appropriate Tools Required to Intercept and Obstruct Terrorism Act of

2001 USA PATRIOT Act provides the federal government with additional powers to address terrorist threats through

enhanced domestic security measures expanded surveillance powers increased information sharing and broadened anti-

money laundering requirements By way of amendments to the Bank Secrecy Act BSA the USA PATRIOT Act puts in

place measures intended to encourage information sharing among bank regulatory and law enforcement agencies In addition

certain provisions of the USA PATRIOT Act impose affirmative obligations on broad range
of financial institutions

Among other requirements the USA PATRIOT Act and the related Federal Reserve regulations require banks to establish

anti-money laundering programs that include at minimum

internal policies procedures and controls designed to implement and maintain the savings associations

compliance with all of the requirements of the USA PATRIOT Act the BSA and related laws and

regulations

systems and procedures for monitoring and reporting of suspicious transactions and activities

designated compliance officer

employee training

an independent audit function to test the anti-money laundering program

procedures to verify the identity of each customer upon the opening of accounts and

heightened due diligence policies procedures and controls applicable to certain foreign accounts and

relationships

Additionally the USA PATRIOT Act requires each financial institution to develop customer identification program

CIP as part of its anti-money laundering program The key components of the CIP are identification verification

government list comparison notice and record retention The purpose
of the CIP is to enable the financial institution to

determine the true identity and anticipated account activity of each customer To make this determination among other

things the financial institution must collect certain information from customers at the time they enter into the customer

relationship with the financial institution This information must be verified within reasonable time through documentary

and non-documentary methods Furthermore all customers must be screened against any CIP-related government lists of

known or suspected terrorists We and our affiliates have adopted policies procedures and controls to comply with the BSA

and the USA PATRIOT Act

Federal Home Loan Bank System

1st United Bank is member of the FHLB of Atlanta which is one of 12 regional Federal Home Loan Banks Each FHLB

serves as reserve or central bank for its members within its assigned region It is funded primarily from funds deposited by

member institutions and proceeds from the sale of consolidated obligations of the FHLB system It makes loans to members

i.e advances in accordance with policies and procedures established by the board of trustees of the FHLB
As member of the FHLB of Atlanta 1St United Bank is required to own capital stock in the FHLB in an amount at least

equal to 0.18% or 18 basis points of the 1st United Banks total assets at the end of each calendar year plus 4.5% of its

outstanding advances borrowings from the FHLB of Atlanta under the activity-based stock ownership requirement On

December 31 2009 1st United Bank was in compliance with this requirement

Privacy

Under the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act federal banking regulators adopted rules limiting the ability of banks and other financial

institutions to disclose nonpublic information about consumers to nonaffiliated third parties The rules require disclosure of

privacy policies to consumers and in some circumstances allow consumers to prevent disclosure of certain personal

information to nonaffiliated third parties
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Consumer Laws and Reu1ations

1st United Bank is also subject to other federal and state consumer laws and regulations that are designed to protect

consumers in transactions with banks While the list set forth below is not exhaustive these laws and regulations include the

Truth in Lending Act the Truth in Savings Act the Electronic Funds Transfer Act the Expedited Funds Availability Act the

Check Clearing for the 21st Century Act the Fair Credit Reporting Act the Equal Credit Opportunity Act the Fair Housing

Act the Home Mortgage Disclosure Act the Fair and Accurate Transactions Act the Mortgage Disclosure Improvement Act
and the Real Estate Settlement Procedures Act among others These laws and regulations mandate certain disclosure

requirements and regulate the manner in which financial institutions must deal with customers when taking deposits or

making loans to such customers 1st United Bank must comply with the applicable provisions of these consumer protection

laws and regulations as part of its ongoing customer relations

Future Legislative Developments

Various legislative acts are from time to time introduced in Congress and the Florida legislature This legislation may change

banking statutes and the environment in which our banking subsidiary and we operate in substantial and unpredictable ways
We cannot determine the ultimate effect that potential legislation if enacted or implementing regulations with respect

thereto would have upon our financial condition or results of operations or that of our banking subsidiary

Effect of Governmental Monetary Policies

The commercial banking business in which 1st United Bank engages is affected not only by general economic conditions but

also by the monetary policies of the Federal Reserve Changes in the discount rate on member bank borrowing availability of

borrowing at the discount window open market operations the imposition of changes in reserve requirements against

member banks deposits and assets of foreign banking centers and the imposition of and changes in reserve requirements

against certain borrowings by banks and their affiliates are some of the instruments of monetary policy available to the

Federal Reserve These monetary policies are used in varying combinations to influence overall growth and distributions of

bank loans investments and deposits and this use may affect interest rates charged on loans or paid on deposits The

monetary policies of the Federal Reserve have had significant effect on the operating results of commercial banks and are

expected to continue to do so in the future The monetary policies of the Federal Reserve are influenced by various factors

including inflation unemployment and short-term and long-term changes in the international trade balance and in the fiscal

policies of the U.S Govemment Future monetary policies and the effect of such policies on the future business and earnings

of 1st United Bank cannot be predicted

Income Taxes

We are subject to income taxes at the federal level and subject to state taxation in Florida We file consolidated federal

income tax return with fiscal
year ending on December 31

Employees

As of December 31 2009 we had total of approximately 229 employees including approximately 208 full-time employees

The employees are not represented by collective bargaining unit We consider relations with employees to be good

Item 1A.Risk Factors

An investment in our common stock contains high degree of risk In addition to the other information contained in or

incorporated by reference into this Form 0-K including the matters addressed under the caption Cautionary Statement

Regarding Forward-Looking Information you should carefully consider the risks described below before deciding whether

to invest in our common stock If any of the events highlighted in thefollowing risks actually occurs or additional risks and

uncertainties not presently known to us or that we do not currently believe to be important to you materialize our business

results of operations or financial condition would likely suffer In such an event the trading price of our common stock could

decline and you could lose all or part of your investment In assessing these risks you should also refer to the other

information contained in our filings with the SEC including our financial statements and related notes

30



Risks Related to our Business

Recent legislation and administrative actions authorizing the U.S government to take direct actions within the

financial services industry may not stabilize the U.S financial system

The Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 2008 or EESA was enacted on October 2008 Under EESA the U.S

Treasury has the authority to among other things invest in financial institutions and purchase up to $700 billion of troubled

assets and mortgages from financial institutions for the
purpose

of stabilizing and providing liquidity to the U.S financial

markets Under the U.S Treasurys Capital Purchase Program or CPP it committed to purchase up to $250 billion of

preferred stock and warrants in eligible institutions The EESA also temporarily increased FDIC deposit insurance coverage

to $250000 per depositor through December 31 2009 which was recently extended to December 31 2013 under the

Helping Families Save Their Homes Act of 2009

On February 10 2009 the U.S Treasury announced the Financial Stability Plan which among other things provides

forward-looking supervisory capital assessment program that is mandatory for banking institutions with over $100 billion of

assets and makes capital available to financial institutions qualifying under process and criteria similar to the CPP In

addition the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 or ARRA was signed into law on February 17 2009 and

includes among other things extensive new restrictions on the compensation and governance arrangements of financial

institutions

Numerous actions have been taken by the U.S Congress the Federal Reserve the U.S Treasury the FDIC the SEC and

others to address the current liquidity and credit crisis that has followed the sub-prime mortgage crisis that commenced in

2007 including the Financial Stability Program adopted by the U.S Treasury In addition the Secretary of the Treasury

proposed fundamental changes to the regulation of financial institutions markets and products on June 17 2009 On

December 10 2009 the U.S House of Representatives approved The Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act
which included some of the U.S Treasury Departments proposed reforms

We cannot predict the actual effects of EESA the ARRA the proposed regulatory reform measures and various

governmental regulatory monetary and fiscal initiatives which have been and may be enacted on the economy the financial

markets on us The terms and costs of these activities or the failure of these actions to help stabilize the financial markets

asset prices market liquidity and continuation or worsening of current financial market and economic conditions could

materially and adversely affect our business financial condition results of operations and the trading price of our common

stock

Difficult market conditions and economic trends have adversely affected our industry and our business and may lead

to new and increased government regulation

Dramatic declines in the housing market with decreasing home prices and increasing delinquencies and foreclosures have

negatively impacted the credit performance of mortgage and construction loans and resulted in significant write-downs of

assets by many financial institutions General downward economic trends reduced availability of commercial credit and

increasing unemployment have negatively impacted the credit performance of commercial and consumer credit resulting in

additional write-downs Concerns over the stability of the financial markets and the economy have resulted in decreased

lending by financial institutions to their customers and to each other This market turmoil and tightening of credit has led to

increased commercial and consumer deficiencies lack of customer confidence increased market volatility and widespread

reduction in general business activity The resulting economic pressure on consumers and businesses and the lack of

confidence in the financial markets may adversely affect our business financial condition results of operations and stock

price

Our ability to assess the creditworthiness of customers and to estimate the losses inherent in our credit exposure is made more

complex by these difficult market and economic conditions We also expect to face increased regulation and government

oversight beyond EESA ARRA and other recent proposed or enacted regulations as result of these downward trends

We do not believe these difficult conditions are likely to improve in the near future worsening of these conditions would

likely exacerbate the adverse effects of these difficult economic conditions on us our customers and the other financial

institutions in our market As result we may experience increases in foreclosures delinquencies and customer

bankruptcies as well as more restricted access to funds

31



We may be required to pay significantly higher FDIC deposit insurance premiums and assessments in the future

Recent insured depository institution failures as well as deterioration in banking and economic conditions have significantly

increased the loss provisions of the FDIC resulting in decline in the designated reserve ratio of the Deposit Insurance Fund

to historical lows The FDIC expects higher rate of insured depository institution failures in the next few years compared to

recent years thus the reserve ratio may continue to decline In addition the deposit insurance limit on FDIC deposit

insurance coverage generally has increased to $250000 through December 31 2013 which may result in even larger losses

to the Deposit Insurance Fund These developments have caused an increase to our assessments and the FDIC may be

required to make additional increases to the assessment rates and levy additional special assessments on us Higher

assessments increase our non-interest expense

In 2009 our assessment rates which also include our assessment for participating in the FDICs Transaction Account

Guarantee Program increased from 6.25 to 14.50 basis points Additionally on May 22 2009 the FDIC announced final

rule imposing special 5.00 basis points emergency assessment as of June 30 2009 payable September 30 2009 based on

assets minus Tier Capital at June 30 2009 but the amount of the assessment was capped at 10.00 basis points of domestic

deposits Finally on November 12 2009 the FDIC adopted new rule requiring insured institutions to prepay on

December 30 2009 estimated quarterly risk-based assessments for the fourth quarter of 2009 and for all of 2010 2011 and

2012 We prepaid an assessment of $3.3 million which incorporated uniform 3.00 basis point increase effective January

2011

These higher FDIC assessment rates and special assessments have had and will continue to have an adverse impact on our

results of operations Our FDIC insurance related cost was $1140000 for the year ended December 31 2009 compared to

$327000 for the
year

ended December 31 2008 We are unable to predict the impact in future periods including whether

and when additional special assessments will occur

Higher insurance premiums and assessments increase our costs and may limit our ability to pursue
certain business

opportunities We also may be required to pay even higher FDIC premiums than the recently increased level because

financial institution failures resulting from the depressed market conditions have depleted and may continue to deplete the

deposit insurance fund and reduce its ratio of reserves to insured deposits

The loss of key personnel may adversely affect us

Our success is and expected to remain highly dependent on our senior management team including Messrs Orlando

Schupp Marino and Jacobson As community bank it is our managements extensive knowledge of and relationships in

the community that generate business for us Successful execution of our growth strategy will continue to place significant

demands on our management and the loss of any such services may adversely affect our growth and profitability

An inadequate allowance for loan losses would reduce our earnings

Our success depends to significant extent upon the quality of our assets particularly loans In originating loans there is

substantial likelihood that credit losses will be experienced The risk of loss will vary with among other things general

economic conditions the type of loan being made the creditworthiness of the borrower over the term of the loan and in the

case of collateralized loan the quality of the collateral for the loan Management maintains an allowance for loan losses

based on among other things experience an evaluation of economic conditions and regular reviews of delinquencies and

loan portfolio quality Based upon such factors management makes various assumptions and judgments about the ultimate

collectability of the loan portfolio and provides an allowance for probable loan losses based upon percentage of the

outstanding balances and for specific loans when their ultimate collectability is considered questionable

As of December 31 2009 1st United Banks allowance for loan losses was $13.3 million which represented approximately

1.95% of its total amount of loans 1st United Bank had $19.3 million in non-accruing loans as of December 31 2009 The

allowance may not prove sufficient to cover future loan losses Although management uses the best information available to

make determinations with respect to the allowance for loan losses future adjustments may be necessary if economic

conditions differ substantially from the assumptions used or adverse developments arise with respect to 1st United Banks

non-performing or performing loans In addition regulatory agencies as an integral part of their examination process

periodically review the estimated losses on loans Such agencies may require us to recognize additional losses based on their

judgments about information available to them at the time of their examination Accordingly the allowance for loan losses

may not be adequate to cover loan losses or significant increases to the allowance may be required in the future if economic

conditions should worsen Material additions to 1St United Banks allowance for loan losses would adversely impact our net

income and capital

32



If our non-performing assets increase our earnings will suffer

At December 31 2009 our non-performing assets which consist of non-accruing loans loans 90 days delinquent and

foreclosed real estate assets totaled $19.99 million or 1.97% of total assets which is an increase of $9.4 or 88% over non-

performing assets at December 31 2008 At December 31 2008 our non-performing assets were $10.6 million or 1.72% of

total assets Our non-performing assets adversely affect our net income in various ways We do not record interest income

on non-accrual loans or real estate owned We must reserve for probable losses which is established through current period

charge to the provision for loan losses as well as from time to time as appropriate write down the value of properties in our

other real estate owned portfolio to reflect changing market values Additionally there are legal fees associated the

resolution of problem assets as well as carrying costs such as taxes insurance and maintenance related to our other real estate

owned Further the resolution of non-performing assets requires the active involvement of management which can distract

them from more profitable activity Finally if our estimate for the recorded allowance for loan losses proves to be incorrect

and our allowance is inadequate we will have to increase the allowance accordingly

Our loan portfolio includes loans with higher risk of loss

We originate commercial real estate loans construction and development loans consumer loans and residential mortgage

loans primarily within our market area Commercial real estate commercial and construction and development loans tend to

involve larger loan balances to single borrower or groups of related borrowers and are most susceptible to risk of loss

during downturn in the business cycle These loans also have historically had greater credit risk than other loans for the

following reasons

Commercial Real Estate Loans Repayment is dependent on income being generated in amounts sufficient

to cover operating expenses
and debt service These loans also involve greater risk because they are generally

not fully amortizing over loan period but rather have balloon payment due at maturity borrowers ability

to make balloon payment typically will depend on being able to either refinance the loan or timely sell the

underlying property As of December 31 2009 commercial real estate loans including multi-family loans

comprised approximately 40% of our total loan portfolio

Commercial Loans Repayment is generally dependent upon the successful operation of the borrowers

business In addition the collateral securing the loans may depreciate over time be difficult to appraise be

illiquid or fluctuate in value based on the success of the business As of December 31 2009 commercial loans

comprised approximately 17% of our total loan portfolio

Construction and Development Loans The risk of loss is largely dependent on our initial estimate of

whether the propertys value at completion equals or exceeds the cost of property construction and the

availability of take-out financing During the construction phase number of factors can result in delays or cost

overruns If our estimate is inaccurate or if actual construction costs exceed estimates the value of the property

securing our loan may be insufficient to ensure full repayment when completed through permanent loan sale

of the property or by seizure of collateral As of December 31 2009 construction and development loans

comprised approximately 8% of our total loan portfolio

Consumer Loans Consumer loans such as personal lines of credit are collateralized if at all with assets

that may not provide an adequate source of payment of the loan due to depreciation damage or loss As of

December 31 2009 consumer loans comprised approximately 2% of our total loan portfolio

Failure to comply with the terms of the loss share agreement with the FDIC may result in significant losses

On December 11 2009 1st United Bank entered into an Assumption Agreement Whole Bank All Deposits Purchase and

Assumption Agreement with the FDIC pursuant to which United Bank assumed all deposits and certain identified assets

and liabilities of Republic Federal Bank national association headquartered in Miami Florida 1St United Bank also entered

into loss sharing agreement with the FDIC Under the loss sharing agreement 1st United Bank will share in the losses on

assets covered under the Purchase and Assumption Agreement The FDIC will reimburse 15t United Bank for 80% of losses

of up to $36 million with respect to the entire $238 million acquired loan portfolio Covered Assets The FDIC will

reimburse 1St United Bank for 95% of losses in excess of $36 million with respect to Covered Assets

The Purchase and Assumption Agreement and the loss sharing agreement have specific detailed and cumbersome

compliance servicing notification and reporting requirements Our failure to comply with the terms of the agreements or to
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properly service the loans and OREO under the requirements of the loss share agreement may cause individual loans or large

poois of loans to lose eligibility for loss share payments from the FDIC This could result in material losses that are currently

not anticipated

We may need additional capital resources in the future and these capital resources may not be available on acceptable

terms or at all

We may need to incur additional debt or equity financing in the future to make strategic acquisitions or investments for

future growth or to fund losses or additional provisions for loan losses in the future Such financing may not be available to

us on acceptable terms or at all

Further in the event that we offer additional shares of our common stock in the future our Articles of Incorporation do not

provide shareholders with preemptive rights and such shares may be offered to investors other than our existing shareholders

for prices at or below the then current market price of our common stock all at the discretion of the Board If we do sell

additional shares of common stock to raise capital the sale could reduce market price per share of common stock dilute your

ownership interest and such dilution could be substantial

We may incur losses if we are unable to successfully manage interest rate risk

Our profitability depends to large extent on 1st United Banks net interest income which is the difference between income

on interest-earning assets such as loans and investment securities and expense on interest-bearing liabilities such as deposits

and borrowings We are unable to predict changes in market interest rates which are affected by many factors beyond our

control including inflation recession unemployment money supply domestic and international events and changes in the

United States and other financial markets Our net interest income may be reduced if more interest-earning assets than

interest-bearing liabilities reprice or mature during time when interest rates are declining or ii more interest-bearing

liabilities than interest-earning assets reprice or mature during time when interest rates are rising

Changes in the difference between short- and long-term interest rates may also harm our business For example short-term

deposits may be used to fund longer-term loans When differences between short-term and long-term interest rates shrink or

disappear as is likely in the current zero interest rate policy environment the spread between rates paid on deposits and

received on loans could narrow significantly decreasing our net interest income

If market interest rates rise rapidly interest rate adjustment caps may limit increases in the interest rates on adjustable rate

loans thereby reducing our net interest income

Our loan portfolio is heavily concentrated in mortgage loans secured by commercial and residential properties in

South Florida

Our interest-earning assets are heavily concentrated in mortgage loans secured by properties located in South Florida As of

December 31 2009 significant portion of our loans secured by real estate are secured by commercial and residential

properties including properties under construction located in Palm Beach Miami-Dade and Broward Counties Florida The

concentration of our loans in this region subjects us to risk that downturn in the area economy such as the one the area is

currently experiencing could result in decrease in loan originations and increases in delinquencies and foreclosures which

would more greatly affect us than if our lending were more geographically diversified In addition since large portion of

our portfolio is secured by properties located in South Florida the occurrence of natural disaster such as hurricane could

result in decline in loan originations decline in the value or destruction of mortgaged properties and an increase in the

risk of delinquencies foreclosures or loss on loans originated by us We may suffer further losses due to the decline in the

value of the properties underlying our mortgage loans which would have an adverse impact on our operations

Since we engage in lending secured by real estate and may be forced to foreclose on the collateral property and own

the underlying real estate we may be subject to the increased costs associated with the ownership of real property

which could result in reduced net income

Since we originate loans secured by real estate we may have to foreclose on the collateral property to protect our investment

and may thereafter own and operate such property in which case we are exposed to the risks inherent in the ownership of real

estate
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The amount that we as mortgagee may realize after default is dependent upon factors outside of our control including

but not limited to

general or local economic conditions

environmental cleanup liability

neighborhood values

interest rates

real estate tax rates

operating expenses of the mortgaged properties

supply of and demand for rental units or properties

ability to obtain and maintain adequate occupancy of the properties

zoning laws

governmental rules regulations and fiscal policies and

acts of God

Certain expenditures associated with the ownership of real estate principally real estate taxes and maintenance costs may

adversely affect the income from the real estate Therefore the cost of operating real property may exceed the rental income

earned from such property and we may have to advance funds in order to protect our investment or we may be required to

dispose of the real property at loss

We have deferred tax asset and cannot assure that it will be fully realized

We calculate income taxes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States U.S GAAP
which require the use of the asset and liability method In accordance with U.S GAAP we regularly assess available positive

and negative evidence to determine whether it is more likely than not that our deferred tax asset balances will be recovered

At December 31 2009 we had net deferred tax asset of $2.1 million We did not establish valuation allowance as it is

anticipated based on our current five year projections that it is more likely than not we will have sufficient future earnings to

utilize this asset to offset future income tax liabilities Realization of deferred tax asset requires us to apply significant

judgment and is inherently speculative because it requires the future occurrence of circumstances that cannot be predicted

with certainty We may not achieve sufficient future taxable income as the basis for the ultimate realization of our net

deferred tax asset and therefore we may have to establish full or partial valuation allowance at some point in the future If

we determine that valuation allowance is necessary it would require us to incur charge to operations that would adversely

affect our capital position

Liquidity risk could impair our ability to fund operations and jeopardize our financial condition

Liquidity is essential to our business An inability to raise funds through deposits borrowings and other sources could have

substantial negative effect on our liquidity Our access to funding sources in amounts adequate to finance our activities on

terms that are acceptable to us could be impaired by factors that affect us specifically or the financial services industry or

economy in general Factors that could negatively impact our access to liquidity sources include decrease in the level of our

business activity as result of an economic downturn in the markets in which our loans are concentrated adverse regulatory

action against us or our inability to attract and retain deposits Our ability to borrow could be impaired by factors that are not

specific to us on our region such disruption in the financial markets or negative views and expectations about the prospects

for the financial services industry in light of recent turmoil faced by banking organizations and the unstable credit markets

Concerns of customers over deposit insurance may cause decrease in our deposits

With increased concerns about bank failures customers are increasingly concerned about the extent to which their deposits

are insured by the FDIC Customers may withdraw deposits from 1st United Bank in an effort to ensure that the amount that

they have on deposit at 1St United Bank is fully insured Decreases in deposits may adversely affect our funding costs and net

income
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Future economic growth in our Florida market area is likely to be slower compared to previous years

The State of Floridas population growth has historically exceeded national
averages Consequently the state has experienced

substantial growth in population new business formation and public works spending Due to the moderation of economic

growth and migration into our market area and the downturn in the real estate market management believes that growth in

our market area will be restrained in the near-term We have experienced an overall slow down in the origination of

residential mortgage loans for sale recently due to the slowing in residential real estate sales activity in our markets

decrease in existing and new home sales decreases lending opportunities and negatively affects our income We do not

anticipate that the housing market will improve in the near-term and accordingly this could lead to additional valuation

adjustments on our loan portfolios

The soundness of other financial institutions could adversely affect us

Our ability to engage in routine funding and other transactions could be adversely affected by the actions and commercial

soundness of other financial institutions Financial institutions are interrelated as result of trading clearing counterparty

lending or other relationships As result defaults by or even rumors or questions about one or more financial institutions

or the financial services industry generally have led to market-wide liquidity problems losses of depositor creditor or

counterparty confidence and could lead to losses or defaults by us or by other institutions We could experience increases in

deposits and assets as result of other banks difficulties or failure which would increase the capital we need to support such

growth

We may face risks with respect to future expansion

As strategy we have sought to increase the size of our operations by aggressively pursuing business development

opportunities We have made acquisitions of financial institutions and may continue to seek whole bank or branch

acquisitions in the future Acquisitions and mergers involve number of risks including

the time and costs associated with identifing and evaluating potential acquisitions and merger partners

the ability to finance an acquisition and possible ownership and economic dilution to existing shareholders

diversion of managements attention to the negotiation of transaction management of the acquired loan

portfolio and the integration of the operations and personnel of the acquired institution

the incurrence and possible impairment of goodwill associated with an acquisition and possible adverse

short-term effects on results of operations and

the risk of loss of key employees and customers

We may incur substantial costs to expand and such expansion may not result in the levels of profits we seek Integration

efforts for any future mergers and acquisitions may not be successful and following any future merger or acquisition after

giving it effect we may not achieve financial results comparable to or better than our historical experience

Due to conditions imposed upon us by the Federal Reserve to gain their approval for the Citrus Bank acquisition we

may enter into an agreement to acquire an existing bank branch or company only if the transaction is funded

entirely with our common stock or proceeds from the issuance of our common stock or until 1st United Bank has

reported four consecutive quarters of net income and as result we may not be able to take advantage of certain

acquisition opportunities in the future

Our ability to continue to expand and grow our business by increasing market share in our core markets through external

acquisitions may be hindered by conditions imposed upon us by the Federal Reserve As condition of receiving regulatory

approval of the Citrus Bank acquisition we committed not to enter into any agreement to acquire an existing bank branch or

company unless the transaction is funded entirely with our common stock or proceeds from the issuance of our common

stock or until 1st United Bank has reported four consecutive quarters of net income We incurred net loss for the quarter

ended December 31 2009 As result until this condition is lifted we must fund future acquisitions entirely with our

common stock or the proceeds raised through offerings of our common stock

Potential acquisitions may dilute shareholder value

We regularly evaluate opportunities to acquire other financial institutions As result merger and acquisition discussions

and in some cases negotiations may take place and future mergers or acquisitions involving cash debt or equity securities
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may occur at any time Acquisitions typically involve the payment of premium over book and market values and therefore

some dilution of our tangible book value and net income per common share may occur in connection with any future

acquisitions

An impairment in the carrying value of our goodwill could negatively impact our earnings and capital

Goodwill is initially recorded at fair value and is not amortized but is reviewed for impairment at least annually or more

frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable Given the current

economic environment and conditions in the financial markets we could be required to evaluate the recoverability of

goodwill prior to our normal annual assessment if we experience disruption in our business unexpected significant declines

in our operating results or sustained market capitalization declines These types of events and the resulting analyses could

result in goodwill impairment charges in the future These non-cash impairment charges could adversely affect our results of

operations in future periods and could also significantly impact certain financial ratios and limit our ability to obtain

financing or raise capital in the future goodwill impairment charge does not adversely affect the calculation of our risk

based and tangible capital ratios As of December 31 2009 we had $45 million in goodwill which represented

approximately 0.04% of our total assets

The fair value of our investments could decline

Our investment securities portfolio as of December 31 2009 has been designated as available-for-sale pursuant to U.S

GAAP relating to accounting for investments Such principles require that unrealized gains and losses in the estimated value

of the available-for-sale portfolio be marked to market and reflected as separate item in shareholders equity net of tax

as accumulated other comprehensive income

Shareholders equity will continue to reflect the unrealized gains and losses net of tax of these investments The fair value

of our investment portfolio may decline causing corresponding decline in shareholders equity

Management believes that several factors will affect the fair values of our investment portfolio These include but are not

limited to changes in interest rates or expectations of changes the degree of volatility in the securities markets inflation rates

or expectations of inflation and the slope of the interest rate yield curve the yield curve refers to the differences between

shorter-term and longer-term interest rates positively sloped yield curve means shorter-term rates are lower than longer-

term rates These and other factors may impact specific categories of the portfolio differently and we cannot predict the

effect these factors may have on any specific category

We are subject to extensive governmental regulation

We are subject to extensive governmental regulation 1st United Bancorp Inc as financial holding company is regulated

primarily by the Federal Reserve 1st United Bank is commercial bank chartered by the State of Florida and regulated by

the Federal Reserve the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation and the Florida Office of Financial Regulation As member

of the Federal Home Loan Bank FHLB 1st United Bank must also comply with applicable regulations of the Federal

Housing Finance Board and the Federal Home Loan Bank These federal and state bank regulators have the ability should

the situation require to place significant regulatory and operational restrictions upon us 1St United Banks activities are also

regulated under consumer protection laws applicable to our lending deposit and other activities sufficient claim against us

under these laws could have material adverse effect on our results Please refer to the section entitled Regulatory

Considerations in this Form 10-K

The banking industry is very competitive

The banking industry is highly competitive and 1st United Bank competes directly with financial institutions that are more

established and have significantly greater resources and lending limits As result of those greater resources the larger

financial institutions may be able to provide broader range of products and services to their customers than us and may be

able to afford newer and more sophisticated technology than us Our long-term success will be dependent on the ability of 1St

United Bank to compete successfully with other financial institutions in its service areas

Florida financial institutions such as 1st United Bank face higher risk of noncompliance and enforcement action

with the Bank Secrecy Act and other anti-money laundering statutes and regulations

Since September 11 2001 banking regulators have intensified their focus on anti-money laundering and Bank Secrecy Act

compliance requirements particularly the anti-money laundering provisions of the USA PATRIOT Act There is also
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increased scrutiny of compliance with the rules enforced by the Office of Foreign Assets Control OFAC Since 2004
federal banking regulators and examiners have been extremely aggressive in their supervision and examination of financial

institutions located in the State of Florida with respect to the institutions Bank Secrecy Act/Anti-Money Laundering

compliance Consequently numerous formal enforcement actions have been issued against financial institutions

In order to comply with regulations guidelines and examination procedures in this area 1St United Bank has been required to

adopt new policies and procedures and to install new systems If 1st United Banks policies procedures and systems are

deemed deficient or the policies procedures and systems of the financial institutions that it has already acquired or may
acquire in the future are deficient 1st United Bank would be subject to liability including fines and regulatory actions such

as restrictions on its ability to pay dividends and the necessity to obtain regulatory approvals to proceed with certain aspects

of its business plan including its acquisition plans In addition because 1st United Bank operates in Florida we expect that

1st United Bank will face higher risk of noncompliance and enforcement action with the Bank Secrecy Act and other anti-

money laundering statutes and regulations

Confidential customer information transmitted through 1st United Banks online banking service is vulnerable to

security breaches and computer viruses which could expose 1st United Bank to litigation and adversely affect its

reputation and ability to generate deposits

St United Bank provides its customers the ability to bank online The secure transmission of confidential information over

the Internet is critical element of online banking 1st United Banks network could be vulnerable to unauthorized access

computer viruses phishing schemes and other security problems 1st United Bank may be required to spend significant

capital and other resources to protect against the threat of security breaches and computer viruses or to alleviate problems

caused by security breaches or viruses To the extent that 1st United Banks activities or the activities of its customers

involve the storage and transmission of confidential information security breaches and viruses could expose 1st United Bank

to claims litigation and other possible liabilities Any inability to prevent security breaches or computer viruses could also

cause existing customers to lose confidence in 1st United Banks systems and could adversely affect its reputation and its

ability to generate deposits

Risks Related to an Investment in our Common Stock

Limited trading activity for shares of our common stock may contribute to price volatility

While our common stock is listed and traded on The NASDAQ Global Select Market there has been limited trading activity

in our common stock The average daily trading volume of our common stock since we were listed on The NASDAQ Global

Select Market was approximately 44285 shares Due to the limited trading activity of our common stock relativity small

trades may have significant impact on the price of our common stock

Securities analysts may not initiate coverage or continue to cover our common stock and this may have negative

impact on its market price

The trading market for our common stock will depend in part on the research and reports that securities analysts publish

about our business and our Company We do not have any control over these securities analysts and they may not cover our

common stock If securities analysts do not cover our common stock the lack of research coverage may adversely affect its

market price If we are covered by securities analysts and our common stock is the subject of an unfavorable report our

stock price would likely decline If one or more of these analysts ceases to cover our Company or fails to publish regular

reports on us we could lose visibility in the financial markets which would cause our stock price or trading volume to

decline

Our Articles of Incorporation Bylaws and certain laws and regulations may prevent or delay transactions you might

favor including our sale or merger

We are registered with the Federal Reserve as financial holding company under the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act and are

registered with the Federal Reserve as bank holding company under the Bank Holding Company Act As result we are

subject to supervisory regulation and examination by the Federal Reserve The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act the Bank Holding

Company Act and other federal laws subject financial holding companies to particular restrictions on the types of activities

in which they may engage and to range of supervisory requirements and activities including regulatory enforcement

actions for violations of laws and regulations

Provisions of our Articles of Incorporation Bylaws certain laws and regulations and various other factors may make it more

difficult and expensive for companies or persons to acquire control of us without the consent of our Board of Directors It is
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possible however that you would want takeover attempt to succeed because for example potential buyer could offer

premium over the then prevailing price of our common stock

For example our Articles of Incorporation permit our Board of Directors to issue preferred stock without shareholder action

The ability to issue preferred stock could discourage company from attempting to obtain control of us by means of tender

offer merger proxy contest or otherwise We are also subject to certain provisions of the Florida Business Corporation Act

and our Articles of Incorporation that relate to business combinations with interested shareholders Other provisions in our

Articles of Incorporation or Bylaws that may discourage takeover attempts or make them more difficult include

Supermajority voting requirements to remove director from office

Requirement that only directors may fill Board vacancy

Requirement that Special Meeting may be called only by the holders of majority of our outstanding

shares

Provisions regarding the timing and content of shareholder proposals and nominations

Supermajority voting requirements to amend our Articles of Incorporation

Absence of cumulative voting and

Inability for shareholders to take action by written consent

We are subject to evolving and expensive corporate governance regulations and requirements Our failure to

adequately adhere to these requirements or the failure or circumvention of our controls and procedures could

seriously harm our business

As publicly reporting company we are subject to certain federal state and other rules and regulations including applicable

requirements of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 Compliance with these evolving regulations is costly and requires

significant diversion of management time and attention particularly with regard to disclosure controls and procedures and

internal control over financial reporting Although we have reviewed our disclosure and internal controls and procedures in

order to determine whether they are effective our controls and procedures may not be able to prevent errors or frauds in the

future Faulty judgments simple errors or mistakes or the failure of our personnel to adhere to established controls and

procedures may make it difficult for us to ensure that the objectives of the control system are met failure of our controls

and procedures to detect other than inconsequential errors or fraud could seriously harm our business and results of

operations

We have not paid cash dividends to our shareholders and currently have no plans to pay future cash dividends

We plan to retain earnings to finance future growth and have no current plans to pay cash dividends to shareholders Because

we have not paid cash dividends holders of our securities will experience gain on their investment in our securities only in

the case of an appreciation of value of our securities You should neither expect to receive dividend income from investing in

our common stock nor an appreciation in value

Your shares of common stock will not be an insured deposit

The shares of our common stock are not bank deposit and will not be insured or guaranteed by the FDIC or any other

government agency Your investment will be subject to investment risk and you must be capable of affording the loss of

your entire investment

We may have difficulties integrating Republics operations into our own or may fail to realize the anticipated benefits

of the acquisition

Our acquisition with Republic involves the integration of two companies that have previously operated independently of each

other Successful integration of Republics operations will depend primarily on our ability to consolidate Republics

operations systems and procedures into those of ours to eliminate redundancies and costs We may not be able to integrate

the operations without encountering difficulties including without limitation

the loss of key employees and customers

possible inconsistencies in standards control procedures and policies and

unexpected problems with costs operations personnel technology or credit
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In addition any enhanced earnings or cost savings that we expect to result from the acquisition including by reducing costs

improving efficiencies and cross-marketing may not be fully realized or may take longer to be realized than expected

Item lB Unresolved Staff Comments

None

Item Properties

We currently operate 16 full service banking centers in Florida which includes our principal office in Boca Raton Florida In

addition we have an Executive/Operations Center which we lease in West Palm Beach Florida The following table sets

forth our banking centers date opened and whether owned or leased

Date Onened/Acauired

Boca Raton Principal Office

North Palm Beach Banking Center

Cooper City Banking Center

West Palm Beach Banking Center

Palm Beach Banking Center

Coral Springs Banking Center

Ft Lauderdale Banking Center

North Miami Banking Center

Coral Ridge Banking Center

Vero Beach Banking Center

Sebastian Banking Center

Barefoot Bay Banking Center

Brickell Bay Banking Center

Doral Banking Center

Coral Way Banking Center

Aventura Banking Center

December 2003

April 2000

April 2004

May 2004

January 2006

August 2007

February 1987

June 1992

November 2004

August 2008

August 20082

August 20082

December 11 2009
December 11 2009
December 11 2009
December 11 2009

Leased

Leased

Leased

Leased

Leased

Leased

Leased

Leased

Leased

Own

Own
Own

Leased

Leased

Leased

Leased

Represents the original open date of the former Equitable Bank Banking Center Effective with the Equitable merger on

February 29 2008 these banking centers became ls United Bank offices

Item

Represents banking centers acquired as part of the Citrus Acquisition consummated on August 15 2008

Represents banking centers acquired as part of the Republic acquisition consummated on December 11 2009 We have the

option to request the FDIC to repudiate these leases by March 11 2010

Legal Proceedings

We are periodically party to or otherwise involved in legal proceedings arising in the normal course of business such as

claims to enforce liens claims involving the making and servicing of real property loans and other issues incident to our

business Management does not believe that there is any pending or threatened proceeding against us which if determined

adversely would have material adverse effect on our financial position liquidity or results of operations

PART II

Item Market for Registrants Common Equity Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity

Securities

Our common stock trades on The NASDAQ Global Market since September 18 2009 under the symbol FUBC Prior to

that date our common stock was quoted on the Pink Sheets since April 16 2008 For all periods prior to the second quarter

of 2008 the table below sets forth the high and low trade prices for our common stock of which its management is aware for

the periods indicated The following table sets forth the range of high and low sales prices reported on the NASDAQ Global

Market or the range of high and low bid quotations on the Pink Sheets as applicable Quotations as reported by the Pink

Sheets reflect inter-dealer prices without retail mark-up mark-down or commissions and may not necessarily represent

actual transactions

We have never declared cash dividend on our common stock and we currently have no plans to declare or pay any
dividends on the common stock in the foreseeable future We have restrictions on our ability to pay dividends Please see

Office Name Own/Lease
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Item Business-Regulatory Considerations-Dividends for discussion of these additional restrictions As of February 15

2010 our common stock was held by approximately 538 shareholders of record

High Low

2008

First Quarter
14.50 14.50

Second Quarter
11.25 6.25

Third Quarter
8.00 6.00

FourthQuarter 6.50 5.50

2009

First Quarter
8.00 1.56

Second Quarter
5.00 3.65

Third Quarter
6.30 4.00

Fourth Quarter
7.90 5.46

Item Selected Financial Data

The following table presents our summary consolidated financial data We derived our balance sheet and income statement

data for the years ended December 31 2009 2008 2007 2006 and 2005 from our audited financial statements The

summary consolidated financial data should be read in conjunction with and are qualified in their entirety by our financial

statements and the accompanying notes and the other information included elsewhere in this Annual Report

Use of Non-GAAP Financial Measures

The information set forth below contains certain financial information determined by methods other than in accordance with

generally accepted accounting policies in the United States GAAP These non-GAAP financial measures are tangible

assets tangible shareholders equity tangible book value
per common share return on average tangible equity

tangible equity to tangible assets tangible common equity to tangible assets and return on average tangible common

equity Our management uses these non-GAAP measures in its analysis of our performance because it believes these

measures are material and will be used as measure of our performance by investors

Tangible assets is defined as total assets reduced by goodwill and other intangible assets Tangible shareholders equity

is defined as total shareholders equity reduced by goodwill and other intangible assets Tangible equity to tangible assets

is defined as tangible shareholders equity divided by tangible assets Tangible common equity to tangible assets is defined

as total shareholders equity reduced by preferred equity and intangible assets divided by tangible assets These measures are

important to many investors in the marketplace who are interested in the equity to assets ratio exclusive of the effect of

changes in intangible assets on equity and total assets

Tangible book value per share is defined as tangible shareholders equity divided by total common shares outstanding This

measure is important to many investors in the marketplace who are interested in changes from period to period in book value

per share exclusive of changes in intangible assets Goodwill an intangible asset that is recorded in purchase business

combination has the effect of increasing total book value while not increasing our tangible book value

These disclosures should not be considered in isolation or substitute for results determined in accordance with GAAP and are

not necessarily comparable to non-GAAP performance measures which may be presented by other bank holding companies

Management compensates for these limitations by providing detailed reconciliations between GAAP information and the non

GAAP financial measures reconciliation table is set forth below following the selected consolidated financial data
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Dollars in thousands except per share data

As of and for the years ended December 31

All historical per share data has been adjusted for the 110 reverse stock split effective August 19 2005

Includes Equitable Merger and Citrus Acquisition

Includes Republic transaction

Based on year end total assets the Leverage Ratio of the Company is 12.72% and for 1st United Bank is 7.85%

2009 2008 2007 2006

1015567

967514

680976

13282

88843

48053

802808

194185

172294

124241

2005

617821 375834

570703 371124

486247 285423

5799 2070

35075 35546

47118 4710

436269 272235

100785 59539

98870 54498

51752 49788

30250 24699

9584 9474

20666 15225

1910 145

332244

327438

254816

2149

32867

4806

240210

83598

50912

46106

246580

241656

190769

1893

34392

4924

186017

58371

39693

34769

28539

7246

21293

13240

19948

6233

13715

181

8053 18756 15080

23292

2876 1911

26168 16989

2884 3391
4720 3393

774

13534

2037

22904

752
1359

368

10979

2813

8166

194

7972

1656

10183

555

555

BALANCE SHEET DATA
Total assets

Tangible assets

Total loans

Allowance for loan losses

Securities available for sale

Goodwill and other intangible assets

Deposits

Non-interest bearing deposits

Shareholders equity

Tangible shareholders equity

INCOME STATEMENT DATA
Interest income

Interest expense

Net interest income

Provision for loan losses

Net interest income after provision for

loan losses

Gain on acquisition

Other non-interest income 1418

Non-interest expense 14887
Income tax expense benefit

Net income loss 65

Preferred stock dividends earned

Net income loss available to common

shareholders 3946 1727 3393 65

PER SHARE DATAa
Basic earnings loss per share 0.30 0.01 0.20
Diluted earnings loss per share 0.30 0.01 0.20

Bookvaluepercommonshare 6.95 10.78 10.15

Tangible book value per common share 5.00 9.76 8.89

SELECTED OPERATING RATIOS

Return on average assets 0.60% 0.25% 0.97% 0.02% 0.28%
Return on average shareholders equity 3.19% 1.63% 6.64% 0.13% 2.20%
Net interest margin 3.69% 4.23% 4.72% 5.20% 4.5 1%

SELECTED ASSET QUALITY DATA
CAPITAL AND ASSET QUALITY
RATIOS

Equity/assets 16.97% 16.00% 14.50% 15.32% 16.10%

Tangible equity/tangible assets 12.84% 9.07% 13.42% 14.08% 14.39%

Non-performing loans/total loans 2.84% 2.18% 0.10% 0.44% 0.72%

Non-performing assets/total assets 1.97% 1.72% 0.07% 0.33% 0.56%

Allowance for loan losses/total loans 1.95% 1.19% 0.73% 0.84% 0.99%

Allowance for loan losses/non-performing

loans 69% 55% 742% 193% 137%
Net charge-offs recoveries/average loans.. 1.14% 0.2 1% 0.08% 0.03% 0.27%

REGULATORY CAPITAL RATIOS FOR
THE COMPANY

Leverage Ratio 17.33% 8.15% 14.71% 14.98% 15.21%
Tier Risk-based Capital 23.54% 9.46% 14.71% 16.36% 16.59%

Total Risk-based Capital 25.76% 11.69% 15.37% 17.11% 17.47%
REGULATORY CAPITAL RATIOS FOR

THE BANK
Leverage Ratio 10.70% 6.91% 9.69% 11.02% 12.35%
Tier Risk-based Capital 14.67% 8.03% 10.93% 12.04% 13.46%

Total Risk-based Capital 16.91% 10.26% 11.59% 12.79% 14.34%

0.25

0.25

10.87

5.44

0.72

0.71

11.61

10.61

42



GAAP Reconciliation

Dollar amounts in thousands except per share amounts

As of and for the Years Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

Total assets 1015567 617821 375834 332244 246580

Goodwill 45008 45008 4553 4553 4553

Intangible assets net 3045 2110 157 253 371

Tangible Assets 967514 570703 371124 327438 241656

Shareholders equity 172294 98870 54498 50912 39693

Goodwill 45008 45008 4553 4553 4553

Intangible assets net 3045 2110 157 253 371

Tangible shareholders equity 124241 51752 49788 46106 34769

Bookvaluepercommonshare 6.93 10.87 11.61 10.78 10.15

Effect of intangible assets 1.93 5.43 1.00 1.02 1.26

Tangible book value per common share 5.00 5.44 10.61 9.76 8.89

Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Managements discussion and analysis MDA provides supplemental information which sets forth the major factors that

have affected our financial condition and results of operations and should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated

Financial Statements and related notes included in the Annual Report on Form 10-K The MDA is divided into subsections

entitled Business Overview Financial Overview Financial Condition Results of Operations Interest Rate Risk

Management Liquidity and Capital Resources Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements and Critical Accounting Policies

The following information should provide better understanding of the major factors and trends that affect our eamings

performance and financial condition and how our performance during 2009 compares with prior years Throughout this

section 1St United Bancorp Inc and its subsidiaries collectively are referred to as Company we us or our Unless

the context indicates otherwise all dollar amounts in this MDA are in thousands

CAUTION CONCERNING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K including this MDA section contains forward-looking statements within the meaning

of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 These forward-looking statements include among others statements

about our beliefs plans objectives goals expectations estimates and intentions that are subject to significant risks and

uncertainties and are subject to change based on various factors many of which are beyond our control The words may
could should would believe anticipate estimate expect intend plan target goal and similar

expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements

All forward-looking statements by their nature are subject to risks and uncertainties Our actual future results may differ

materially from those set forth in our forward-looking statements Please see the Introductory Note and Item JA Risk Factors

of this Annual Report for discussion of factors that could cause our actual results to differ materially from those in the

forward-looking statements

However other factors besides those listed in Item 1A Risk Factors or discussed in this Annual Report also could adversely

affect our results and you should not consider any such list of factors to be complete set of all potential risks or

uncertainties Any forward-looking statements made by us or on our behalf speak only as of the date they are made We do

not undertake to update any forward-looking statement except as required by applicable law

Business Overview

We are financial holding company headquartered in Boca Raton Florida

On December 11 2009 we announced that 1st United Bank our banking subsidiary had entered into purchase and

assumption agreement the Republic Agreement with the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation FDIC as receiver for

Republic Federal Bank National Association Republic Miami Florida the Republic Acquisition According to the

terms of the Republic Agreement United Bank assumed all deposits except certain brokered deposits and borrowings

and acquired certain of the assets of Republic All deposits were assumed by United Bank Assets acquired included $238

million in loans based on Republics carrying value and $64.2 million in cash and investments All of Republics

repossessed or foreclosed real estate and substantially all non-performing loans were retained by the FDIC Republic

operated four banking centers in Miami-Dade County Florida which immediately became banking centers of 1st United
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The acquired loans are covered by two loss share agreements the Loss Share Agreements between the FDIC and 1st

United Bank which affords 1St United Bank significant loss protection Under the Loss Share Agreements the FDIC will

cover 80% of covered loan and foreclosed real estate losses up to $36 million and 95% of losses in excess of that amount

The Loss Share Agreements also cover third party collection costs and 90 days of accrued interest on covered assets The

term for loss sharing on residential real estate loans is ten years while the term for loss sharing on non-residential real estate

loans is five
years

with respect to losses and eight years with respect to loss recoveries The reimbursable losses from the

FDIC are based on the book value of the relevant loan as determined by the FDIC at the date of the transaction New loans

made after that date are not covered by the Loss Share Agreements

1st United Bank received $34.2 million net discount on the assets acquired The acquisition was accounted for under the

purchase method of accounting in accordance with FASB ASC 805 Business Combinations The purchased assets and

assumed liabilities were recorded at their respective acquisition date fair values and identifiable intangible assets were

recorded at fair value Fair values are preliminary and subject to refinement for up to one year after the closing date of the

acquisition as new information relative to closing date fair values becomes available We recorded an estimated receivable

from the FDIC in the amount of $32.9 million as of December 11 2009 which represents the fair value of the FDICs

portion of the losses that are expected to be incurred and reimbursed to us The Loss Sharing Agreements are subject to

certain servicing procedures as specified in the agreements

An acquisition gain totaling $23.3 million resulted from the acquisition and is included as component of noninterest income

on the statement of income

On August 15 2008 1st United Bank completed an acquisition of the branch network substantially all of the deposits and

selected loans of Citrus Bank N.A headquartered in Vero Beach Florida We refer to this as the Citrus Acquisition The

Citrus Acquisition resulted in the assumption and acquisition of approximately $87.5 million in deposits and $38 million in

net loans In addition we expanded our banking centers to Vero Beach Sebastian and Barefoot Bay Florida As condition

of receiving regulatory approval of the acquisition we committed not to enter into any additional acquisition agreements

unless it is funded with common stock or until we have been profitable for four consecutive quarters

On February 29 2008 we completed the merger and acquisition of Equitable Financial Group Inc Equitable and its

wholly-owned subsidiaries Equitable Bank and Equitable Equity Lending which we refer to as the Equitable Merger We

issued 1928610 shares of our common stock and paid cash of approximately $27.6 million to the Equitable shareholders and

option holders The Equitable Merger increased our banking centers from to 11 locations In addition we acquired

approximately $146.9 million in net loans $29.9 million in cash and securities $136.0 million in deposits and $25.7 million

in repurchase agreements and borrowings in the Equitable Merger We recorded approximately $37.4 million in goodwill and

$1.4 million in core deposit intangibles as result of the Equitable Merger

We follow business plan that emphasizes the delivery of commercial banking services to businesses and individuals in our

geographic market who desire high level of personalized service The business plan includes business banking professional

market services real estate lending and private banking as well as full community banking products and services The

business plan also provides for an emphasis on our Small Business Administration lending program as well as on small

business lending We focus on the building of balanced loan and deposit portfolio with emphasis on low cost liabilities and

variable rate loans

As is the case with banking institutions generally our operations are materially and significantly influenced by general

economic conditions and by related monetary and fiscal policies of financial institution regulatory agencies including the

Federal Reserve Bank and the FDIC Deposit flows and costs of funds are influenced by interest rates on competing

investments and general market rates of interest Lending activities are affected by the demand for financing of real estate and

other types of loans which in turn is affected by the interest rates at which such financing may be offered and other factors

affecting local demand and availability of funds We face strong competition in the attraction of deposits our primary source

of lendable funds and in the origination of loans

Financial Overview

Net earnings for the year ended December 31 2009 were $4.7 million compared to net loss of $1.4

million in 2008 Our results for 2009 were impacted by gain due to the Republic Acquisition of $23.3

million offset by acquisition related costs of $2.7 million and provision for loan losses of $13.2 million

Net interest margin declined to 3.69% for the twelve months ended December 31 2009 compared to 4.23%

for the twelve months ended December 31 2008
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Non-accrual loans at December 31 2009 represented 2.83% of total loans compared to 1.76% at

December 31 2008

The changes in operating results for the period ended December 31 2009 when compared to the period

ended December 31 2008 and for the balance sheet at December 31 2009 when compared to

December 31 2008 were substantially result of the Republic Acquisition Equitable Merger and Citrus

Acquisition

Total assets increased to $1016 billion at December 31 2009 from $617.8 million at December 31 2008

primarily due to the Republic Acquisition

Total shareholders equity increased to $172.3 million at December 31 2009 from $98.9 million at

December 31 2008 primarily due to the common stock offering during 2009 which resulted in net proceeds

of $74.9 million

The percentage of non-interest bearing deposits to total deposits was 24.2% at December 31 2009

compared to $23.l% at December 31 2008

Financial Condition

At December 31 2009 our total assets were 1.016 billion and our net loans were $667.7 million or 65.7% of total assets

At December 31 2008 our total assets were $617.8 million and our net loans were $480.4 million or 77.8% of total assets

The increase in net loans from December 31 2008 to December 31 2009 was $187.2 million or 39.0% This increase was

mainly attributed to the Republic Acquisition which added approximately $198.5 million in net loans During 2009 we had

new loan production of $58.6 million including loans originated for sale which was offset by payoffs sales pay downs and

charge-offs of approximately $69.9 million

At December 31 2009 the allowance for loan losses was $13.3 million or 1.95% of total loans At December 31 2008 the

allowance for loan losses was $5.8 million or 1.19% of total loans

At December 31 2009 our total deposits were $802.8 million an increase of $366.5 million 84% over December 31 2008

of $436.3 million Non interest bearing deposits represented 24.2% of total deposits at December 31 2009 compared to

23.1% at December 31 2008 The increase was mainly due to the Republic Acquisition in December 2009 which added

approximately $349.6 million in deposits

Federal Home Loan Advances decreased $51 million to $5 million at December 31 2009 when compared to 2008 primarily

due to repayments due to the net liquidity received in the Republic Acquisition of approximately $137 million after repaying

Republics borrowings

Results of Operations

We recorded net earnings of $4.7 million for the year
ended December 31 2009 compared to loss of $1.4 million for the

year
ended December 31 2008 The income for the year was substantially attributed to gain from the Republic Acquisition

of $23.3 million offset by an increase of $13.2 million to the loan loss reserve and acquisition costs of $2.7 million Overall

operating expenses
increased primarily as result of the Republic Acquisition in December 2009 and full year of operating

costs related to the Equitable Merger and Citrus Acquisition in 2008

We recorded loss of $1.4 million for the year ended December 31 2008 compared to earnings of $3.4 million for the year

ended December 31 2007 The loss for 2008 was substantially attributed to merger related expense of $1.4 million and an

increase of $1.9 million to the loan loss reserve The decrease in net earnings was mainly due to this merger related expense

in 2008 and significant tax benefit of $3.4 million recorded in 2007 which we did not receive in 2008 In addition lower

net interest margin in 2008 resulted from the aggressive reduction to the prime lending rate during 2008 Operating expenses

increased as result of the Equitable Merger and Citrus Acquisition transactions during 2008

Net Interest Income

Net interest income which constitutes the principal source of our income represents the excess of interest income on

interest-earning assets over interest
expense on interest-bearing liabilities The principal interest-earning assets are federal

funds sold investment securities and loans Interest-bearing liabilities primarily consist of time deposits interest-bearing

checking accounts NOW accounts savings deposits money market accounts FHLB borrowings and repurchase

agreements Funds attracted by these interest-bearing liabilities are invested in interest-earning assets Accordingly net

interest income depends upon the volume of average interest-earning assets and average interest-bearing liabilities and the

interest rates earned or paid on them
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The following table reflects the components of net interest income setting forth for the periods presented average assets

liabilities and shareholders equity interest income earned on interest-earning assets and interest paid on interest-bearing

liabilities average yields earned on interest-earning assets and average rates paid on interest-bearing liabilities our net

interest spread i.e the average yield on interest-earning assets less the average rate on interest-bearing liabilities and our

net interest margin i.e the net yield on interest earning assets

Net interest earnings for the years ended December 31 2009 and 2008 are reflected in the following table

Dollars in thousands Year ended

December 31 2009 December 31 2008

Average Average

Interest Rates Interest Rates

Average Income Earned Average Income Earned

Balance Expense Paid Balance Expense Paid

Assets

Interest-earning assets

Loans 506625 26196 5.17% 439124 28017 6.38%

Investment securities 48289 2118 4.39% 36417 1806 4.96%

Federal funds sold and securities purchased

under resale agreements 22236 225 1.01% 13472 427 3.17%

Total interest earning assets 577150 28539 4.94% 489013 30250 6.19%

Non-interest earning assets 82508 66246

Allowance for loan losses 6590 4133
Total Assets 653068 551126

Liabilities and Shareholders Equity

Interest-bearing liabilities

NOW accounts 63150 154 0.24% 47851 456 0.95%

Moneymarketaccounts 105755 1055 1.00% 92959 1804 1.94%

Savings accounts 14842 97 0.65% 9585 69 0.72%

Certificates of deposit 183550 5204 2.84% 157601 5861 3.72%

Repos 14331 38 0.27% 20061 204 1.02%

Other borrowings 33932 698 2.06% 41553 1190 2.86%

Total interest-bearing liabilities 415560 7246 1.74% 369610 9584 2.59%

Non-interest-bearing liabilities

Demand deposit accounts 108716 93451

Other liabilities 4929 4461

Total non-interest-bearing liabilities 113645 97912

Shareholders Equity 123863 83604

Total Liabilities and Shareholders Equity 653068 551126

Net interest spread 21293 3.20% 20666 3.59%

Net interest on average earning assets-Margin 3.69% 4.23%

Average loans include non-performing loans Interest on loans includes loan fees of $175 in 2009 $427 in 2008 and

$209 in 2007

Net interest margin is net interest income divided by average total interest-earning assets

Net interest income was $21.3 million for the
year

ended December 31 2009 compared with $20.7 million for the year ended

December 31 2008 an increase of $627000 or 3% The increase resulted primarily from an increase in average earning

assets of $88 million or 18% due primarily to the Equitable Merger and Citrus Acquisition in 2008 and the common stock

offering and Republic Acquisition in 2009 This increase was substantially offset by decrease in net interest margin The

net interest margin for the year ended December 31 2009 was negatively impacted by the full impact of decreases in the

overnight Federal funds rate and 1st United Banks and the prime lending rate published in The Wall Street Journal which

occurred throughout the last quarter of 2007 and throughout 2008 substantial portion of 1st United Banks loans

approximately 51% of total loans fluctuate at least quarterly with changes in 1st United Banks and The Wall Street

Journals prime rate Since January 2007 1st United Banks and the The Wall Street Journals lending prime rate has
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decreased from 8.25% to 3.25% at December 31 2009 This decrease has had negative impact on our interest income and

margin We expect that the 175 basis point decrease in the overnight Federal funds rate since October 2008 and the similar

decrease in 1st United Banks and The Wall Street Journals prime rate to have further negative impact on our net interest

income and margin

Net interest earnings for the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007 are reflected in the following table

Year ended

Interest-earning assets

Loans

Investment securities

Federal funds sold securities purchased

under resale agreements and other

Total interest earning assets

Non-interest earning assets

Allowance for loan losses

Total Assets

Liabilities and Shareholders Equity

Interest-bearing liabilities

NOW accounts

Money market accounts

Savings accounts

Certificates of deposit

Federal funds purchased and Repos

Other borrowings

Total interest-bearing liabilities

Non-interest-bearing liabilities

Demand deposit accounts

Other liabilities

Total non-interest bearing liabilities

Average

Rates

Earned

Paid

Interest

Average Income

Balance Expense

6.38% 274030 22398

4.96% 36190 1664

Average

Rates

Earned

Paid

3.17% 12543 637 5.08%

6.19% 322763 24699 7.65%

28446

2229
348980

0.95% 35722 642 1.80%

1.94% 64984 2428 3.74%

0.72% 3010 10 0.33%

3.72% 79520 4178 5.25%

1.02% 19645 779 3.97%

2.86% 27107 1437 5.30%

2.59% 229988 9474 4.12%

66101

1768

67869

Shareholders Equity 83604 51123

Total Liabilities and Shareholders Equity 551126 348980

Net interest spread 20666 3.59% 15225 3.53%

Net interest on average earning assets Margin 4.23%

Average loans include non-performing loans Interest on loans includes loan fees of $42 in 2008 $209 in 2007 and

$229 in 2006

Net interest margin is net interest income divided by average total interest-earning assets

Our 2008 net interest income was positively impacted by the increase in loans primarily from the $184.7 million of loans we

acquired in the Equitable Merger and Citrus Acquisition As the Equitable Merger was effective February 29 2008 the

merged assets affected net income for ten months while the Citrus Acquisition which was effective August 15 2008

affected operations for four and one-half months Total loans grew by $201.5 million or 70.6% from $285.4 million at

December 31 2007 to $486.9 million at December 31 2008 At December 31 2008 net loans represented 77.9% of total

assets and 110.3% of total deposits versus 75.4% of total assets and 104% of total deposits at December 31 2007 Net

interest margin for the year ended December 31 2008 were negatively impacted by the impact of decreases in the overnight

Federal funds rate and 1st United Banks and the prime lending rate published in The Wall Street Journal which occurred in

the last quarter of 2007 and throughout 2008 substantial portion of 1st United Banks loans approximately 60% of total

loans fluctuate at least quarterly with changes in 1st United Banks and The Wall Street Journals prime rate Since

January 2007 1st United Banks and The Wall Street Journals lending prime rate has decreased from 8.25% to 3.25% at

December 31 2008 This decrease has had negative impact on our interest income and margin

Dollars in thousands

Assets

December 31 2008 December 31 2007

8.17%

4.60%

Interest

Average Income

Balance Expense

439124 28017

36417 1806

13472 427

489013 30250

66246

4133
551126

47851 456

92959 1804

9585 69

157601 5861

20061 204

41553 1190

369610 9584

93451

4461

97912

4.72%
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Rate Volume Analysis

The following table sets forth certain information regarding changes in our interest income and interest expense for the year

ended December 31 2009 as compared to the year ended December 31 2008 and during the year ended December 31 2008

as compared to the year ended December 31 2007 For each category of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing

liabilities information is provided on changes attributable to changes in interest rate and changes in the volume Changes in

both volume and rate have been allocated based on the proportionate absolute changes in each category

Changes in interest earnings for the years ended December 31 2009 and 2008 were as follows

Dollars in thousands

Assets

Interest-earning assets

Loans

Investment Securities

Federal funds sold and securities purchased under

resale agreements

Total interest-earning assets

Net interest spread

Years ended

December 31 2009 and 2008

Change in

Interest

Income

Expense _________ __________

1821 3941 5762
312 539 227

202 185 387
1711 4665 6376j

302
749

28

657
166
492

2338

113

222

35

871

46
194

1001

415
971

1528
120
298

3339

627 3664 3037

Changes in interest earnings for the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007 were as follows

Dollars in thousands

Assets

Interest-earning assets

Loans

Investment Securities

Federal funds sold and securities purchased under

resale agreements

Total interest-earning assets

Liabilities and Shareholders Equity

Interest-bearing liabilities

NOW accounts

Money market accounts

Savings accounts

Certificates of deposit

Federal funds purchased and
repos

Other borrowings

Total interest-bearing liabilities

Net interest spread

Years ended

December 31 2008 and 2007

Change in Variance Variance

Interest Due to Due to

Income Volume Rate

Expense Changes Changes

5619 11324 5705
142 10 132

210 44 254
5551 11378 5827

Variance Variance

Due to

Volume

Changes

Due to

Rate

Changes

Liabilities and Shareholders Equity

Interest-bearing liabilities

NOW accounts

Money market accounts

Savings accounts

Certificates of deposit

Federal funds purchased and repos

Other borrowings

Total interest-bearing liabilities

186
624

59

1683

575
247

110

175

808

38

3179
16

577

4793

361
1432

21

1496
591
824

4683

5441 6585 1144

48



Provision for Loan Losses

The provision for loan losses is charged to earnings to bring the allowance for loan losses to level deemed appropriate by

management and is based upon anticipated experience the volume and type of lending conducted by us the amounts of past

due and non-performing loans general economic conditions particularly as they relate to our market area and other factors

related to the collectability of our loan portfolio For the
year

ended December 31 2009 the provision for loan losses was

$13.2 million as compared to $1.9 million for 2008 The primary reason for the increase was due to continuing deterioration

of market conditions which resulted in an increase in classified loans reduced appraisal valuations increased non-performing

loans and an increase in charge-offs during the year For the year ended December 31 2008 the provision for loan losses

was $1.9 million as compared to $145000 for the
year

ended December 31 2007 The primary reason for the increase was

due to deterioration of market conditions which resulted in an increase in non-performing loans and an increase in charge

offs during the year As of December 31 2009 and 2008 the allowance for loan losses was 1.95% and 1.19% respectively

of total loans As of December 31 2009 and 2008 the allowance for loan losses to non-accrual loans was 69.0% and 68.0%

respectively

Non-Interest Income

Following is schedule of non-interest income for the
years

ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007

Dollars in thousands Year ended

December 31
2009 2008 2007

Service charges fees on deposit accounts 1418 1262 573

Loss on sale of OREO 64
Net gain on sale of securities 596 119

Net gain on sale and fee referrals of government guaranteed

loans 17 371

Net gain on sale of residential real estate loans 98 109 491

Increase in cash surrender value of company owned life

insurance 156 178 177

Gain on acquisition 23292

Other 223 352 299

$25719 2037 1911

Non-interest income increased to $25.7 million for the
year

ended December 31 2009 from $2 million in 2008 The increase

of $23.7 million was mainly the result of one-time recorded gain on acquisition of $23.3 million due to the Republic

Acquisition

Service charges and fees on deposit accounts have increased by $156000 or 12.4% for the year ended December 31 2009 as

compared to the
year

ended December 31 2008 This increase was primarily due to the increase in average deposits of

18.6% in 2009 as compared to 2008 due primarily from the full year of deposits from the Equitable Merger and Citrus

Acquisition

We have experienced an overall slow down in the origination of residential loans for sale since 2007 resulting in decrease in

net gain on sales of residential loans from $491000 in the year ended December 31 2007 to $98000 for the year ended

December 31 2009 The slow down has been primarily result of the overall slow down in home sales in South Florida

We have reduced the staff originating residential loans from seven in 2007 to two employees as of December 31 2009

Service charges and fees on deposit accounts increased by $684000 or 120.2% for the year ended December 31 2008 as

compared to the
year

ended December 31 2007 The increase was primarily due to the increase in deposits resulting from

the Equitable Merger and Citrus Acquisition Gain on sale of residential loans decreased by $382000 or 77.8% for the year

ended December 31 2008 when compared to the
year

ended December 31 2007 This decrease was primarily due to the

slowdown of the economy in 2008

During the year ended December 31 2009 we sold approximately $32.1 million of securities resulting in net gain of

$596000 as compared to 2008 where we sold $7.1 million of securities for net gain of $119000

Other non-interest income decreased by $129000 to $223000 at December 31 2009 primarily due to reduction in

prepayment penalty income on loans during 2009

As we discussed in the section Lending Activity in Item above we generally sell the guaranteed portions of SBA loans

we originate Gain on sales of loans represents the portion of the gain on such sales that is recognizable under generally
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accepted accounting principles Included in other fee income is loan servicing fee income on the portion of SBA loans sold

The amount recognized as income is directly related to the balances of loans outstanding serviced by us In addition we sell

most of our first mortgage residential loans servicing released

Non-Interest Expenses

Following is schedule of non-interest expense for years ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007

Dollars in thousands Year ended

December 31
2009 2008 2007

Salaries and employee benefits 9808 10540 9281

Occupancy expense 6113 5634 4007
Data Processing 1858 1684 1167

Telephone 557 531 412

Advertising 78 119 167

Stationary and supplies 224 294 233

Amortization of intangibles 313 250 96

FDIC assessment 1140 327 135

Professional fees 1134 278 207

Acquisition related expenses 2711 1395

Impairment losses recognized in earnings 120 130

Other 2112 1722 1284

26168 22904 $16989

Non-interest expense is comprised of salaries and employee benefits occupancy and equipment expense and other operating

expenses incurred in supporting our various business activities During the year ended December 31 2009 non-interest

expense increased to $26.2 million compared to $22.9 million for the year ended December 31 2008 an increase of $3.3

million or 14.3%

Salary and employee benefit costs were $9.8 million in 2009 or $732000 less than 2008 The decrease is primarily due to

approximately 24 employees that were acquired in the Equitable Merger and Citrus Acquisition and worked for us portion

of 2008 and were terminated after the conversion and integration of the entities

As part of the Republic Acquisition on December 11 2009 we added 85 employees Of these 85 employees we anticipate

35 positions being eliminated by June 30 2010 In addition we anticipate expensing in the first half of 2010 approximately

$700000 in stay bonuses and severance to certain staff who stay through the conversion and integration of Republic

Occupancy expenses were $6.1 million in 2009 or an increase of $479000 compared to 2008 The increase was primarily

result of full year of occupancy costs related to the locations added from the Equitable Merger and the Citrus Acquisition in

2008

As part of the Republic Acquisition we added four new banking centers By March 11 2010 we may request that the FDIC

repudiate the leases on these banking centers As of the date of the Form 10-K we have not requested the FDIC to repudiate

We will continue to pay rent on these spaces under the current leases entered into by Republic until we either vacate the

space after the repudiation or negotiate new lease for the existing space or identify an alternative site for the branch facility

Data processing costs were $1.86 million or an increase of $174000 compared to 2008 primarily as result of the full
year

of costs related to the increased loans and deposits serviced from the Equitable Merger and Citrus Acquisition

Professional fees were $1.13 million or an increase of $856000 compared to 2008 primarily as result of collection efforts

from the increase in non-performing loans classified assets and charge-offs during 2009

The FDIC assessment increased due to the increase in deposits during the year as well as special assessment of $293000 in

2009 that the FDIC assessed on all financial institutions In addition our assessment rates which also include those for

participating in the FDIC transactions account guarantee program increased from 6.25 to 14.50 basis points during the year

Acquisition related costs of $2.7 million in 2009 related primarily to integration legal and valuation expenses for the

Republic Acquisition the termination of leases related to excess space and one-time compensation related costs
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Other non-interest expense of $2.1 million in 2009 increased $390000 compared to 2008 primarily due to the full year of

operations in 2009 from the Equitable Merger and Citrus Acquisition

During the year ended December 31 2008 non-interest
expense

increased to $22.9 million compared to $17.0 million for the

year
ended December 31 2007 an increase of $5.9 million or 34.8% Merger related expenses accounted for approximately

$1.4 million of the increase These expenses included the estimated current period costs related to the closing of three

offices bonuses related to the Equitable Merger and miscellaneous other costs

The remaining other expenses included in non-interest expense increased approximately $4.5 million from the
year

ended

December 31 2007 compared to December 31 2008 The individual increases were primarily result of the Equitable

Merger and Citrus Acquisition whereby ten months of combined expenses were included in the period ended December 31

2008 due to the Equitable Merger and four and one-half months combined expenses from the Citrus Acquisition Salaries

and employee benefits increased $1.3 million or 13.6% from the year ended December 31 2007 to 2008 Total full-time and

part-time employees at December 31 2007 were 104 and 13 respectively compared to 141 full-time and 12 part-time at

December 31 2008 Fifty employees added from the Equitable Merger were partially offset by planned reduction in staff

of 16 employees In addition we added 22 new full-time and three part-time employees from the Citrus Acquisition

Occupancy and equipment expense
increased $1.6 million or 40.6% from the period ended December 31 2007 to

December 31 2008 The increase was result of adding five new banking centers due to the Equitable Merger and three new

banking centers as result of the Citrus Acquisition as well as expenses
related to two new banking centers opened by us

since December 31 2007 the recurring increase in costs due to relocating to permanent facility for one branch and the

occupancy costs related to the operations center Other operating expenses
for the period ended December 31 2008

excluding the above merger related expenses were $1.6 million higher or 44.2% mainly due to the effect of the Equitable

Merger and the Citrus Acquisition

During the
year

ended December 31 2008 we converted the Equitable data processing system into ours Approximately

$200000 in personnel and data processing relating costs were incurred during the year ended December 31 2008 related to

operating the two different systems for part of the period

Income Tax Expense Benefit

During the year ended December 31 2009 we recognized an income tax expense of $2.88 million due to pre-tax earnings of

$7.06 million

In the year ended December 31 2008 we recognized an income tax benefit of $752000 due to the pre-tax loss of $2.1

million We recognized an income tax benefit of $3.4 million for the year
ended December 31 2007 due to the reversal of

valuation allowance related to deferred tax assets which management determined that the benefits will be utilized prior to

expiration

Inflation

The impact of inflation on the banking industry differs significantly from that of other industries in which large portion of

total resources are invested in fixed assets such as property plant and equipment

Assets and liabilities of financial institutions are virtually all monetary in nature and therefore are primarily impacted by

interest rates rather than changing prices While the general level of inflation underlies most interest rates interest rates react

more to changes in the expected rate of inflation and to changes in monetary and fiscal policy Net interest income and the

interest rate spread are good measures of our ability to react to changing interest rates and are discussed in further detail in

the section entitled Results of Operations

Interest Rate Risk Management

Our net income is largely dependent on net interest income Net interest income is susceptible to interest rate risk to the

degree that interest-bearing liabilities mature or reprice on different basis than interest-earning assets When interest-

bearing liabilities mature or reprice more quickly than interest-earning assets in given period significant increase in

market rates of interest could adversely affect net interest income Similarly when interest-earning assets mature or reprice

more quickly than interest-bearing liabilities falling interest rates could result in decrease in net interest income Net

interest income is also affected by changes in the portion of interest-earning assets that are funded by interest-bearing

liabilities rather than by other sources of funds such as non-interest-bearing deposits and shareholders equity

We manage our assets and liabilities through 1st Uniteds Asset Liability Committee ALCO Board Committee which

meets monthly Management closely monitors 1st Uniteds three interest risk calculations reporting the results of its rate

stress testing to ALCO on quarterly basis
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We have established policy limits of risk which are quantitative measures of the percentage change in net interest income

measure of net interest income at risk and the fair value of equity capital measure of economic value of equity EVE at

risk resulting from hypothetical change in interest rates for maturities from one day to 30 years We measure the potential

adverse impacts that changing interest rates may have on our short-term earnings long-term value and liquidity by

employing simulation analysis through the use of computer modeling The simulation model captures optionality factors such

as call features and interest rate caps
and floors imbedded in investment and loan portfolio contracts As with any method of

gauging interest rate risk there are certain shortcomings inherent in the interest rate modeling methodology used by us When

interest rates change actual movements in different categories of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities loan

prepayments and withdrawals of time and other deposits may deviate significantly from assumptions used in the model

Finally the methodology does not measure or reflect the impact that higher rates may have on adjustable-rate loan

customers ability to service their debts or the impact of rate changes on demand for loan lease and deposit products

Our interest rate risk management goal is to avoid unacceptable variations in net interest income and capital levels due to

fluctuations in market rates Management attempts to achieve this goal by balancing within policy limits the volume of

floating-rate liabilities with similar volume of floating-rate assets by keeping the average maturity of fixed-rate asset and

liability contracts reasonably matched by maintaining pool of administered core deposits and by adjusting pricing rates to

market conditions on continuing basis

The balance sheet is subject to testing for interest rate shock possibilities to indicate the inherent interest rate risk Average

interest rates are shocked by plus or minus 100 and 200 basis points bp and plus 300bp although we may elect not to use

particular scenarios that we determined are impractical in current rate environment It is managements goal to structure the

balance sheet so that net interest earnings at risk over 12-month period and the economic value of equity at risk do not

exceed policy guidelines at the various interest rate shock levels

1st United has been consistently within policy limits on rates stress test up and down 100 200 and 300 basis points both for

net interest margin and EVE Management has closely monitored 1st Uniteds gap position which for the most part has been

asset sensitive during rising rate environment Variations on EVE have consistently shown low volatility

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Liquidity

We manage our liquidity position with the objective of maintaining sufficient funds to respond to the needs of depositors and

borrowers and to take advantage of earnings enhancement opportunities In addition to the normal inflow of funds from core-

deposit growth together with repayments and maturities of loans and investments we utilize other short-term funding sources

such as brokered time deposits securities sold under agreements to repurchase overnight federal funds purchased from

correspondent banks and the acceptance of short-term deposits from public entities and Federal Home Loan Bank advances

We monitor and manage our liquidity position on several bases which vary depending upon the time period As the time

period is expanded other data is factored in including estimated loan funding requirements estimated loan payoffs

investment portfolio maturities or calls and anticipated depository buildups or runoffs

We classify all of our securities as available-for-sale thereby maintaining liquidity Our liquidity position is further enhanced

by structuring our loan portfolio interest payments as monthly complemented by retail credit and residential mortgage loans

in our loan portfolio resulting in steady stream of loan repayments In managing our investment portfolio we provide for

staggered maturities so that cash flows are provided as such investments mature

Our cash flows are comprised of three classifications cash flows from operating activities cash flows from investing

activities and cash flows from financing activities Cash flows used in investing activities offset by those provided by

operating activities and financing activities resulted in net increase in cash and cash equivalents of $116.1 million from

December 31 2008 to December 31 2009 and during 2009 we experienced net cash transferred from acquisitions of $183

million and an overall increase in deposits of $16.9 million

Our securities portfolio federal funds sold and cash and due from bank deposit balances serve as primary sources of

liquidity for us Cash and due from bank balances of $135.2 million and unpiedged securities in the amount of $47.6 million

At December 31 2009 we had borrowings from the FHLB of $5.0 million At December 31 2009 we had commitments to

originate loans totaling $71.4 million Scheduled maturities of certificates of deposit during the twelve months following

December 31 2009 totaled $274.5 million

Management believes that we have adequate resources to fund all of our commitments that substantially all of our existing

commitments will be funded in the subsequent twelve months and if so desired that we can adjust the rates on certificates of

deposit and other deposit accounts to retain deposits in changing interest rate environment At December 31 2009 we had
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short-term lines available from correspondent banks totaling $26.0 million FRB discount window availability of $42.8

million and borrowing capacity from the FHLB of $61.9 million based on collateral pledged for total credit available of

$130.7 million In addition being well capitalized the Bank can access the wholesale deposits for approximately $201.6

million based on current policy limits

Capital Resources

The following table summarizes the changes in our shareholders equity for the periods indicated

Dollars in thousands Year ended December 31
2009 2008

Balance at beginning of period 98870 54498
Issuance of preferred stock 9829 4524

Redemption of preferred stock 15095
Issuance of common stockmerger 28415

Sale/repurchase of common stock 74925 12145
Exercise of options

Stock based compensation expense 543 341

Net income loss 4720 1359
Dividends earned 774 206
Change in unrealized gains losses on available for sale securities 724 512

Balance at end of period 172294 98870

The Federal banking regulatory authorities have adopted certain prompt corrective action rules with respect to depository

institutions The rules establish five capital tiers well capitalized adequately capitalized undercapitalized

significantly undercapitalized and critically undercapitalized The various federal banking regulatory agencies have

adopted regulations to implement the capital rules by among other things defining the relevant capital measures for the five

capital categories An institution is deemed to be well capitalized if it has total risk-based capital ratio of 10% or greater

Tier risk-based capital ratio of 6% or greater and Tier leverage ratio of 5% or greater and is not subject to regulatory

order agreement or directive to meet and maintain specific capital level At December 31 2009 1St United Bank met the

capital ratios of well capitalized financial institution with total risk-based capital ratio of 16.91% Tier risk-based

capital ratio of 14.67% and Tier leverage ratio of 10.70% Depository institutions which fall below the adequately

capitalized category generally are prohibited from making any capital distribution are subject to growth limitations and are

required to submit capital restoration plan There are number of requirements and restrictions that may be imposed on

institutions treated as significantly undercapitalized and if the institution is critically undercapitalized the banking

regulatory agencies have the right to appoint receiver or conservator The following represents United Bancorps

regulatory Capital Ratios for the respective periods

Well

Capitalized

Regulatory December 31

Requirement 2009 2008

Total capital to risk-weighted assets 10.00% 25.76% 11.69%

Tier capital to risk-weighted assets 6.00% 23.54% 9.46%

Tier capital to total average assets 5.00% 17.33% 8.15%

Tier capital to year end assets is 12.72%

On March 13 2009 we issued 10000 shares of Series Series Preferred and 500 shares of Series Series

Preferred non voting cumulative perpetual preferred stock to the United States Department of the Treasury under the

Emergency Economic Stabilization Act The Series Preferred were issued at $1000 per
share while the Series Preferred

issued for $0.01 per share The total proceeds net of issuance costs of approximately $125000 was approximately $9.9

million Both the Series Preferred and the Series Preferred were redeemable for $1000 per
share or total of $10.5

million The Series Preferred paid cumulative dividends of 5% per annum until the 5th anniversary date of their issuance

and thereafter at rate of 9%
per annum The Series Preferred pay cumulative dividends at 9% per annum and could not be

redeemed until the Series Preferred were redeemed The Series Preferred and Series Preferred also provide for various

restrictions including restricting dividends to common shareholders and restrictions on executive compensation
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To facilitate the issuance of the Series Preferred and Series Preferred on February 27 2009 we exchanged all of our

outstanding Series Perpetual Preferred Stock for Series Non-Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock Series

Preferred All of the material terms and conditions of the Series Preferred are identical with the Series Preferred Stock

except that the Series Preferred Stock had liquidation preference over other preferred shares whereas the liquidation

preference of the Series Preferred will be equal to that of the Series Preferred and Series Preferred

During 2009 we issued 16100000 shares of common stock and raised net proceeds of approximately $74.9 million in an

initial public offering of our stock portion of the proceeds of this offering was used to redeem all the Series Preferred

Series Preferred and Series Preferred outstanding

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not currently engage in the use of derivative instruments to hedge interest rate risks However we are party to

financial instruments with off-balance sheet risks in the normal course of business to meet the financing needs of our clients

At December 31 2009 we had $61.6 million in commitments to originate loans and $3.6 million in standby letters of credit

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to customer so long as there is no violation of any condition

established in the contract Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and may require

payment of fee Since many of the commitments are expected to expire without being drawn upon the total commitment

amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements Standby letters of credit are conditional commitments issued

by us to guarantee the performance of client to third party We use the same credit policies in establishing commitments

and issuing letters of credit as we do for on-balance sheet instruments

If commitments arising from these financial instruments continue to require funding at historical levels management does

not anticipate that such funding will adversely impact our ability to meet on-going obligations In the event these

commitments require funding in excess of historical levels management believes current liquidity available lines of credit

from the FHLB investment security maturities and our revolving credit facility provide sufficient source of funds to meet

these commitments

Critical Accounting Policies

Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses is established as losses are estimated to have occurred through provision for loan losses

charged to earnings Loan losses are charged against the allowance when management believes the uncollectibility of loan

balance is confirmed Subsequent recoveries if any are credited to the allowance

The allowance for loan losses is evaluated on regular basis by management and is based upon managements periodic

review of the collectibility of the loans in light of historical experience the nature and volume of the loan portfolio adverse

situations that may affect the borrowers ability to repay estimated value of any underlying collateral and prevailing

economic conditions This evaluation is inherently subjective as it requires estimates that are susceptible to significant

revision as more information becomes available

The allowance consists of specific and general components The specific component relates to loans that are classified as

either loss doubtful substandard or special mention For such loans that are also classified as impaired an allowance is

established when the discounted cash flows or collateral value or observable market price of the impaired loan is lower than

the carrying value of that loan The general component covers nonclassified loans and is based on historical industry loss

experience adjusted for qualitative factors

loan is considered impaired when based on current information and events it is probable that we will be unable to collect

the scheduled payments of principal or interest when due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement Factors

considered by management in determining impairment include payment status collateral value and the probability of

collecting scheduled principal and interest payments when due Loans that experience insignificant payment delays and

payment shortfalls generally are not classified as impaired Management determines the significance of payment delays and

payment shortfalls on case-by-case basis taking into consideration all of the circumstances surrounding the loan and the

borrower including the length of the delay the reasons for the delay the borrowers prior payment record and the amount of

the shortfall in relation to the principal and interest owed Impairment is measured on loan by loan basis for commercial and

commercial real estate loans by either the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loans effective

interest rate the loans obtainable market price or the fair value of the collateral if the loan is collateral dependent

Large groups
of smaller balance homogeneous loans are collectively evaluated for impairment Accordingly we do not

separately identify individual consumer and residential loans for impairment disclosures
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Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill represents the excess of cost over fair value of assets of business acquired Goodwill and intangible assets acquired

in purchase business combination and determined to have an indefinite useful life are not amortized but instead tested for

impairment at least annually Intangible assets with estimable useful lives are amortized over their respective estimated useful

lives to their estimated residual values We acquired First Western Bank on April 2004 Equitable on February 29 2008

certain assets of Citrus on August 15 2008 and certain assets of Republic on December 11 2009 Consequently we were

required to record the assets acquired including identified intangible assets and liabilities assumed at their fair value which

involves estimates based on third party valuations such as appraisals internal valuations based on discounted cash flow

analyses or other valuation techniques The determination of the useful lives of intangible assets is subjective as is the

appropriate amortization period for such intangible assets In addition purchase acquisitions typically result in recording

goodwill which is subject to ongoing periodic impairment tests based on the fair value of the reporting unit compared to its

carrying amount including goodwill As of December 31 2009 the required annual impairment test of goodwill was

performed and no impairment existed as of the valuation date If for any future period we determine that there has been

impairment in the carrying value of our goodwill balances we will record charge to our earnings which could have

material adverse effect on our net income Goodwill and intangible assets are described further in Notes and of the notes

to the consolidated financial statements

Income Taxes

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recorded to reflect the tax consequences on future years of temporary

differences between revenues and expenses reported for financial statements and those reported for income tax purposes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in

which those temporary differences are expected to be realized or settled Valuation allowances are provided against assets

which are not likely to be realized

Item 6A quantitative and qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

Not Applicable for smaller reporting companies

Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Shareholders

1st United Bancorp Inc

Boca Raton Florida

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of 1St United Bancorp Inc as of December 31 2009 and

2008 and the related consolidated statements of income changes in shareholders equity and cash flows for each of the three

years in the period ended December 31 2009 These financial statements are the responsibility of the Companys

management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United

States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

financial statements are free of material misstatement The Company is not required to have nor were we engaged to

perform an audit of its internal control over financial reporting Our audit included consideration of internal control over

financial reporting as basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the
purpose

of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Companys internal control over financial reporting Accordingly we

express no such opinion An audit includes examining on test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the

financial statements An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by

management as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation We believe that our audits provide

reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects the financial

position of 1st United Bancorp Inc as of December 31 2009 and 2008 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for

each of the three years in the period ended December 31 2009 in conformity with U.S generally accepted accounting

principles

Is Crowe Horwath LLP

Crowe Horwath LLP

Fort Lauderdale Florida

February 18 2010
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1ST UNITED BANCORP INC

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31 2009 and 2008

Dollar amounts in thousands except per share data

2009 2008

ASSETS
Cash and due from financial institutions 134504 14574

Federal funds sold 737 4528

Cash and cash equivalents 135241 19102

Time deposits in other financial institutions 75 75

Securities available for sale 88843 35075

Loans held for sale 151 1200

Loans net of allowance of $13282 and $5799 at year end 2009 and 2008 667694 480448
Nonmarketable equity securities 10233 6001

Premises and equipment net 9228 10340

Other Real Estate Owned 635

Company-owned life insurance 4566 4462
FDIC loss share receivable 32900
Goodwill 45008 45008
Core deposit intangible 3045 2110
Accrued interest receivable and other assets 17948 14000

1015567 617821

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY
Deposits

Non-interest bearing 194185 100785

Interest bearing 608623 335484

Total deposits 802808 436269
Federal funds purchased and repurchase agreements 22343 18129

Federal Home Loan Bank advances 5000 56013

Other borrowings 5091 5250
Accrued interest payable and other liabilities 8031 3290

Total liabilities 843273 518951

Commitments and contingencies Note 17

Shareholders equity

Preferred stock no par 5000000 shares authorized and undesignated as of December

31 2009 no shares issued or outstanding

Series preferred stock no par 750000 shares authorized 459503 shares issued and

outstanding at December 31 2008 4595
Common stock $0.01 par value 60000000 shares authorized 24781660 and

8670231 issued and outstanding at year end 2009 and 2008 respectively 248 87

Additional paid-in capital 180888 105581

Accumulated deficit 8887 12162
Accumulated other comprehensive income 45 769

Total shareholders equity 172294 98870

$1015567 617821

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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1ST UNITED BANCORP INC
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
Years ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007

Dollar amounts in thousands except per share data

Year ended

December

2009 2008 2007

Interest and dividend income

Loans including fees 26196 28017 22398

Securities 2118 1806 1664

Federal funds sold and other 225 427 637

28539 30250 24699
Interest expense

Deposits 6510 8190 7258

Federal funds purchased and repurchase agreements 38 204 779

Federal Home Loan Bank advances 375 943 1437

Other borrowings 323 247

Total interest expense 7246 9584 9474

Net interest income 21293 20666 15225

Provision for loan losses 13240 1910 145

Net interest income after provision for loan losses 8053 18756 15080

Non-interest income

Service charges on deposit accounts 1418 1262 573

Loss on sale of OREO 64
Net gain on sales of securities 596 119

Net gain on sales and fees from referrals of government guaranteed

loans 17 371

Net gain on sales of residential real estate loans 98 109 491

Gain on acquisition 23292
Increase in cash surrender value of company-owned life insurance 156 178 177

Other 223 352 299

Total noninterest income 25719 2037 1911

Non-interest expense

Salaries and employee benefits 9808 10540 9281

Occupancy and equipment 6113 5634 4007
Data processing 1858 1684 1167

Telephone 557 531 412

Stationery and supplies 224 294 233

Amortization of intangibles 313 250 96

Professional fees 1134 278 207

Advertising 78 119 167

Acquisition related expenses 2711 1395

FDIC assessment 1140 327 135

Other-than-temporary loss

Total impairment loss 120 130

Loss recognized in other comprehensive income

Net impairment loss recognized in earnings 120 130

Other 2112 1722 1284

Total non-interest expense 26168 22904 16989

Income loss before income taxes 7604 2111
Income tax expense benefit 2884 752 3391
Net income loss 4720 1359 3393
Preferred stock dividends earned 774 368 ________________

Net income loss available to common shareholders 3946 1727 3393

Basic earnings loss per share 0.30 0.25 0.72

Diluted earnings loss per share 0.30 0.25 0.71

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years ended December31 2009 2008 and 2007

Dollar amounts in thousands except per share data

2009 2008 2007

Cash flows from operating activities

Net income loss 4720 1359 3393

Adjustments to reconcile net income loss to net cash from operating activities

Provision for loan losses 13240 1910 145

Depreciation and amortization 2021 1784 1306

Net amortization of securities 225 23 17
Impairment of available-for-sale securities 120 130

tncrease in cash surrender value of company-owned life insurance 156 178 177
Stock-based compensation 543 341 34

Net gain loss on sale of securities 596 119
Net gain loss on foreclosed assets 64

Net gain loss on premises and equipment 17
Net gain on sales of loans held for sale 98 109 711
Gain on acquisition 23292
Loans originated for sale 6211 7723 34357
Proceeds from sales of loans held for sale 7509 8937 36589

Net change in

Deferred income taxes 1290 4118 3391
Deferredloanfees 188 18 13
Otherassets 1875 7204 844
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 2365 318 295
Net cash from operating activities 61 215 1645

Cash flows from investing activities

Proceeds from sales/calls of securities 32106 17517 1000

Proceeds from security maturities calls and prepayments 10571 7755 10510

Purchases of securities 63717 20458 13435
Loan originations and payments net 5208 20601 36128
Proceeds from sale of govemment guaranteed and other non residential loans 5158 4797

Proceeds from sale of other real estate owned 2246

Purchase of nonmarketablc equity securities net 1034 2021 239
Cash transferred in connection with acquisitions 183025 41444

Additions to premises and equipment net 303 961 1838
Proceeds from surrender of company-owned life insurance 2252

Purchase of company-owned life insurance 2200
Net cash from investing activities 159806 27833 35333

Cash flows from financing activities

Net increase/decrease in deposits 16892 59462 32025

Net change in federal flsnds purchased and repurchase agreements 490 17833 5774

Net change in short-term Federal Home Loan Bank advances 129581 18798 2500

Net change in other borrowings 414 1187

Proceeds from exercise of stock options 51

Repurchase and retirement of preferred stock 15095 474
Issuance of preferred stock 9829 6529

Issuance of common stock 74925 10140

Dividends paid 774 206 __________
Net cash from financing activities 43728 40847 39876

Net change in cash and cash equivalents 116139 12799 6188

Beginning cash and cash equivalents 19102 31901 25713

Ending cash and cash equivalents 135241 19102 31901

Supplemental cash flow information

Interest paid 6877 9290 9635

Income taxes paid 20

Supplemental disclosures of noncash activities

Series preferred stock converted to common stock 365 2005

Transfer of loans to foreclosed assets 2945

Transfer of loans held for sale to portfolio 883

Transfer of loans to held for sale
portfolio 151 1200

Issuance of common stock pursuant to acquisitions 28415

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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1st United Bancorp Inc

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Years Ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007

Dollars in thousands except per share data

NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Operations and Principles of Consolidation The consolidated financial statements include 1st United Bancorp Inc

Bancorp and its wholly-owned subsidiaries 1st United Bank 1st United and Equitable Equity Lending EEL
together referred to as the Company Intercompany transactions and balances are eliminated in consolidation

Bancorps primary business is the ownership and operation of 1St United 1st United is state chartered commercial bank that

provides financial services through its four offices in Palm Beach County four offices in Broward County five offices in

Miami-Dade County and one each in the cities of Vero Beach Sebastian and Barefoot Bay Florida Its primary deposit

products are checking savings and term certificate accounts and its primary lending products are commercial and residential

mortgages commercial and installment loans Substantially all loans are secured by specific items of collateral including

commercial and residential real estate business assets and consumer assets Commercial loans are expected to be repaid from

cash flow from operations of businesses Other financial instruments which potentially represent concentrations of credit

risk include deposit accounts in other financial institutions and federal funds sold

EEL is commercial finance subsidiary that from time to time will hold foreclosed assets for non-performing loans

transferred from 1st United for disposal and resolution At December 31 2009 EEL held $5.2 million in non-performing

loans

Subsequent Events The Company has evaluated subsequent events for recognition or disclosure through February 18 2010

which is the date that the Companys financial statements were issued

Use of Estimates To prepare
financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United

States of America management makes estimates and assumptions based on available information These estimates and

assumptions affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and the disclosures provided and actual results could

differ The allowance for loan losses carrying value of goodwill carrying value of deferred tax assets and fair values of

financial instruments are particularly subject to change

Cash Flows Cash and cash equivalents includes cash deposits with other financial institutions with original maturities under

90 days and federal funds sold Net cash flows are reported for loan and deposit transactions interest bearing deposits in

other financial institutions and short-term borrowings

Interest-Bearing Deposits in Other Financial Institutions Interest-bearing deposits in other financial institutions mature

within one year and are carried at cost

Securities Debt securities are classified as available for sale when they might be sold before maturity Equity securities with

readily determinable fair values are classified as available for sale Securities available for sale are carried at fair value with

unrealized holding gains and losses reported in other comprehensive income Nonmarketable equity securities such as

Federal Home Loan Bank and Federal Reserve Bank stock are carried at cost and periodically evaluated for impairment

based on ultimate recovery of par value

Interest income includes amortization of purchase premium or discount Premiums and discounts on securities are amortized

on the level-yield method without anticipating prepayments except for mortgage-backed where prepayments are anticipated

Gains and losses on sales are recorded on the trade date and determined using the specific identification method

Management evaluates securities for other-than-temporary impairment OTTI at least on quarterly basis and more

frequently when economic or market conditions warrant such evaluation Consideration is given to the length of time and

the extent to which the fair value has been less than cost the financial condition and near term prospects of the issuer

including an evaluation of credit ratings the impact of changes in market interest rates the intent of the Company to

sell security and whether it is more likely than not the Company will have to sell the security before recovery of its cost

basis If the Company intends to sell an impaired security or if it is more likely than not the Company will have to sell the

security before recovery
of its cost basis the Company records an other-than-temporary loss in an amount equal to the entire

difference between fair value and amortized cost Otherwise only the credit portion of the estimated loss is recognized in

earnings with the other portion of the loss recognized in other comprehensive income
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1st United Bancorp Inc

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Years Ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007

Dollars in thousands except per share data

NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES Continued

Loans Held for Sale Loans held for sale are carried at the lower of aggregate cost or market Net unrealized losses if any are

recorded as valuation allowance and charged to earnings

Residential real estate loans held for sale are sold with servicing released Gains and losses on sales of residential real estate

loans are based on the difference between the selling price and the carrying value of the related loan sold

The guaranteed portion of loans originated through certain government guaranteed lending programs are sold while retaining

the unguaranteed portion and servicing Gains and losses on sales of the guaranteed portion are based on the difference

between the selling price and the allocated canying value of the portion of the loan being sold Additionally the Company

periodically refers government guaranteed loans to third parties Fees for such referrals are recognized into income at the time

of referral

Loans Loans that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future or until maturity or payoff are

reported at the principal balance outstanding net of unearned interest deferred loan fees and costs and an allowance for loan

losses Interest income is accrued on the unpaid principal balance Loan origination fees net of certain direct origination

costs are deferred and recognized in interest income using the level-yield method without anticipating prepayments

Interest income on loans is discontinued at the time the loan is 90 days delinquent unless the loan is well-secured and in

process of collection Past due status is based on the contractual terms of the loan In all cases loans are placed on nonaccrual

or charged-off at an earlier date if collection of principal or interest is considered doubtful

All interest accrued but not received for loans placed on non-accrual is reversed against interest income Interest received on

such loans is accounted for on the cash-basis or cost-recovery method until qualifying for return to accrual Loans are

returned to accrual status when all the principal and interest amounts contractually due are brought current and future

payments are reasonably assured

Concentration of Credit Risk Most of the Companys business activity is with customers located within Palm Beach
Broward and Miami-Dade Counties Therefore the Companys exposure to credit risk is significantly affected by changes in

the economy in these counties

Allowance for Loan Losses The allowance for loan losses is valuation allowance for probable incurred credit losses Loan

losses are charged against the allowance when management believes the uncollectibility of loan balance is confirmed

Subsequent recoveries if any are credited to the allowance Management estimates the allowance balance required using past

loan loss experience the nature and volume of the portfolio information about specific borrower situations and estimated

collateral values economic conditions and other factors Allocations of the allowance may be made for specific loans but

the entire allowance is available for any loan that in managements judgment should be charged-off

The allowance consists of specific and general components The specific component relates to loans that are individually

classified as impaired The general component covers other classified loans and non-classified loans and is based on

historical loss experience adjusted for current factors

loan is considered impaired when based on current information and events it is probable that the Company will be unable

to collect the scheduled payments of principal or interest when due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement

Loans for which the terms have been modified and for which the borrower is experiencing financial difficulties are

considered troubled debt restructurings and classified as impaired

Factors considered by management in determining impairment include payment status collateral value and the probability of

collecting scheduled principal and interest payments when due Loans that experience insignificant payment delays and

payment shortfalls generally are not classified as impaired Management determines the significance of payment delays and

payment shortfalls on case-by-case basis taking into consideration all of the circumstances surrounding the loan and the

borrower including the length of the delay the reasons for the delay the borrowers prior payment record and the amount of

the shortfall in relation to the principal and interest owed
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1st United Bancorp Inc

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Years Ended December 31 20092008 and 2007

Dollars in thousands except per share data

NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES Continued

Impairment is measured on loan-by-loan basis for commercial and construction loans by either the present value of

expected future cash flows discounted at the loans effective interest rate the loans obtainable market price or the fair value

of the collateral if the loan is collateral dependent Impairment for troubled debt restructurings is measured at the present

value of estimated future cash flows using the loans effective rate at inception Large groups of smaller balance

homogeneous loans are collectively evaluated for impairment Accordingly the Company does not separately identify

individual consumer and residential loans for impairment disclosures unless they are considered troubled debt restructurings

Certain Acquired Loans As part of business acquisitions the Company acquires certain loans that have shown evidence of

credit deterioration since origination These acquired loans are recorded at the allocated fair value such that there is no

carryover of the sellers allowance for loan losses Such acquired loans are accounted for individually The Company

estimates the amount and timing of expected cash flows for each purchased loan and the expected cash flows in excess of the

allocated fair value is recorded as interest income over the remaining life of the loan accretable yield The excess of the

loans contractual principal and interest over expected cash flows is not recorded non-accretable difference Over the life of

the loan expected cash flows continue to be estimated If the present value of expected cash flows is less than the carrying

amount loss is recorded through the allowance for loan losses If the present value of expected cash flows is greater than

the carrying amount it is recognized as part of future interest income

Transfers of Financial Assets Transfers of financial assets are accounted for as sales when control over the assets has been

relinquished Control over transferred assets is deemed to be surrendered when the assets have been isolated from the

Company the transferee obtains the right free of conditions that constrain it from taking advantage of that right to pledge or

exchange the transferred assets and the Company does not maintain effective control over the transferred assets through an

agreement to repurchase them before their maturity

Foreclosed Assets Assets acquired through or instead of loan foreclosure are initially recorded at fair value less costs to sell

when acquired establishing new cost basis If fair value declines subsequent to foreclosure valuation allowance is

recorded through expense Costs after acquisition are expensed

Premises and Equipment Premises and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation Depreciation is computed

on straight line basis over the assets useful lives which range from to 10 years
Amortization of leasehold improvements

is computed utilizing the straight-line method over the shorter of the lease term or the useful life of the asset

Company-Owned Life Insurance The Company has purchased life insurance policies on certain key executives Company-

owned life insurance is recorded at the amount that can be realized under the insurance contract at the balance sheet date

which is the cash surrender value adjusted for other charges or other amounts due that are probable at settlement

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets Goodwill resulting from business combinations prior to January 2009 represents

the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of the net assets of businesses acquired Goodwill resulting from business

combinations after January 2009 is generally determined as the excess of the fair value of the consideration transferred

plus the fair value of any noncontrolling interests in the acquiree over the fair value of the net assets acquired and liabilities

assumed as of the acquisition date Goodwill and intangible assets acquired in purchase business combination and

determined to have an indefinite useful life are not amortized but tested for impairment at least annually The Company has

selected December 31 as the date to perform the annual impairment test Intangible assets with definite useful lives are

amortized over their estimated useful lives to their estimated residual values Goodwill is the only intangible asset with an

indefinite life on our balance sheet

Other intangible assets consist of core deposit intangible assets arising from whole bank and branch acquisitions They are

initially measured at fair value and then are amortized on an accelerated method over their estimated useful lives which

range
from to 10 years

Long-Term Assets Premises and equipment and other long-term assets are reviewed for impairment when events indicate

their carrying amount may not be recoverable from future undiscounted cash flows If impaired the assets are recorded at fair

value

Loan Commitments and Related Financial Instruments Financial instruments include off-balance sheet credit instruments

such as commitments to make loans and commercial letters of credit issued to meet customer financing needs The face

amount for these items represents the exposure to loss before considering customer collateral or ability to repay Such

financial instruments are recorded when they are funded
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1st United Bancorp Inc

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Years Ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007

Dollars in thousands except per
share data

NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES Continued

Income Taxes Income tax expense
is the total of the current year income tax due or refundable and the change in deferred

tax assets and liabilities Deferred tax assets and liabilities are the expected future tax amounts for the temporary differences

between carrying amounts and tax bases of assets and liabilities computed using enacted tax rates valuation allowance if

needed reduces deferred tax assets to the amount expected to be realized

The Company adopted FASB Interpretation 48 Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes FIN 48 as of January

2007 tax position is recognized as benefit only if it is more likely than not that the tax position would be sustained in

tax examination with tax examination being presumed to occur The amount recognized is the largest amount of tax benefit

that is greater than 50% likely of being realized on examination For tax positions not meeting the more likely than not test

no tax benefit is recorded The adoption had no affect on the Companys financial statements

The Company recognizes interest and/or penalties related to income tax matters in income tax expense

Earnings Loss Per Share Basic earnings loss per share is net income loss available to common shareholders divided by

the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period Diluted earnings per share includes the

dilutive effect of additional potential common shares issuable under stock options and stock warrants Earnings loss per

share is restated for all stock splits and stock dividends through the date of issue of the financial statements

Stock-Based Compensation Compensation cost is recognized for stock options and restricted stock awards issued to

employees based on the fair value of these awards at the date of grant Black-S choles model is utilized to estimate the fair

value of stock options while the market price of the Corporations common stock at the date of grant is used for restricted

stock awards Compensation cost is recognized over the required service period generally defined as the vesting period For

awards with graded vesting compensation cost is recognized on straight-line basis over the requisite service period for the

entire award

Comprehensive Income Loss Comprehensive income loss consists of net income loss and other comprehensive income

loss Other comprehensive income loss includes unrealized gains and losses on securities available for sale which are also

recognized as separate components of equity

Loss Contingencies Loss contingencies including claims and legal actions arising in the ordinary course of business are

recorded as liabilities when the likelihood of loss is probable and an amount or range
of loss can be reasonably estimated

Management does not believe there now are such matters that will have material effect on the financial statements

Restrictions on Cash Cash on hand or on deposit with the Federal Reserve Bank is required to meet regulatory reserve and

clearing requirements

Fair Value of Financial Instruments Fair values of financial instruments are estimated using relevant market information and

other assumptions as more fully disclosed in separate note Fair value estimates involve uncertainties and matters of

significant judgment regarding interest rates credit risk prepayments and other factors especially in the absence of broad

markets for particular items Changes in assumptions or in market conditions could significantly affect the estimates

Operating Segments While the chief decision-makers monitor the revenue streams of the various products and services

operations are managed and financial performance is evaluated on Company-wide basis Operating segments are

aggregated into one as operating results for all segments are similar Accordingly all of the financial service operations are

considered by management to be aggregated in one reportable operating segment

Reclassifications Some items in the prior year
financial statements were reclassified to conform to the current presentation

Recently Adopted Accounting Standards

In December 2007 the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No 141 revised 2007 Business

Combinations ASC 805 ASC 805 establishes principles and requirements for how an acquirer recognizes and measures in

its financial statements the identifiable assets acquired the liabilities assumed and any noncontrolling interest in an acquiree

including the recognition and measurement of goodwill acquired in business combination ASC 805 was effective for fiscal

years beginning on or after December 15 2008 This new guidance had no impact on the Companys results of operations or

financial position at the date of adoption however it did impact the accounting for the Republic Federal Bank Acquisition

Note and will impact the accounting for future acquisitions
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1St United Bancorp Inc

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Years Ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007

Dollars in thousands except per share data

NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES Continued

In December 2007 the FASB issued SFAS No 160 Noncontrolling Interest in Consolidated Financial Statements an

amendment of ARB No 51 ASC 810-10 ASC 810-10 changes the accounting and reporting for minority interests which is

recharacterized as noncontrolling interests and classified as component of equity within the consolidated balance sheets

ASC 810-10 was effective as of the beginning of the first fiscal year beginning on or after December 15 2008 The adoption

of this standard on January 2009 did not have material impact on the results of operations or financial position

In April 2009 the FASB issued ASC 320-10-65 Recognition and Presentation of Other-Than-Temporary Impairments

which amends existing guidance for determining whether impairment is other-than-temporary OTTI for debt securities

The standard requires an entity to assess whether it intends to sell or it is more likely than not that it will be required to sell

security in an unrealized loss position before recovery of its amortized cost basis If either of these criteria is met the entire

difference between amortized cost and fair value is recognized in earnings For securities that do not meet the

aforementioned criteria the amount of impairment recognized in earnings is limited to the amount related to credit losses

while impairment related to other factors is recognized in other comprehensive income Additionally the standard expands

and increases the frequency of existing disclosures about other-than-temporary impairments for debt and equity securities

This standard is effective for interim and annual reporting periods ending after June 15 2009 with early adoption permitted

for periods ending after March 15 2009 The adoption of this standard on April 2009 did not have material impact on

the results of operations or financial position

In April 2009 the FASB issued ASC 320-10-65 Recognition and Presentation of Other-Than-Temporary Impairments

which amends existing guidance for determining whether impairment is other-than-temporary OTTI for debt securities

The standard requires an entity to assess whether it intends to sell or it is more likely than not that it will be required to sell

security in an unrealized loss position before
recovery

of its amortized cost basis If either of these criteria is met the entire

difference between amortized cost and fair value is recognized in earnings For securities that do not meet the

aforementioned criteria the amount of impairment recognized in earnings is limited to the amount related to credit losses

while impairment related to other factors is recognized in other comprehensive income Additionally the standard expands

and increases the frequency of existing disclosures about other-than-temporary impairments for debt and equity securities

This standard is effective for interim and aimual reporting periods ending after June 15 2009 with early adoption permitted

for periods ending after March 15 2009 The adoption of this standard on April 2009 did not have material impact on

the results of operations or financial position

In April 2009 the FASB issued ASC 885-10 Determining Fair Value When the Volume and Level of Activity for the Asset

and Liability Have Signlcantly Decreased and Identfying Transactions That Are Not Orderly This standard emphasizes

that even if there has been significant decrease in the volume and level of activity the objective of fair value measurement

remains the same Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer liability in an orderly

transaction that is not forced liquidation or distressed sale between market participants The standard provides number

of factors to consider when evaluating whether there has been significant decrease in the volume and level of activity for an

asset or liability in relation to normal market activity In addition when transactions or quoted prices are not considered

orderly adjustments to those prices based on the weight of available information may be needed to determine the appropriate

fair value The standard also requires increased disclosures This standard is effective for interim and annual reporting

periods ending after June 15 2009 and shall be applied prospectively Early adoption is permitted for periods ending after

March 15 2009 The adoption of this standard at June 30 2009 did not have material impact on the results of operations or

financial position

In April 2009 the FASB issued ACS 825-10-65 Interim Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments This

standard amends FASB Statement No 107 Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments to require disclosures

about fair value of financial instruments for interim reporting periods of publicly traded companies that were previously only

required in annual financial statements This standard is effective for interim reporting periods ending after June 15 2009

The adoption of this standard at June 30 2009 did not have material impact on the results of operations or financial position

as it only required disclosures which are included in Note 18
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NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES Continued

In May 2009 the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No 165 Subsequent Events ASC 855-10

Under ASC 855-10 the effects of events that occur subsequent to the balance-sheet date should be evaluated through the date

the financial statements are either issued or available to be issued Companies should disclose the date through which

subsequent events have been evaluated and whether that date is the date the financial statements were issued or the date the

financial statements were available to be issued Companies are required to reflect in their financial statements the effects of

subsequent events that provide additional evidence about conditions at the balance-sheet date recognized subsequent events

Companies are also prohibited from reflecting in their financial statements the effects of subsequent events that provide

evidence about conditions that arose after the balance-sheet date nonrecognized subsequent events but requires information

about those events to be disclosed if the financial statements would otherwise be misleading This guidance was effective

for interim and annual financial periods ending after June 15 2009 with prospective application The adoption of this

standard on June 30 2009 did not have material impact on the results of operations or financial position

In June 2008 the FASB issued FASB Staff Position EITF 03-6-1Determining Whether Instruments Granted in Share-

Based Payment Transactions Are Participating Securities ASC 260-10 This FASB Staff Position FSP addresses whether

instruments granted in share-based payment transactions are participating securities prior to vesting and therefore included

in the earnings allocation in computing earnings per share EPS under the two-class method ASC 260-10 provides that

unvested share-based payment awards that contain non-forfeitable rights to dividends or dividend equivalents whether paid

or unpaid are participating securities and shall be included in the computation of EPS pursuant to the two-class method

This FSP was effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after December 15 2008 and interim

periods within those years All prior-period EPS data presented were to be adjusted retrospectively including interim

financial statements summaries of earnings and selected financial data to conform to the provisions of this FSP The

adoption of this standard on January 2009 did not have material impact on the results of operations or financial position

In June 2009 the FASB issued Accounting Standards Codification ASC Statement No 105 ASC 105 The FASB

Accounting Standards CodficationTM and the Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles which pertains to the

authority of United States generally accepted accounting standards With the issuance of ASC 105 the FASB Accounting

Standards CodificationTM Codification will become the source of authoritative U.S generally accepted accounting

principles recognized by the FASB to be applied by nongovernmental entities Rules and interpretive releases of the

Securities and Exchange Commission SEC under authority of federal securities laws are also sources of authoritative

GAAP for SEC registrants On the effective date of this Statement the Codification will supersede all then-existing non-SEC

accounting and reporting standards All other non-grandfathered non-SEC accounting literature not included in the

Codification will become non-authoritative ASC 105 is effective for financial statements issued for interim and annual

periods ending after September 15 2009 The Company adopted ASC 105 in the third quarter and the adoption did not have

material effect on the results of operations or financial position

Recently Issued and Not Yet Effective Accounting Standards

In June 2009 the FASB amended previous guidance relating to transfers of financial assets and eliminates the concept of

qualifying special purpose entity This guidance must be applied as of the beginning of each reporting entitys first annual

reporting period that begins after November 15 2009 for interim periods within that first annual reporting period and for interim

and annual reporting periods thereafter This guidance must be applied to transfers occurring on or after the effective date

Additionally on and after the effective date the concept of qualifying special-purpose entity is no longer relevant for

accounting purposes Therefore formerly qualifying special-purpose entities should be evaluated for consolidation by reporting

entities on and after the effective date in accordance with the applicable consolidation guidance The disclosure provisions were

also amended and apply to transfers that occurred both before and after the effective date of this guidance Adoption of this

guidance on January 2010 did not have material effect on the Companys results of operations or financial position

In June 2009 the FASB amended guidance for consolidation of variable interest entity guidance by replacing the

quantitative-based risks and rewards calculation for determining which enterprise if any has controlling financial interest

in variable interest entity with an approach focused on identifying which enterprise has the power to direct the activities of

variable interest entity that most significantly impact the entitys economic performance and the obligation to absorb

losses of the entity or the right to receive benefits from the entity Additional disclosures about an enterprises

involvement in variable interest entities are also required This guidance is effective as of the beginning of each reporting

entitys first annual reporting period that begins after November 15 2009 for interim periods within that first annual

reporting period and for interim and annual reporting periods thereafter Early adoption is prohibited Adoption of this

guidance on January 2010 did not have material effect on the Companys results of operations or financial position
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NOTE 2-ACQUISITIONS

Republic Federal Bank Acquisition

On December 11 2009 the Company announced that 1st United had entered into purchase and assumption agreement the

Republic Agreement with the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation FDIC as receiver for Republic Federal Bank
National Association Republic Miami Florida According to the terms of the Republic Agreement 1St United assumed

all deposits except certain brokered deposits and borrowings and acquired certain of the assets of Republic Assets

acquired included $238 million in loans based on Republics carrying value and $64.2 million in cash and investments All

of Republics repossessed or foreclosed real estate and substantially all non-performing loans were retained by the FDIC

Republic operated four banking centers in Miami-Dade County Florida which immediately became banking centers of 1st

United

The acquired loans are covered by two loss share agreements the Loss Share Agreements between the FDIC and 1st

United Bank which affords 1st United significant loss protection Under the Loss Share Agreements the FDIC will cover

80% of covered loan and foreclosed real estate losses up to $36 million and 95% of losses in excess of that amount The

Loss Share Agreements also cover third party collection costs and 90 days of accrued interest on covered assets The term

for loss sharing on residential real estate loans is ten years while the term for loss sharing on non-residential real estate loans

is five years with respect to losses and eight years with respect to loss recoveries The reimbursable losses from the FDIC are

based on the book value of the relevant loan as determined by the FDIC at the date of the transaction New loans made after

that date are not covered by the Loss Share Agreements

1St United received $34.2 million net discount on the assets acquired The acquisition was accounted for under the

acquisition method of accounting in accordance with FASB ASC 805 Business Combinations The purchased assets and

assumed liabilities were recorded at their respective acquisition date fair values and identifiable intangible assets were

recorded at fair value Fair values are preliminary and subject to refinement for up to one year
after the closing date of the

acquisition as new information relative to closing date fair values becomes available The Company recorded an estimated

receivable from the FDIC in the amount of $32.9 million as of December 11 2009 which represents the fair value of the

FDICs portion of the losses that are expected to be incurred and reimbursed to the Company The Loss Sharing Agreements

are subject to certain servicing procedures as specified in the agreements

An acquisition gain totaling $23.3 million resulted from the acquisition and is included as component of noninterest income

on the statement of income

The following summarizes the fair value of the assets and liabilities acquired on December 11 2009

December 11

2009

Cash and cash equivalents 25026

Securities 33637

Federal Reserve Bank and Federal Home Loan Bank Stock 5266

Loans 198562

Core deposit intangible 1248

FDIC Loss Share Receivable 32900

Other assets 3223

TOTAL ASSETS ACQUIRED 299862

Deposits 349647

Repurchase agreements 3724

Federal Home Loan Bank Advances 78823

Other 2376

TOTAL LIABILITIES ASSUMED 434570

Excess of liabilities over assets acquired 134708
Cash received from FDIC 158000

RECORDED GAIN ON ACQUISITION 23292
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NOTE 2ACQUISITIONS continued

1u United did not immediately acquire the furniture or equipment of Republic as part of the acquisition However 1St United

has the option to purchase the furniture and equipment from the FDIC The term of this option expires March 11 2010 Vt

United has until March 11 2010 to request the FDIC to repudiate all leases entered into by the former Republic or the leases

will be assumed As of the date of these financial statements the Company has not determined whether it will request the

FDIC to repudiate the leases Each of the four banking centers is leased

The rent commitments under these banking facilities leases prior to the potential repudiation are as follows

2010 657

2011 500

2012 448

2013 245

2014 245

Thereafter 766

2861

The Federal Home Loan Bank FHLB advances to Republic were repaid prior to December 31 2009

The operating results of 1St United for the twelve month period ended December 31 2009 include the operating results of the

acquired assets and assumed liabilities since the acquisition date of December 11 2009 Due primarily to the significant

amount of fair value adjustments and the Loss Share Agreements now in place historical results of Republic are not believed

to be relevant to the Companys results and thus no pro forma information is presented

Citrus Acquisition

On August 15 2008 the Company completed the assumption and acquisition of the banking center network substantially all

of the deposits and selected loans of Citrus Bank N.A the Citrus Acquisition headquartered in Vero Beach Florida

The total purchase price included $1500 of contingent consideration paid equally $750 per year over the next two years

subject to the retention of certain deposits acquired The Company was not required to pay the $750 that was potentially due

in 2009

NOTE 3- SECURITIES

The amortized cost and fair value of available for sale securities and the related
gross

unrealized gains and losses recognized

in accumulated other comprehensive income were as follows

Gross Gross

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized

Cost Gains Losses Fair Value

2009

U.S Government and federal agency 12490 80 12417

Mortgage-backed residential 74292 648 502 74438

Corporate

Municipal securities 1988
___________

1988

88770 655 582 88843

2008

U.S Government and federal agency 17965 835 18800

Mortgage-backed residential 15756 406 16155

Corporate 120 120

33841 1241 35075

At year
end 2009 and 2008 there were no holdings of securities of any one issuer other than the U.S Government and its

agencies in an amount greater than 10% of shareholders equity
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NOTE SECURITIES continued

The Company sold $32106 of available for sale securities in 2009 which resulted in
gross gains of $630 and gross losses of

$34 most of which were callable agency securities The Company sold $7100 of available for sale securities in 2008 which

resulted in gross gains of $124 and gross losses of $5 most of which were callable agency securities No available for sale

securities were sold in 2007

The amortized cost and fair value of debt securities at year end 2009 by contractual maturity was as follows Securities not

due at single maturity date primarily mortgage-backed securities are shown separately

Amortized Fair

Cost Value

Due in one year or less

Due from one to five years

Due from five to ten years 6879 6832
Due after ten years 7599 7573

Mortgage-backed 74292 74438

88770 88843

Securities at year end 2009 and 2008 with canying amount of $41233 and $29773 were pledged to secure public deposits

and repurchase agreements

Gross unrealized losses at year end 2009 and 2008 aggregated by investment category and length of time that individual

securities have been in continuous unrealized loss position were as follows

Less than 12 Months 12 Months or More Total

Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized

Value Loss Value Loss Value Loss

2009

U.S Government and federal agency 6806 80 6806 80
Mortgage-backed 39319 502 39319 502

46125 582 46125 582
2008

U.S Government and federal agency

Mortgage-backed 169 606 775

169 606 775

Unrealized losses on mortgage-backed securities have not been recognized into income because the mortgage-backed

securities held by the Company were issued by U.S government-sponsored entities and agencies primarily Fannie Mae and

Freddie Mac institutions which the government has affirmed its commitment to support Because the decline in fair value is

attributable to changes in interest rates and illiquidity and not credit quality and because the Company does not have the

intent to sell these mortgage-backed securities and it is likely that it will not be required to sell the securities before their

anticipated recovery the Company does not consider these securities to be other-than-temporarily impaired at December 31
2009

For the year ended December 31 2009 the Company recognized $120 loss associated with the other-than-temporary

decline in the value of corporate obligation The Company recorded the impairment as result of lack of marketability and

weakening financial conditions of the issuer Subsequent to the impairment charge the subsidiary bank of the issuer was

closed by the FDIC Consequently all of the loss was considered credit related by the Company
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NOTE 3- SECURITIES continued

The table below presents rollforward of the credit losses recognized in earnings for the period ended December 31 2009

Beginning balance January 2009

Amounts related to credit loss for which an other than-temporary impairment was not previously

recognized

Additions Subtractions

Amounts realized for securities sold during the period

Amounts related to securities for which the company intends to sell or that it will be more likely than

not that the company will be required to sell prior to recovery of amortized cost basis

Reductions for increase in cash flows expected to be collected that are recognized over the remaining

life of the security

Increases to the amount related to the credit loss for which other-than-temporary was previously

recognized 120

Ending balance December 31 2009 250

NOTE 4- LOANS

Loans at year end were as follows

2009

Loans Loans Not

Subject to Subject to Loss

Loss Share Share

Agreements Agreements Total 2008

Commercial

Real estate

Residential

Commercial

Construction

Consumer and other

37444 79905 117349 90968

90808 114941 205749 100571

64244 225770 290014 203734

1108 54581 55689 83161

432 11607 12039 7865

194036 486804 680840 486299

Add deduct
Unearned income and net deferred loan fees

costs 136 52
Allowance for loan losses 13282 5799

667694 480448

At December 31 2009 the Company had approximately $194000 in outstanding loans covered by Loss Share Agreements

Included in commercial and commercial real estate loans above are loans originated through government guaranteed lending

programs totaling $5895 and $8282 at year
end 2009 and 2008 respectively Of these amounts $4865 and $7222 at year

end 2009 and 2008 respectively represent unguaranteed portions retained by the Company

Activity in the allowance for loan losses was as follows

2009 2008 2007

5799 2070 2149

13240 1910 145

2731

5788 915 502
31

__________ __________

13282
_________ _________

130

Beginning balance

Provision for loan losses

Effect of merger or acquisition

Loans charged-off

Recoveries

Ending balance

278

5799 2070
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NOTE 4- LOANS Continued

Impaired loans were as follows

2009 2008

Year end loans with no allocated allowance for loan losses 5900 6740

Year end loans with allocated allowance for loan losses 11100 7113

17000 13853

Amount of the allowance for loan losses allocated 2611 1522

2009 2008 2007

Average of impaired loans during the year 19960 14288 1270

Interest income recognized during impairment 551 373 172

Cash-basis interest income recognized 302 160 107

Nonperforming loans were as follows

2009 2008

Loans past due over 90 days still on accrual 54 2059
Nonaccrual loans 19297 8549

Loans past due 90 days still on accrual at December 31 2009 include one loan with principal balance of $54 which was

brought current after December 31 2009 Nonperforming loans and impaired loans are defined differently As such some

loans may be included in both categories whereas other loans may only be included in one category

The Company has allocated $3 16 of specific reserves to customers whose loan terms have been modified in troubled debt

restructurings as of December 31 2009 The Company has not committed to lend any additional amounts to customers with

outstanding loans that are classified as troubled debt restructurings

The Company has purchased loans as part of its acquisitions of Republic in 2009 and Equitable and Citrus in 2008 for which

there was at acquisition evidence of deterioration of credit quality since origination and it was probable at acquisition that

all contractually required payments would not be collected The carrying amount of those loans at year end was as follows

2009 2008 2007

Commercial 849

Real estate 47811 22288
Consumer 41

Outstanding balance 48701 22288

Carrying amount net of allowance of $0 $0 and $0 26058 15121

For those purchased loans disclosed above the Company increased the allowance for loan losses by $2571 $0 and $0 during

2009 2008 and 2007 respectively No allowances for loan losses were reversed during 2009 2008 or 2007
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NOTE 4- LOANS Continued

Loans purchased during the year for which it was probable at acquisition that all contractually required payments would not

be collected were as follows

2009 2008 2007

Contractually required payments receivable of loans purchased during the

year

Commercial 338

Real estate 55532 25275

Consumer 55

55925 25275

Cash flows expected to be collected at acquisition 23086 19996

Fair value of acquired loans at acquisition 19849 18236

Accretable yield or income expected to be collected was as follows

Balance at January 2007

New loans purchased

Accretion of income

Reclassifications from nonaccretable difference

Disposals

Balance at December 31 2007

New loans purchased 1760

Accretion of income 1150
Reclassifications from nonaccretable difference

Disposals

Balance at December 31 2008 610

New loans purchased 3234

Accretion of income 809
Reclassifications from nonaccretable difference 199

Disposals ____________

Balance at December 31 2009 3234

Income is not recognized on certain purchased loans if the Company cannot reasonably estimate cash flows expected to be

collected The carrying amounts of such loans were as follows

2009 2008 2007

Loans purchased during the year 4033

Loans at end of year 4033
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NOTE 5- PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT

Year end premises and equipment were as follows

2009 2008

Land 278 278

Buildings 4000 4000
Leasehold improvements 5681 5511

Furniture fixtures and equipment 4727 4465

14686 14254

Less accumulated depreciation 5458 3914

Premises and equipment net 9228 10340

Depreciation expense was $1411 $1078 and $1333 for 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively

The Company leases several of its office facilities under operating leases one of which is collateralized by letter of credit

on which $75 time deposit is pledged Rent expense was $2862 $2647 and $1789 for the years ended 2009 2008 and

2007 respectively

Rent commitments under these noncancelable operating leases were as follows before considering renewal options that

generally are present

2010 2828
2011 2763
2012 2824
2013 2619
2014 2594
Thereafter 3581

17209

NOTE 6- GOODWILL AND CORE DEPOSIT INTANGIBLE

Goodwill The change in balance for goodwill during the year was as follows

2009 2008 2007

Beginning of year 45008 4553 4553
Effect of acquisitions 40455

Impairment

End of year 45008 45008 4553

Impairment exists when the carrying value of goodwill exceeds its fair value which is determined through two-step

impairment test The first step includes the determination of the carrying value of the Companys single reporting unit

including the existing goodwill and intangible assets and estimating the fair value of the reporting unit The Companys
annual impairment analysis as of December 31 2009 indicated that the fair value of the reporting unit exceeded its carrying

amount Consequently the second step to the impairment test was not necessary

The amount of goodwill remaining to be deducted for tax purposes was $5290 $5190 and $3016 for the years ended

December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively
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NOTE 6- GOODWILL AND CORE DEPOSIT INTANGIBLE continued

Core Deposit Intangible The gross carrying amount and accumulated amortization for core deposit intangible was as follows

as of year end

2009 2008

Gross Accumulated Gross Accumulated

Cost Amortization Cost Amortization

Core deposit intangible 4080 1035 2832 722

Amortization expense was $313 $250 and $96 for 20092008 and 2007 respectively

Estimated amortization expense for each of the next five years was as follows

2010 433

2011 393

2012 370

2013 353

2014 and after 1496

3045

NOTE 7- DEPOSITS

Time deposits of $100 or more were $212666 and $88392 at year end 2009 and 2008 respectively

Scheduled maturities of time deposits for the next five years were as follows

2010 274525

2011 36146

2012 5036

2013 1394

2014 and after 412

317513

NOTE 8- FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK ADVANCES

The Company has credit line with the Federal Home Loan Bank This credit line is collateralized by $86645 of residential

first mortgage and commercial real estate loans under blanket lien arrangement

At year end 2009 advances consisted of $5000 convertible advance at rate of 4.6% maturing on January 11 2012 At

year end 2008 advances consisted of an overnight advance of $45000 maturing daily at daily variable interest rate of

.46% $5000 convertible advance at rate of 4.6% maturing on January 11 2012 and fixed rate advance of $6000 at

rate of 2.78% maturing on February 26 2009
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NOTE 9- BENEFIT PLANS AND EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENTS

401 Plan 401k benefit plan allows employee contributions up to 15% of their compensation which are matched equal

to 50% of the first 6% of the compensation contributed Employee benefit expense related to this plan was $49 $164 and

$140 for 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively

Employment Agreements The Company has entered into rolling three-year employment agreements with three of its

executive officers The agreements provide for base salary cash bonuses and supplemental retirement benefits which are

tied to certain growth and/or profitability targets Expense under the associated supplemental retirement plans is allocated

over years of service and totaled $169 $244 and $285 and for 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively

Each of the agreements also provide for the granting of stock options in an amount equal to 3.33% of the issued and

outstanding common stock of the Company from time to time not including any common stock outstanding as result of the

exercise by the executives of options granted As of December 31 2009 and 2008 2484321 and 874323 stock options

were granted under the terms of the employment agreements

In addition the Company has entered into an employment agreement with an executive having an effective date of

December 22 2009 for
one-year term which provides base salary and cash bonus

NOTE 10-INCOME TAXES

Income tax expense benefit was as follows

2009 2008 2007

Current

Deferred 2884 752
Change in valuation allowance 3384

Total 2884 752 3391

Year end deferred tax assets and liabilities were due to the following

2009 2008

Deferred tax assets

Net operating loss and credit carryforward 6293 6534
Allowance for loan losses 4447 2087

Accrued expenses 825 508

Depreciation 430

Deferred compensation 571 321

Other
_________

238

12566 9688
Deferred tax liabilities

Deferred gain 8296
Depreciation 26
Tax deductible goodwill and other intangibles 1996 1716
Prepaid expenses 118 108
Net unrealized gain on securities available for sale 27 464
Other 217

10654 2084

Net deferred tax asset 1912 7374
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NOTE 10-INCOME TAXES Continued

Approximately half of the deferred tax liability related to the gain on the Republic transaction will reverse ratably over six

years The remainder will be realized as the applicable assets are sold or mature

The deferred income tax asset recorded in connection with the acquisition of Equitable Financial Group Inc has been reduced

by $3015 with corresponding increase in income taxes receivable as the result of the enactment of American Recovery and

Reinvestment Act of 2009 which allowed the Company to carryback additional pre-acquisition net operating loses incurred by

Equitable to 2003 and 2004 This purchase accounting adjustment did not impact the results of operations or the financial

position of the Company

At December 31 2007 the Company assessed its earnings history and trend over the prior two years its estimate of future

earnings and the expiration dates of its net operating loss carryforwards Based on this assessment the Company detennined

that it was more likely than not that the deferred tax assets will be realized before their expiration As result the Company

reversed the valuation allowance on its deferred tax assets at December 31 2007 resulting in $3384 income tax benefit

Based on similar analyses at December 31 2009 and December 31 2008 the Company has determined that the realization of

the deferred tax assets continue to be more likely than not and no valuation allowance was recorded for either of these years

At year end 2009 the Company has Federal and State net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $14415 and $31651

respectively which begin to expire in 2023 It is anticipated that these carryforwards both Federal and State will be utilized

prior to their expiration based on the Companys current five-year projections Due to the issuance of additional stock in

September of 2009 the Company has likely undergone change of ownership as that term is defined in the Internal Revenue

Code This change of ownership will result in limitation of the amount of net operating losses that can be utilized by the

Company annually However it is not anticipated such annual limitations will materially impact the Company

Effective tax rates differ from federal statutory rate of 34% applied to income before income taxes due to the following

2009 2008 2007

Federal statutory rate times financial statement income 2585 718
Effect of

State Taxes 276 77
Earnings from company owned life insurance 36 67 60
Incentive stock option expense

44 73

Change in valuation allowance 3384
Other net 57 37 52

Total 2884 752 3391

The Company and its subsidiary are subject to U.S federal income tax as well as income tax of the State of Florida The

Company is no longer subject to examination by taxing authorities for years before 2006 except to the extent net operating

losses are carried back to earlier years Equitable which was merged into the Company in 2008 is currently under audit by

the IRS for the pre-merger taxable years ended December 31 2006 December 31 2007 and February 29 2008 Since the

audit commenced in early 2010 it is too early to determine what if any changes the examining agent may propose

However the Company anticipates that such changes if any will not have significant impact on its results of operations or

financial position

There were no significant unrecognized tax benefits at December 31 2009 and the Company does not expect any significant

increase in unrecognized tax benefits in the next twelve months
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NOTE 11- RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Loans to principal officers directors and their affiliates in 2009 and 2008 were as follows

Year ended December 31
2009 2008

Beginning balance 11609 12860

New loans 406 126

Repayments 816 1377

Ending balance 11199 11609

Deposits from principal officers directors and their affiliates at year-end 2009 and 2008 were $20461 and $18471

respectively

Additionally the Company paid $252 $248 and $369 in 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively to various entities owned by

directors of the Company for architectural design services and furniture related to its office facilities and insurance services

The Company entered into five-year lease that commenced in 2006 on property owned by director for which it made

payments of $158 $150 and $162 in 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively Lastly the Company sold $4040 in loans at its

carrying value to one of its Directors during 2008

NOTE 12-STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

The Company had non-executive officer stock option plan the 2003 Plan whereby up to 5% of the outstanding shares of

the Companys common stock may be issued under the plan At December 31 2009 and December 31 2008 62712 and

115400 shares respectively had been issued and no options were available to be issued under the plan

In May 2008 the Companys shareholders approved new Stock Incentive Plan the 2008 Incentive Plan No additional

shares can be issued under the 2003 Plan The 2008 Incentive Plan allows for up to 5% of outstanding shares to be issued to

employees executive officers or Directors in the form of stock options restricted stock Phantom Stock units stock

appreciation rights or performance share units At December 31 2009 190500 awards have been issued under the 2008

Incentive Plan No awards were issued in 2008 under the 2008 Incentive Plan Up to an additional 1052012 awards may be

issued under the 2008 Incentive Plan

During 2009 the Company implemented plan to allow non-executive employees at the employees option to exchange

45000 stock options issued in 2008 under the 2003 Plan with an exercise price of $14.50 per share for 45000 stock options

to be issued under the 2008 Incentive Plan with an exercise price of $7.20 but with new vesting periods which would

commence on the grant date of the new options All 45000 shares have been exchanged as of December 31 2009

Additionally 2484321 and 874323 options to purchase the Companys common stock were outstanding at December 31
2009 and December 31 2008 respectively to executive officers under employment agreements

Lastly the Company has entered into separate agreements with its non-executive directors and executive council members

whereby these individuals have been granted options to purchase the Companys common stock At December 31 2009 and

2008 62000 options were outstanding under these agreements

Under each of the above plans and agreements the exercise price is the market price at date of grant The maximum option

term is ten years
and the vesting period ranges

from immediate vesting to up to ten years
The Company issues new shares to

satisfy share option exercises Total compensation costs that have been charged against income for these plans and

agreements were $543 $341 and $34 respectively for the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007

The fair value of each option award is estimated on the date of grant using closed form option valuation Black-Scholes

model that uses the assumptions noted in the table below Expected volatilities are based on historical volatilities of an

appropriate bank peer group The Company uses historical data to estimate option exercise and post-vesting termination

behavior The expected term of options granted represents the period of time that options granted are expected to be

outstanding which takes into account that the options are not transferable The risk-free interest rate for the expected term of

the option is based on the U.S Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of the grant
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NOTE 12- STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION continued

The fair value of options granted during 2009 and 2008 was determined using the following weighted-average assumptions

as of grant date

2009 2008

Risk-free interest rate 2.98% 3.03%

Expected term 7.00 years 7.00 years

Expected stock price volatility 30.00% 30.00%

Dividend yield

summary of the activity in the stock option plan for 2009 follows

Weighted

Weighted Average

Average Remaining Aggregate

Exercise Contractual Intrinsic

Shares Price Term Value

Outstanding at beginning of year 1051723 12.17

Granted 1800498 5.49

Exercised

Forfeited exchanged or expired 52688 14.48

Outstanding at end of year 2799533 7.83 8.53 years

Fully vested and expected to vest 2799533 7.83 8.53 years

Exercisable at end of year 659147 12.42 5.34 years

Information related to the stock option plan during each year follows

2009 2008 2007

Intrinsic value of options exercised

Cash received from option exercises 51

Tax benefit realized from option exercises

Weighted average
fair value of options granted 1.72 4.45 5.04

As of December 31 2009 and 2008 there were $4441 and $1833 respectively of total unrecognized compensation cost

related to non-vested stock options granted under the Plan The cost is expected to be recognized over weighted-average

period of 8.29 years

In 2009 the Company granted 80000 restricted shares of its common stock to non-executive directors pursuant to the terms

of the 2008 Incentive Plan The grant price was $7.15 Under the terms of the agreement the restricted shares will vest one

seventh immediately and one-seventh equally at the end of the next six years subject to accelerated vesting upon change of

control The fair value of stock award at the grant date was $572 which one-seventh immediately vested and the remaining

are being amortized to expense over the six-year vesting period on the straight-line method Amortization expense was $81

in 2009 In 2009 11429 shares vested and 68571 shares are non-vested at year-end
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NOTE 13- LONG-TERM BORROWINGS

On July 2008 1st United entered into Subordinated Capital Note Purchase Agreement Note Purchase Agreement
with correspondent bank Lender Pursuant to the Note Purchase Agreement 1st United issued to Lender an unsecured

Subordinated Capital Note the Debenture in the principal amount of $5000 The Debenture bears interest at fixed rate

of 5.69% until May 16 2010 after which time the fluctuating interest rate will be equal to the three month British Bankers

Association LIBOR Daily Floating Rate LIBOR plus 245 basis points per annum 1st United must repay principal of $125

each quarter beginning September 15 2010 until maturity on June 15 2020 at which time any remaining principal and

accrued interest is due and payable 1st United paid an origination fee of $37 to Lender for the Debenture The Debenture is

included in total capital for
purposes

of computing total capital to risk weighted assets for both the Company and 1st United

The Debenture contains certain customary representations warranties covenants and events of default Upon the occurrence

of any event of default as defined in the Note Purchase Agreement which is continuing interest will become due and

payable upon demand If an event of default occurs due to 1st Uniteds bankruptcy insolvency receivership conservatorship

or reorganization then Lender shall have the right to declare the Debenture to be immediately due and payable

Also on July 2008 Bancorp entered into Loan and Stock Pledge Agreement Loan and Stock Pledge Agreement with

Lender pursuant to which Bancorp received $5000 revolving Line of Credit the Note secured by 100% of the common
stock of 1St United Bank The Note bears interest at the three month LIBOR index rate for U.S Dollar deposits plus 200

basis points adjusted daily The Note has an interest rate floor of 4.50% At December 31 2008 there was $250 outstanding

on this Note During the
year

ended 2009 the $250 was repaid the Note was terminated without penalty and the common

stock of 1St United Bank was released

The following are aggregate maturities of long term debt for the next five years and thereafter

2010 250

2011 500

2012 500

2013 500

2014 500

Thereafter 2750

5000

NOTE 14- COMMON STOCK OFFERING

During 2009 Bancorp issued 16100000 the Offering shares of common stock at $5.00 per
share The total proceeds of

the Offering were $74925 net of offering costs of $5575

NOTE 15- PREFERRED STOCK

On March 13 2009 the Company entered into Letter Agreement with the Treasury Department as part of the Treasury

Departments Capital Purchase Program pursuant to which the Company agreed to issue and sell 10000 shares of Series

Fixed Rate Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock Series Preferred having liquidation amount per share of $1000 for

total price of $10000 and warrant Warrant to purchase up to 500 shares of Series Fixed Rate Cumulative Perpetual

Preferred Stock Series Preferred at an initial per share exercise price of $0.01 The Treasury Department exercised the

Warrant immediately and the Company issued 500 shares of Series Preferred Total proceeds net of issuance costs of

approximately $171 were approximately $9829 The Series Preferred paid cumulative dividends of 5% per annum until

the 5th anniversary date of their issuance and thereafter at rate of 9% per annum The Series Preferred paid cumulative

dividends at 9% per annum and cannot be redeemed until the Series Preferred is redeemed The Series Preferred and

Series Preferred also provided for various restrictions including restricting dividends to common shareholders and

restrictions on executive compensation
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NOTE 15- PREFERRED STOCK continued

To facilitate the issuance of the Series Preferred and Series Preferred on February 27 2009 the Company exchanged all

of its outstanding Series Non-Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock Series Preferred for Series Non-Cumulative

Perpetual Preferred Stock Series Preferred All of the material terms and conditions of the Series Preferred are

identical to the Series Preferred except that the Series Preferred had liquidation preference over other preferred shares

whereas the liquidation preference of the Series Preferred is equal to that of the Series Preferred and Series Preferred

During 2009 Bancorp redeemed the Series Preferred and Series Preferred from the Treasury Department The

approximate cost of the redemption of these shares was $10500 As result additional accretion for the Series Preferred

and Series Preferred of $671 was recorded during the period ended December 31 2009

During 2009 Bancorp also redeemed the Series Preferred Stock at their outstanding balance of $4595 plus accrued

dividends

NOTE 16- CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS AND RESTRICTIONS ON RETAINED EARNINGS

Banks and bank holding companies are subject to regulatory capital requirements administered by federal banking agencies

Capital adequacy guidelines and additionally for banks prompt corrective action regulations involve quantitative measures

of assets liabilities and certain off-balance-sheet times calculated under regulatory accounting practices Capital amounts

and classifications are also subject to qualitative judgments by regulators Failure to meet capital requirements can initiate

regulatory action

Management believes as of December 31 2009 Bancorp and United meet all capital adequacy requirements to which they

are subject

Prompt corrective action regulations provide five classifications well capitalized adequately capitalized undercapitalized

significantly undercapitalized and critically undercapitalized although these terms are not used to represent overall financial

condition If adequately capitalized regulatory approval is required to accept brokered deposits If undercapitalized capital

distributions are limited as is asset growth and expansion and capital restoration plans are required At year-end 2009 and

2008 the most recent regulatory notifications categorized 1st United as well capitalized under the regulatory notifications

framework for prompt corrective action There are no conditions or events since that notification that management believes

have changed the institutions category
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NOTE 16- CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS AND RESTRICTIONS ON RETAINED EARNINGS continued

The Companys and 10 Uniteds actual and required capital amounts and ratios at year end are presented

Minimum for

_____________________ _____________________ Well_Capitalized

_________ _______ ___________________ Amount

As of December 31 2009

Total Capital to risk-weighted assets

Consolidated

1st United

Tier capital to risk-weighted assets

Consolidated

1st United

Tier capital to total average assets

Consolidated

1st United

As of December 31 2008

Total Capital to risk-weighted assets

Consolidated

1st United

Tier capital to risk-weighted assets

Consolidated

1st United

Tier capital to total average assets

Consolidated

1st United

Dividend RestrictionsThe Companys principal source of funds for dividend payments is dividends received from 1st

United Banking regulations limit the amount of dividends that may be paid without prior approval of regulatory agencies

Under these regulations the amount of dividends that may be paid in any calendar year is limited to the current years net

profits combined with the retained net profits of the preceding two years subject to the capital requirements described above

At year end 2009 1st United could without prior approval declare dividends of approximately $3873 plus any 2010 net

profits retained to the date of the dividend declaration

NOTE 17- LOAN COMMITMENTS AND OTHER RELATED ACTIVITIES

Some financial instruments such as loan commitments credit lines letters of credit and overdraft protection are issued to

meet customer financing needs These are agreements to provide credit or to support the credit of others as long as

conditions established in the contract are met and usually have expiration dates Commitments to make loans are generally

made for periods of 60 days or less and may expire without being used Off-balance-sheet risk to credit loss exists up to the

face amount of these instruments although material losses are not anticipated The same credit policies are used to make such

commitments as are used for loans including obtaining collateral at exercise of the commitment

The contractual amount of financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk was as follows at year end

2009 2008

Fixed Variable Fixed Variable

Rate Rate Rate Rate

Commitments to make loans 4120
Unused lines of credit 11389

Stand-by letters of credit 4995

11485 950 25656

44437 823 50905

3612 195

Commitments to make loans are generally made for periods of 60 days or less The fixed rate loan commitments have interest

rates ranging from 2.40% to 18% and maturities ranging from one month to 13
years

Actual

Amount

Minimum Capital

Adequacy

Amount

134518 25.76% 41777 8.00% 52221 10.00%

87486 16.91% 41400 8.00% 51750 10.00%

122907 23.54% 20888 4.00% 31333 6.00%

75939 14.67% 20700 4.00% 31050 6.00%

122907 17.33% 28367 4.00% 35459 5.00%

75939 10.70% 28383 4.00% 35479 5.00%

56554 11.69% 38690 8.00% 48363 10.00%

49626 10.26% 38687 8.00% 48359 10.00%

45755 9.46% 19345 4.00% 29018 6.00%

37827 8.03% 19368 4.00% 29015 6.00%

45755 8.15% 22469 4.00% 28086 5.00%

38827 6.91% 22468 4.00% 28085 5.00%
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Dollars in thousands except per share data

NOTE 18- FAIR VALUES

Canying amount and estimated fair values of financial instruments were as follows at year
end

2009 2008

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair

Amount Value Amount Value

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 135241 $135241 19102 19102

Time deposits in other financial institutions 75 75 75 75

Securities available for sale 88843 88843 35075 35075

Loans net including loans held for sale 667694 659360 481648 474057

Nonmarketable equity securities 10233 N/A 6001 N/A

Accrued interest receivable 1919 1919 1840 1840

Financial liabilities

Deposits 802808 804377 436269 438405
Federal funds purchased and repurchase agreements 22343 22343 18129 18129
Federal Home Loan Bank advances 5000 5080 56013 56568
Other borrowings 5091 5055 5250 5249
Accrued interest payable 2021 2021 544 544

The methods and assumptions used to estimate fair value are described as follows

Carrying amount is the estimated fair value for cash and cash equivalents time deposits in other financial institutions

accrued interest receivable and payable demand deposits federal funds purchased and repurchase agreements and deposits

that reprice frequently and fully Fair value of loans is based on discounted future cash flows using the current rates at which

similar loans would be made to borrowers with similar credit ratings and for the same remaining maturities adjusted for the

allowance for loan losses For deposits with infrequent repricing or repricing limits fair value is based on discounted cash

flows using current market rates applied to the estimated life Fair value of debt is based on current rates for similar

financing It was not practicable to determine the fair value of nonmarketable equity securities due to restrictions placed on

their transferability The fair value of off-balance-sheet items is not considered material or is based on the current fees or

cost that would be charged to enter into or terminate such arrangements

Fair Value Option and Fair Value Measurements

ASC 820-10-65 establishes fair value hierarchy which requires an entity to maximize the use of observable inputs and

minimize the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value The standard describes three levels of inputs that may be

used to measure fair value

Level Quoted prices unadjusted for identical assets or liabilities in active markets that the entity has the

ability to access as of the measurement date

Level Significant other observable inputs other than Level prices such as quoted prices for similar assets or

liabilities quoted prices in markets that are not active or other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated

by observable market data

Level Significant unobservable inputs that reflect reporting entitys own assumptions about the assumptions

that market participants would use in pricing and asset or liability

The fair values of securities available for sale are determined by obtaining quoted prices on nationally recognized securities

exchanges Level inputs or matrix pricing which is mathematical technique widely used in the industry to value debt

securities without relying exclusively on quoted prices for the specific securities but rather by relying on the securities

relationship to other benchmark quoted securities Level inputs
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NOTE 18- FAIR VALUES continued

The fair value of impaired loans with specific allocations of the allowance for loan losses is generally based on recent real

estate appraisals These appraisals may utilize single valuation approach or combination of approaches including

comparable sales and the income approach Adjustments are routinely made in the appraisal process by the appraisers to

adjust for differences between the comparable sales and income data available Such adjustments are typically significant and

result in Level classification of the inputs for determining fair value

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value on recurring basis are summarized below

Fair value measurements at December 31 2009 using

Significant

Quoted prices other Significant

in active markets observable unobservable

December 31 for identical assets inputs inputs

2009 Level Level Level
Assets

Available for sale securities 88843 88843

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value on non-recurring basis are summarized below

Fair value measurements at December 31 2009 using

Significant

Quoted prices in other Significant

active markets observable unobservable
December 31 for identical assets Inputs inputs

2008 Level Level Level
Assets

Impaired loans 8489 8489

Impaired loans which are measured for impairment using the fair value of the collateral for collateral dependent loans had

carrying amount of $11100 with valuation allowance of $2611 resulting in an additional provision for loan losses of

$3938 for the period

Fair value measurements at December 31 2008 using

Significant

Quoted prices other Significant
in active markets observable unobservable

December 31 for identical assets inputs inputs
2008 Level Level Level

Assets

Available for sale securities 35075 35075

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value on non-recurring basis are summarized below

Fair value measurements at December 31 2008 using

Significant

Quoted prices in other Significant
active markets observable unobservable

December 31 for identical assets Inputs inputs
2008 Level Level Level

Assets

Impaired loans 5591 5591

Impaired loans which are measured for impairment using the fair value of the collateral for collateral dependent loans had

carrying amount of $7113 with valuation allowance of $1522 resulting in an additional provision for loan losses of $1044
for the period

83



1St United Bancorp Inc

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Years Ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007

Dollars in thousands except per share data

NOTE 19- EARNINGS LOSS PER SHARE

The factors used in the earnings per share computation follow

2009 2008 2007

Basic

Net Income loss 4720 1359 3393

Preferred stock dividends earned 774 368
Amount available to common shareholders 3946 1727 3393

Weighted average common shares outstanding 13234286 6893055 4708481

Basic earnings per common share 0.30 0.25 0.72

Diluted

Net Income loss 4720 1359 3393

Preferred shareholder dividends earned 774 368 ____________

Amount available to common shareholders 3946 1727 3393

Weighted average common shares outstanding for basic earnings

per common share 13234286 6893055 4708481

Add Dilutive effects of assumed exercise of stock options and

vesting of restricted stock ____________
53119

Average shares and dilutive potential common shares 13234286 6893055 4745743

Diluted earnings per common share 0.30 0.25 0.71

Stock options for 2799533 1051723 and 194500 shares of common stock and unvested restricted stock of 68571 shares

were not considered in computing diluted earnings per share for 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively because they were

antidilutive

NOTE 20- OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME LOSS

Other comprehensive income loss components and related taxes were as follows

Year ended December 31
2009 2008 2007

Unrealized holding gains and losses on available-for-sale securities 685 810 737

Less reclassification adjustments for gains losses later recognized in

income 476 11
___________

Net unrealized gains and losses 1161 821 737

Tax effect 437 309 155

Other comprehensive income loss 724 512 582
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NOTE 21- PARENT COMPANY ONLY CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Condensed financial information of Bancorp follows

CONDENSED BALANCE SHEETS
December 31

2008 2008

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 40677 7104
Investment in subsidiaries 131340 91775

Other assets 285 248

172302 99127

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Borrowings 250

Other Liabilities

Shareholders equity 172294 98870

172302 99127

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
Years ended December 31

2009 2008 2007

Interest income 192 71

Dividends from subsidiary

Other income

Equity in undistributed subsidiary income loss 4827 1259 3346
Interest expense 12 14
Other expense 352 219 106

Income loss before income tax 4655 1421 3240
Income tax expense benefit 65 62 153
Netincomeloss 4720 1359 3393
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NOTE 21- PARENT COMPANY ONLY CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION Continued

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years ended December 31

2009 2008 2007

Cash flows from operating activities

Net income loss 4720 1359 3393

Adjustments

Equity in undistributed subsidiary income 4827 1259 3346
Stock based compensation expense

543 341

Net Change in other assets and liabilities 287 50 157
Net cash from operating activities 149 191 110

Cash flows from investing activities

Investments in subsidiary 35191 21545

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from borrowings 250 250

Dividends paid 774 206
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 51

Repurchase and retirement of common stock 474
Repurchase and retirement of preferred stock 15095
Issuance of preferred stock 9809 6529

Issuance of common stock 74925 10140 ________

Net cash from financing activities 68615 16713 423

Net change in cash and cash equivalents 33573 4641 533
Beginning cash and cash equivalents 7104 11745 12278

Ending cash and cash equivalents 40677 7104 11745

Item Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None

Item 8A Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures As of December 31 2009 the end of the period covered by this Annual

Report on Form 10-K our management including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer evaluated the

effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as defined in Rule 13a 15e under the Securities Exchange Act of

1934 Based upon that evaluation our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer each concluded that as of

December 31 2009 the end of the period covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K we maintained effective disclosure

controls and procedures

Managements Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting Our management is responsible for establishing and

maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting Internal control over financial reporting is process designed

to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for

external purposes in accordance with U.S generally accepted accounting principles

Under the supervision and with the participation of management including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial

Officer we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting based on the framework

in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway

Commission Based on this evaluation under the framework in Internal Control Integrated Framework our management has

concluded we maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as such term is defined in Securities Exchange

Act of 1934 Rule 13a-15f as of December31 2009
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Internal control over financial reporting cannot provide absolute assurance of achieving financial reporting objectives

because of its inherent limitations Internal control over financial reporting is process that involves human diligence and

compliance and is subject to lapses in judgment and breakdowns resulting from human failures Internal control over

financial reporting can also be circumvented by collusion or improper management override Because of such limitations

there is risk that material misstatements may not be prevented or detected on timely basis by internal control over

financial reporting However these inherent limitations are known features of the financial reporting process Therefore it is

possible to design into the
process safeguards to reduce though not eliminate this risk

Management is also responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements and other

financial information contained in this report The accompanying consolidated financial statements were prepared in

conformity with U.S generally accepted accounting principles and include as necessary best estimates and judgments by

management

This annual report does not include an attestation report of the Companys registered public accounting firm regarding

internal control over financial reporting Managements report was not subject to attestation by the Companys registered

public accounting firm pursuant to temporary rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission that permit the Company to

provide only managements report in this annual report

Change in Internal Control Our management including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer has

reviewed our internal control There have been no significant changes in our internal control during our most recently

completed fiscal quarter nor subsequent to the date of their evaluation that could significantly affect our internal control

over financial reporting

Item 8B Other Information

Special Meeting of Shareholders of 1st United Bancorp Inc was held on December 2009 Proxies for the meeting were

solicited by management and there was no solicitation in opposition to managements solicitations The following

summarizes the only matter voted upon at this meeting

The shareholders approved an Amendment of the Restated Articles of Incorporation as amended to increase the

number of authorized shares of common stock from 30000000 to 60000000

FOR AGAINST ABSTAIN NON-VOTE

18334527 1746955 241

PART III

Item Directors Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

The information required by Item of Form 10-K with respect to identification of directors and officers is incorporated by

reference from the information contained in the sections captioned Proposal Election of Directors Executive Officers

and Corporate Governance Codes of Conduct and Ethics in our Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders

to be held on May 25 2010 the Proxy Statement copy of which we intend to file with the SEC within 120 days after

the end of the year covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K

Section 16 Compliance

Information appearing under the captions Section 16a Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance in the Proxy

Statement is incorporated herein by reference

Item 10 Executive Compensation

The information required by Item 10 of the Form 10-K is incorporated by reference from the information contained in the

sections captioned Executive Compensation and Election of Directors Directors Fees in the Proxy Statement

Item 11 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters
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EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION

Our shareholders approved the Officers and Employees Stock Option Plan at the 2003 Annual Meeting Our shareholders

approved the 2008 Incentive Plan at the 2008 Annual Meeting The 2008 Incentive Plan replaces the Officers and

Employees Stock Option Plan We no longer grant equity compensation pursuant to the Officers and Employees Stock

Option Plan The following table provides certain information regarding our equity compensation plans as of December 31

2009

Number of

securities

remaining

available for

future issuance

under

Number of equity

securities to be Weighted-average compensation

issued upon exercise exercise price of plans excluding

of outstanding outstanding securities

options warrants options reflected in

and rights warrants and rights column

Plan Category

Equity Compensation Plans Approved by Securities

Holders 253212 7.90 1052012

Equity Compensation Plans Not Approved by Securities

Holders 2546321 7.82

Total 2799533 7.84 1052012

Messrs Orlando Schupp and Marino are granted stock options from time to time pursuant to written employment

agreement Please see section captioned Executive Compensation in our Proxy Statement

The other information required by Item 11 of Form 10-K is incorporated by reference from the information contained in the

sections captioned Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management in our Proxy Statement

Item 12 Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence

The information required by Item 12 of Form 10-K is incorporated by reference from the information contained in the

sections captioned Transactions with Management and Related Persons and Proposal Election of Directors

Committees of the Board of Directors in the Proxy Statement

Item 13 Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by Item 13 of Form 10-K is incorporated by reference from the information in the section captioned

Audit Fees and Related Matters in the Proxy Statement
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Explanatory Note

This Form 0-KIA amends the Annual Report on Form 10-K of 1st United Bancorp Inc for the
year

ended December 31
2009 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 18 2010 the Form 10-K for the sole purpose of

furnishing Exhibit 99.1 Certification of principal executive officer pursuant to Section 111 b4 of the Emergency

Economic Stabilization Act of 2008 and Exhibit 99.2 Certification of principal financial officer pursuant to Section

111b4 of the Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 2008

No other change has been made to the Form 10-K This Form 0-K/A speaks as of the original filing date of the Form 10-K

does not reflect events that may have occurred subsequent to the original filing date and does not modif or update in any

way disclosures made in the Form 10-K

PART IV

Item 14 Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

The following documents are filed as part of this report

Financial Statements

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Consolidated Balance Sheets at the end of Fiscal Years 2009 and 2008

Consolidated Statements of Income for Fiscal Years 2009 2008 and 2007

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders Equity for Fiscal Years 2009 2008 and 2007

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for Fiscal Years 2009 2008 and 2007

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial Statement Schedules

Other schedules and exhibits are omitted because the required information either is not applicable or is shown in

the financial statements or the notes thereto

Exhibits Required to be Filed by Item 601 of Regulation S-K
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EXHIBIT

NO DESCRIPTION

2.1 Agreement and Plan of Merger by and among Equitable Financial Group Inc Equitable Bank and 1st

United Bancorp Inc dated as of October 2007 incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 2.1 of the

Registrants Registration Statement on Form S-4 filed 11/19/09 No 333-147505

2.2 Amendment No to the Agreement and Plan of Merger by and among Equitable Financial Group Inc

Equitable Bank and 1st United Bancorp Inc dated as of December 19 2007 incorporated herein by

reference to Exhibit 2.1 of the Registrants Amendment No to Registration Statement on Form S-4

filed 12/28/08 No 333-147505

2.3 Purchase and Assumption Agreement by and among Citrus Bank National Association CIB Marine

Bancshares Inc and 1st United Bank dated April 2008 incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 2.1

of the Registrants Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed 5/14/08 No 000-1415277

2.4 Amendment to Purchase and Assumption Agreement by and among Citrus Bank National Association cm

Marine Bancshares Inc 1St United Bank and 1st United Bancorp Inc dated May 132008 incorporated

herein by reference to Exhibit 2.2 of the Registrants Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed 5/14/08

No 000-1415277

2.5 Purchase and Assumption Agreement Whole Bank All Deposits among the Federal Deposit Insurance

Corporation receiver of Republic Federal Bank N.A Miami Florida the Federal Deposit Insurance

Corporation and 1St United Bank dated as of December 11 2009 incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 2.1 of the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed 12/17/09 No 000-1415277

2.6 Amendment to Purchase and Assumption Agreement among the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation

receiver of Republic Federal Bank N.A Miami Florida the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation and 1st

United Bank effective as of December 11 2009 incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 2.2 of the

Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed 12/17/09 No 000-1415277

3.1 Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of the Registrant incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 3.1 of the Registrants Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed 7/22/08 No 000-1415277

3.2 Certificate of Designation for Series Non-Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock of 1st United Bancorp

Inc filed on April 25 2008 with the Secretary of State of the State of Florida designating preferences

limitations voting powers and relative rights incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the

Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed 5/14/08 No 000-14 15277

3.3 Certificate of Designation for Series Non-Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock of 15t United Bancorp

Inc filed on February 25 2009 with the Secretary of State of the State of Florida designating preferences

limitations voting powers and relative rights incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.3 of the

Registrants Form 10-K filed 3/13/09 No 000-1415277

3.4 Certificate of Designation for Series Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock of 1st United Bancorp Inc

filed on March 2009 with the Secretary of the State of the Florida designating preferences limitations

voting powers and relative rights incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.4 of the Registrants

Form 10-K filed 3/13/09 No 000-1415277

3.5 Certificate of Designation for Series Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock of lS United Bancorp Inc

filed March 2009 with the Secretary of State of the State of Florida designating preferences limitations

voting powers and relative rights incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.5 of the Registrants Form

10-K filed 3/13/09 No 000-1415277

3.6 Amendment to the 1St United Bancorp Inc Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation incorporated

herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed 5/28/09

No 000-1415277

3.7 Amendment to the 15t United Bancorp Inc Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation incorporated

herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed 12/9/09

No 000-1415277

3.8 Bylaws of the Registrant incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.2 of the Registrants Current Report

on Form 8-K filed 12/9/09 No 000-14 15277
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EXHIBIT

NO DESCRIPTION

4.1 See Exhibits through 3.8 for provisions of the Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws of the Registrant

defining rights of the holders of common stock of the Registrant

4.2 Subordinated Capital Note effective July 72008 by 1st United Bank in favor of Silverton Bank N.A in

the amount of $5000000 incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of the Registrants Current

Report on Form 8-K filed 7/10/08 No 000-14 15277

4.3 Form of Certificate for the Series Fixed Rate Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock of 1St United Bancorp

Inc incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.3 of the Registrants Form 10-K filed 3/13/09

No 000-1415277

4.4 Form of Certificate for the Series Fixed Rate Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock of 1st United Bancorp

Inc incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.4 of the Registrants Form 10-K filed 3/13/09

No 000-1415277

10.1 Officers and Employees Stock Option Plan incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the

Registrants Registration Statement on Form S-4 filed 11/19/07 No 333-147505

10.2 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement with John Marino dated as of December 18 2008

incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Registrants Form 10-K filed 3/13/09

No 000-1415277

10.3 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement with Warren Orlando dated as of December 18 2008

incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the Registrants Form 10-K filed 3/13/09

No 000-1415277

10.4 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement with Rudy Schupp dated as of December 18 2008

incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of the Registrants Form 10-K filed 3/13/09

No 000-1415277

10.5 Amended and Restated Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan Agreement for John Marino dated as of

December 18 2008incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.5 of the Registrants Form S-I filed

8/26/09 No 333-161563

10.6 Amended and Restated Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan Agreement for Warren Orlando dated as

of December 18 2008 incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.6 of the Registrants Form 10-K

filed 3/13/09 No 000-1415277

10.7 Amended and Restated Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan Agreement for Rudy Schupp dated as

of December 18 2008 incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.6 of the Registrants Form 10-K

filed 3/13/09 No 000-14 15277

10.8 2008 Incentive Plan incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Registrants Current Report on

Form 8-K filed 5/30/08 No 000-14 15277

10.9 Subordinated Capital Note Purchase Agreement between 1st United Bank and Silverton Bank N.A
effective July 2008 incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Registrants Current Report

on Form 8-K filed 7/10/08 No 000-1415277

10.10 Loan and Stock Pledge Agreement between 1st United Bancorp Inc and Silverton Bank effective

July 2008 incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Registrants Current Report on

Form 8-K filed 7/10/08 No 000-1415277

10.11 Promissory Note with Revolving Feature effective July 2008 by 1st United Bancorp Inc in favor of

Silverton Bank N.A in the amount of $5000000 incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the

Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed 7/10/08 No 000-14 15277

10.12 Letter Agreement dated March 13 2009 between 1St United Bancorp Inc and the United States

Department of Treasury which includes the Securities Purchase Agreement-Standard Terms attached thereto

incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.13 of the Registrants Form 10-K filed 3/13/09

No 000-1415277
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10.13 Employment Agreement by and between the Registrant and Wade Jacobson effective as of December 22

2009 incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K

filed 12/23/09 No 000-1415277

11.1 Statement re Computation of Per Share Earnings

14.1 Code of Ethicst

21.1 Subsidiaries of the Registrant incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 21.1 of the Registrants

Form 10-K filed 3/13/09 No 000-14 15277

23.1 Consent of Crowe Horwath LLP independent registered public accounting firmt

31.1 Certification of CEO pursuant to Securities and Exchange Act Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of

2002

31.2 Certification of CFO pursuant to Securities and Exchange Act Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of

2002

32.1 Certification of CEO and CFO pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of

the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.t

99.1 Certification of principal executive officer pursuant to Section 111 b4 of the Emergency Economic

Stabilization Act of 2008

99.2 Certification of principal financial officer pursuant to Section 111 b4 of the Emergency Economic

Stabilization Act of 2008
Information required to be presented in Exhibit 11 is provided in Note 19 to the consolidated financial

statements under Part II Item of this Form 10-K in accordance with the provisions of U.S generally

accepted accounting principles

Filed electronically herewith

Furnished electronically herewith

Previously filed
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the Registrant has duly caused this

report to be signed on March 12 2010 on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

1ST UNITED BANCORP INC

Registrant

By Is John Marino

JOHN MARINO

PRESIDENT AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Duly authorized officer
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1ST UNITED BANCORP INC

CODE OF ETHICS FOR THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
AND SENIOR FINANCIAL OFFICERS

Preamble

1St United Bancorp Inc the Company is committed to maintaining business atmosphere where only the highest ethical

standards and integrity prevail An unwavering adherence to high ethical standards provides strong foundation on which

the Companys business and reputation can thrive and is integral to creating and sustaining successful high-caliber

company The Company has Code of Conduct applicable to all directors and associates of the Company The Chief

Executive Officer and all senior financial officers including the ChiefFinancial Officer principal accounting officer and

controller collectively the Senior Financial Officers are bound by the Code of Conduct In accordance with Section

406 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and in recognition of their critical role in
proper corporate governance the Chief

Executive Officer and Senior Financial Officers shall be subject to the following conditions and requirements in addition to

the Companys Code of Conduct

Financial Reporting Communications with the Public

The Company sets high expectations for achieving its operating and financial goals These results must be achieved without

compromising its high ethical standards for accounting and financial reporting methods Accounting and financial reporting

practices must be fair and proper in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles GAAP and must involve

managements best judgments where necessary

As detailed under Integrity of Accounting and Financial Information in the Code of Conduct the Company expressly prohibits

practices that might lead to fraudulent financial reporting While difficult to give an all-inclusive definition of fraudulent

financial reporting generally it is any intentional or reckless conduct whether by act or omission that results in materially

misleading financial statements The Company expects clear open transparent and frequent communication on all significant

financial and operating matters to help reduce the risk of problems in the accounting and financial reporting areas as well as to

help achieve operating goals

Accordingly it is the responsibility of the Chief Executive Officer and each Senior Financial Officer to promptly bring to the

attention of the Disclosure Committee any material information of which he or she becomes aware that affects or may affect

the disclosures made by the Company in its public filings and to otherwise assist the Disclosure Committee in fulfilling its

responsibilities as specified in its charter

The disclosures the Company makes in reports and documents the Company files with or submits to the Securities and

Exchange Commission and Nasdaq or other self-regulatory exchange or market as well as in other public communications

made by the Company must be full fair accurate timely and most importantly understandable to the public

The Chief Executive Officer of the Company is responsible for authorizing the release of information to the public

Internal Controls Deficiencies Financial Fraud

The Chief Executive Officer and each Senior Financial Officer must promptly bring to the attention of the Disclosure

Committee and the Audit Committee any information he or she may have concerning significant deficiencies in the design

or operation of the Companys internal controls that could adversely affect the Companys ability to record process

summarize and report financial data or any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees

who have significant role in the Companys financial reporting disclosures or internal controls



Violations of this Code of Ethics Conflicts of Interest

The Company expects its Chief Executive Officer and Senior Financial Officers to perform their duties using their best

impartial judgment in all matters affecting the Company The Chief Executive Officer and Senior Financial Officers may not

exploit their position or association with the Company for personal gain other than for authorized compensation and benefits

and should avoid even the appearance of such conflict Many possible conflicts of interest are specified under

Responsibility of Associates to Avoid Possible Conflicts of Interest in the Code of Conduct However there are other

situations in which conflict of interest may arise The Chief Executive Officer and each Senior Financial Officer must

promptly bring to the attention of the Companys Counsel or the Chief Executive Officer and to the Audit Committee any
information he or she may have concerning any violation of this Code of Ethics or the Companys Code of Conduct

including any actual or apparent conflicts of interest between personal and professional relationships involving any

management or other employees who have significant role in the Companys financial reporting disclosures or internal

controls

Legal Obligations

Adherence to legal and regulatory matters must govern the business decisions and actions of the Chief Executive Officer and

the Senior Financial Officers The Chief Executive Officer and each Senior Financial Officer should make every effort to

ensure that they and the Company are in compliance with all laws rules and regulations applicable to their area of

employment The Chief Executive Officer and each Senior Financial Officer must promptly bring to the attention of the

Companys Counsel or the Chief Executive Officer and to the Audit Committee any information he or she may have

concerning evidence of material violation of the federal securities laws or other laws rules or regulations applicable to the

Company and the operation of its business whether such violation is by the Company or any agent of the Company

Waivers Filing Form 8-K

There shall be no waiver of any part of this Code of Ethics except by vote of the Board of Directors or committee

designated by the Board Prior to such vote the Board or Committee must ascertain whether waiver is appropriate and

ensure that any waiver is accompanied by appropriate controls designed to protect the Company

The Company must disclose on Form 8-K any waivers of or changes to this Code of Ethics within five business days or any
other time period specified by the Securities and Exchange Commission In addition in the event that the Board or

Committee grants any waiver the waiver must be posted on the Companys website to allow the Companys shareholders to

evaluate the merits of the particular waiver

Enforcement and Accountability

The Board of Directors shall determine or shall designate the appropriate persons to determine appropriate actions to be

taken in the event of violations of the Code of Conduct or of this Code of Ethics by the ChiefExecutive Officer and the

Senior Financial Officers Any such action shall be reasonably designed to deter wrongdoing and to promote accountability

for adherence to the Code of Conduct and to this Code of Ethics and may include

written notices to the individual involved that the Board has determined that there has been violation

censure by the Board

demotion or re-assignment of the individual involved

suspension with or without pay or benefits as determined by the Board or

termination of the individuals employment

In determining what action is appropriate in particular case the Board of Directors or its designee shall take into account all

relevant information including the nature and severity of the violation whether the violation was single occurrence or one

of repeated occurrences whether the violation
appears to have been intentional or inadvertent whether the individual in

question had been advised prior to the violation as to the proper course of action and whether or not the individual in question

had committed other violations in the past

Each year the Chief Executive Officer and each Senior Financial Officer must certify his or her compliance with this Code of

Ethics



have read and understand my obligations under the Code of Ethics for the Chief Executive Officer and Senior Financial

Officers and certif that as of the date hereof am in compliance with the terms of the Code

further understand that my atreement to comply with this Code of Ethics does not constitute contract of

employment

Signature

Print Name

Title

Date



CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference in Registration Statement Nos 333-162714 and 333-150790 on Form S-8 of

our report dated February 18 2010 appearing in this Annual Report on Form 10-K of 1St United Bancorp Inc for the year

ended December 31 2009

/s/ Crowe Horwath LLP

Crowe Horwath LLP

Fort Lauderdale Florida

February 18 2010



EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302

OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Rudy Schupp certify that

have reviewed this Amendment No ito the Annual Report on Form 10-K of 1st United Bancorp Inc and

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state

material fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made

not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report

Date March 12 2010 /s/ Rudy Schupp

Rudy Schupp

Chief Executive Officer Principal Executive Officer



EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302

OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

John Marino certify that

have reviewed this Amendment No to the Annual Report on Form 10-K of 1St United Bancorp Inc and

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state

material fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made
not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report

Date March 12 2010 /s/ John Marino

John Marino

President and Chief Financial Officer

Principal Financial Officer



EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION UNDER SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 each of the undersigned certifies that this periodic

report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13a or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and that

information contained in this periodic report fairly presents in all material respects the financial condition and results of

operations of the issuer

Dated February 18 2010 Is Rudy Schupp

Rudy Schupp

Chief Executive Officer

Is John Marino

John Marino

President and Chief Financial Officer



EXHIBIT 99.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION l11b4 OF
THE EMERGENCY ECONOMIC STABILIZATION ACT OF 2008

listUnitedBancorp Inc

February 24 2010

TARP Chief Compliance Officer

Office of Financial Stability

Department of the Treasury

1500 Pennsylvania Avenue

Washington D.C 20220

Re U.S Treasury Capital Purchase Program CEO Certification

Gentlemen

Please find below the 2009 U.S Treasury Capital Purchase Program-related CEO Certification for ls United Bancorp

CERTIFICATION

the ChiefExecutive Officer of United Bancorp Inc certify as follows

The Compensation Committee of 1St United Bancorp Inc Bancorp has discussed reviewed and

evaluated with senior risk officers at least every six months during the period beginning on the later of

September 14 2009 or ninety days after the closing date of the agreement between Bancorp and the

Department of the Treasury and ending with the last day of Bancorps fiscal year containing that date the

applicable period the senior executive officer SEO compensation plans and the employee compensation

plans and the risks these plans pose to Bancorp

ii The Compensation Committee of Bancorp has identified and limited during the applicable period any
features of the SEO compensation plans that could lead SEOs to take unnecessary and excessive risks that

could threaten the value of Bancorp and during that same applicable period has identified any features of the

employee compensation plans that
pose

risks to Bancorp and has limited those features to ensure that

Bancorp is not unnecessarily exposed to risks

iii The Compensation Committee has reviewed at least
every six months during the applicable period the

terms of each employee compensation plan and identified any features of the plan that could encourage the

manipulation of reported earnings of Bancorp to enhance the compensation of an employee and has limited

any such features

iv The Compensation Committee of Bancorp will certify to the reviews of the SEO compensation plans and

employee compensation plans required under and iiiabove

The Compensation Committee of Bancorp will provide narrative description of how it limited during any

part of the most recently completed fiscal year that included TARP period the features in

SEO compensation plans that could lead SEOs to take unnecessary and excessive risks that could

threaten the value of Bancorp



TARP Chief Compliance Officer

February 24 2010

Page

Employee compensation plans that unnecessarily expose Bancorp to risks and

Employee compensation plans that could encourage the manipulation of reported earnings of

Bancorp to enhance the compensation of an employee

vi Bancorp has required that bonus payments as defined in the regulations and guidance established under

section 111 of EESA bonus payments of the SEOs and twenty next most highly compensated employees

be subject to recovery or clawback provision during any part of the most recently completed fiscal year

that was TARP period if the bonus payments were based on materially inaccurate performance metric

criteria

vii Bancorp has prohibited any golden parachute payment as defined in the regulations and guidance

established under section 111 of EESA to an SEO or any of the next five most highly compensated

employees during the period beginning on the later of the closing date of the agreement between the TARP

recipient and Treasury of June 15 2009 and ending with the last day of the TARP recipients fiscal year

containing that date

viii Bancorp has limited bonus payments to its applicable employees in accordance with section 111 of EESA
and the regulations and guidance established thereunder during the period beginning on the later of the

closing date of the agreement between the TARP recipient and Treasury or June 15 2009 and ending with

the last day of Bancorps fiscal year containing that date

ix The Board of Directors of Bancorp has established an excessive or luxury expenditures policy as defined in

the regulations and guidance established under section 111 of EESA by the later of September 14 2009 or

ninety days after the closing date of the agreement between Bancorp and Treasury this policy has been

provided to Treasury and its primary regulatory agency Bancorp and its employees have complied with this

policy during the applicable period and any expenses that pursuant to this policy required approval of the

Board of Directors committee of the Board of Directors an SEO or an executive officer with similarly

level of responsibility were properly approved

Bancorp will permit non-binding shareholder resolution in compliance with any applicable Federal

securities rules and regulations on the disclosures provided under the Federal securities laws related to SEO

compensation paid or accrued during the period beginning on the later of the closing date of the agreement
between Bancorp and Treasury or June 15 2009 and ending with the last day of the TARP recipients fiscal

year containing that date

xi Bancorp will disclose the amount nature and justification for the offering during the period beginning on the

later of the closing date of the agreement between Bancorp and Treasury or June 15 2009 and ending with

the last day of Bancorps fiscal year containing that date of any perquisites as defined in the regulations and

guidance established under section 111 of EESA whose total value exceeds $25000 for any employee who
is subject to the bonus payment limitations identified in paragraph viii

xii Bancorp will disclose whether Bancorp the Board of Directors of Bancorp or the Compensation Committee

of Bancorp has engaged during the period beginning on the later of the closing date of the agreement
between Bancorp and Treasury or June 15 2009 and ending with the last day of Bancorp fiscal year

containing that date compensation consultant and the services the compensation consultant or any affiliate

of the compensation consultant provided during this period

xiii Bancorp has prohibited the payment of any gross-ups as defined in the regulations and guidance established

under section 111 of EESA to the SEOs and the next twenty most highly compensated employees during the

period beginning on the later of the closing date of the agreement between Bancorp and Treasury or June 15
2009 and ending with the last day of Bancorps fiscal year containing that date



TARP Chief Compliance Officer

February 24 2010

Page

xiv Bancorp has substantially complied with all other requirements related to employee compensation that are

provided in the agreement between Bancorp and Treasury including any amendments

xv Bancorp has submitted to Treasury complete and accurate list of the SEOs and the twenty next most highly

compensated employees for the current fiscal
year and the most recently completed fiscal year with the non

SEOs ranked in decending order of level of annual compensation and with the name title and employer of

each SEO and most highly compensated employee identified and

xvi understand that knowing and willful false or fraudulent statement made in connection with this

certification may be and may be punished by fine imprisonment or both

Is Rudy Schupp

Rudy Schupp

Chief Executive Officer

Principal Executive Officer



EXHIBIT 99.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 111b4 OF

THE EMERGENCY ECONOMIC STABILIZATION ACT OF 2008

listUnitedBancorp Inc

February 24 2010

TARP Chief Compliance Officer

Office of Financial Stability

Department of the Treasury

1500 Pennsylvania Avenue

Washington D.C 20220

Re U.S Treasury Capital Purchase Program CFO Certification

Gentlemen

Please find below the 2009 U.S Treasury Capital Purchase Program-related CEO Certification for 1st United Bancorp

CERTIFICATION

the ChiefFinancial Officer of 1St United Bancorp Inc certify as follows

The Compensation Committee of 1St United Bancorp Inc Bancorp has discussed reviewed and

evaluated with senior risk officers at least every
six months during the period beginning on the later of

September 14 2009 or ninety days after the closing date of the agreement between Bancorp and the

Department of the Treasury and ending with the last day of Bancorps fiscal year containing that date the

applicable period the senior executive officer SEO compensation plans and the employee compensation

plans and the risks these plans pose to Bancorp

ii The Compensation Committee of Bancorp has identified and limited during the applicable period any

features of the SEO compensation plans that could lead SEOs to take unnecessary and excessive risks that

could threaten the value of Bancorp and during that same applicable period has identified any features of the

employee compensation plans that pose risks to Bancorp and has limited those features to ensure that

Bancorp is not unnecessarily exposed to risks

iii The Compensation Committee has reviewed at least every
six months during the applicable period the

terms of each employee compensation plan and identified any features of the plan that could encourage
the

manipulation of reported earnings of Bancorp to enhance the compensation of an employee and has limited

any such features

iv The Compensation Committee of Bancorp will certify to the reviews of the SEO compensation plans and

employee compensation plans required under and iii above

The Compensation Committee of Bancorp will provide narrative description of how it limited during any

part of the most recently completed fiscal year that included TARP period the features in



TARP Chief Compliance Officer

February 24 2010
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SEO compensation plans that could lead SEOs to take unnecessary and excessive risks that could

threaten the value of Bancorp

Employee compensation plans that unnecessarily expose Bancorp to risks and

Employee compensation plans that could encourage the manipulation of reported earnings of

Bancorp to enhance the compensation of an employee

vi Bancorp has required that bonus payments as defined in the regulations and guidance established under

section 111 of EESA bonus payments of the SEOs and twenty next most highly compensated employees

be subject to recovery or clawback provision during any part of the most recently completed fiscal year

that was TARP period if the bonus payments were based on materially inaccurate performance metric

criteria

vii Bancorp has prohibited any golden parachute payment as defined in the regulations and guidance

established under section 111 of EESA to an SEO or any of the next five most highly compensated

employees during the period beginning on the later of the closing date of the agreement between the TARP

recipient and Treasury of June 15 2009 and ending with the last day of the TARP recipients fiscal year

containing that date

viii Bancorp has limited bonus payments to its applicable employees in accordance with section 111 of EESA

and the regulations and guidance established thereunder during the period beginning on the later of the

closing date of the agreement between the TARP recipient and Treasury or June 15 2009 and ending with

the last day of Bancorps fiscal year containing that date

ix The Board of Directors of Bancorp has established an excessive or luxury expenditures policy as defined in

the regulations and guidance established under section 111 of EESA by the later of September 14 2009 or

ninety days after the closing date of the agreement between Bancorp and Treasury this policy has been

provided to Treasury and its primary regulatory agency Bancorp and its employees have complied with this

policy during the applicable period and any expenses that pursuant to this policy required approval of the

Board of Directors committee of the Board of Directors an SEO or an executive officer with similarly

level of responsibility were properly approved

Bancorp will permit non-binding shareholder resolution in compliance with any applicable Federal

securities rules and regulations on the disclosures provided under the Federal securities laws related to SEO

compensation paid or accrued during the period beginning on the later of the closing date of the agreement

between Bancorp and Treasury or June 15 2009 and ending with the last day of the TARP recipients fiscal

year containing that date

xi Bancorp will disclose the amount nature and justification for the offering during the period beginning on the

later of the closing date of the agreement between Bancorp and Treasury or June 15 2009 and ending with

the last day of Bancorps fiscal
year containing that date of any perquisites as defined in the regulations and

guidance established under section 111 of EESA whose total value exceeds $25000 for any employee who

is subject to the bonus payment limitations identified in paragraph viii

xii Bancorp will disclose whether Bancorp the Board of Directors of Bancorp or the Compensation Committee

of Bancorp has engaged during the period beginning on the later of the closing date of the agreement

between Bancorp and Treasury or June 15 2009 and ending with the last day of Bancorps fiscal year

containing that date compensation consultant and the services the compensation consultant or any affiliate

of the compensation consultant provided during this period



TARP Chief Compliance Officer

February 24 2010
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xiii Bancorp has prohibited the payment of any gross-ups as defined in the regulations and guidance established

under section 111 of EESA to the SEOs and the next twenty most highly compensated employees during the

period beginning on the later of the closing date of the agreement between Bancorp and Treasury or June 15

2009 and ending with the last day of Bancorps fiscal year containing that date

xiv Bancorp has substantially complied with all other requirements related to employee compensation that are

provided in the agreement between Bancorp and Treasury including any amendments

xv Bancorp has submitted to Treasury complete and accurate list of the SEOs and the twenty next most highly

compensated employees for the current fiscal year and the most recently completed fiscal year with the non

SEOs ranked in decending order of level of annual compensation and with the name title and employer of

each SEO and most highly compensated employee identified and

xvi understand that knowing and willful false or fraudulent statement made in connection with this

certification may be and may be punished by fine imprisonment or both

Is John Marino

John Marino

President and Chief Financial Officer

Principal Financial Officer



This page intentionally left blank



CORIORATF HFADQL ARTFRS

One North Federal Highway
Boca Raton FL 33432

561-362 00

wv w.lstunitedhankfLcom

STOCK LISTING

1st United Bancorp lncs common
stock is traded on The Nasdaq Stock

Market under the symhol FUBC

IN\ ESTOR REI ATIO1\S

John Marino

561 362-3431

JMarino C1stijnitctlhaiskflcoi

IRAUSFFR AGENT

American Stock Transfer

Trust Co LLC

6201 15th Avenue

Brooklyn NY 11219

CORPORAFF COLNSFL

Gunster Yoakley Stewart PA
Phillips Point

777 South Flagler Drise

Suite 500 East

West Palm Beach FL 33401

BANK REGF LMORY COENSFL

Smith Mackinnon PA
Citrus Center

255 South Orange Avenue

Suite 800

Orlando FL 32801

INIFPENII NT 111 OR
Crowe Hor ath LLC

6750 North Andrews Avenue

Suite 200

Fort Lauderdale FL 33309

OPIFS OF 10

Additional copies of 1st United

Bancorp Inc.s Annual Report on

Form 10-K filed with the Securities

and Exchange Commission are

availahle upon request without

charge Please visit our web sitc at

sswss.lstunitedhankflcom or

send requests to

1st United Bancorp Inc

One North Federal Highway

Boca Raton FL 33431

Attn Investor Relations

NOlICF OF ANNUAL MEETING

1st nited Bancorp Inc will conduct

its Annual Meeting at the Boca Raton

Flistorical Society 71 North Federal

Highway Boca Raton FL 33432 at

200 pm on May 25 2010

\Pest Palm Beach Boca Raton

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Miami Dade County

Treasure Coast



1IEPi1SccTp Ic
1ST UNITEI BANCORP INC

One North Federal Highway Boca Raton FL 33432

561-362-3431 www.lstrioitedhaokflcom


